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Welcome to the Custodian REIT plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Sheffield, Foundry House



Custodian REIT plc (“Custodian REIT” or “the
Company"’) isaUK real estate investment trust (“REIT”)
with aportfolio comprising properties predominantly
let to institutional grade tenants throughout the UK,
principally characterised by properties with individual
values of less than £10m at acquisition.
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Financial highlights and performance summary
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Rent collected for the year EPRAZ2earnings per share® Basic and diluted earnings per share*

1% 5.6p 09p

91% of rent collected for the year, adjusted

for contractualrent deferrals geel 5:6p ol
2020 7.0p 2020 0.5p
EPRA?earnings per share®*decreased to 5.6p Basic and diluted earnings per share* of 0.9p
(2020: 70p) due to providing for deferred and (2020: 0.5p), impacted by property valuation
overduerentanda5.0%decreaseinthe decreases of £19.6m (2020: £25.9m)

annualrrentroll

Profit before tax Aggregate dividends per share Target dividend per share

£37/m  50p 50p

2021 £3.7m 2021 5.0p 2022 Minimum5.0p

2020 £21m 2020 6.65p 2021 5.0p

202
Profit before tax up 76.6% Aggregate dividends per share for the year 020 SR

of 5,0p (2020:6.65p) reflecting the decreases

inrent collectionrate and rent roll since the onset Target dividend per share for the year
of the COVID-19 pandemic ending 31March 2022 of notless than 5.0p

(2021:5.0p), based onrent collection levels
remaining in line with expectations

NAV total return per share® Property value

09p  £5519m

NAV total return per share® of 0.9% (2020:11%) - £196maggregate valuation decrease - £114meinvestedinthree property acquisitions
comprising 4.8% dividends (2020:6.2%) and (3.5% of property portfolio value) comprising Disposal of five properties for aggregate
a3.9% capital decrease (2020:51% capital a£9.4m property valuation uplift from considerationof £4.4m?7

decrease) successfulasset management initiatives and

£2.3m capitalexpenditure incurred including
£0.7m on construction of a drive-through
restaurant onan existing site

£29m of general valuation decreases, primarily
duetodecreasesinthe estimated rental value
(‘ERV") of high street retail properties, negative
market sentiment for retailassets and the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic

5. Netasset value (‘NAV') movement including dividends paid
during the year on she sue at 31 March 2020.

6. Before acquisition costs of £0.7m
inissue. 7. Before disposal costs of £0.1m.

4. Profit after tax divided by weighted average number
of shares inissue.
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Share price total return®

2021 2.3%

2020 EEEHOLZ)

Dividend cover®

2021 12.7%

104.4%

2020

Dividends per share '°(p)

2021 5.0

2020 BCKEE

NAV and EPRA NTA" (€m)

2021 409.9

2020 426.7

NAV per share and NTA per share' (p)

2021

97.6

ploplol  101.6

Share price (p)

2021 91.8

2020

Market capitalisation (£Em)

2021 385.6

p(ozlol  415.9

Discount of share price to NAV per share

2021

(5.9%)

2020 EPXGE)

Net gearing

2021 24.9%

2020 PR

Ongoing chargesratio™ (“OCR”)

2021 2.48%

E(02loN  1.55%

OCR excluding direct property
expenses'*

2020 1.12%

Weighted average energy
performance certificate
(“EPC”) rating™

2021 (C)e3

lozloll  (C)70

Alternative performance measures
The Company reports alternative performance
measures (APMs’) to assist stakeholdersin
assessing performance alongside the Company's
results on a statutory basis, set out above. APMs
areamong the key performance indicators used by
the Board to assess the Company's performance
and are used by research analysts covering the
Company. Certain other APMs may not be directly
comparable with other companies adjusted
measures,and APMs are notintended tobe a
substitute for, or superior to, any IFRS measures

of performance. Supporting calculations for
APMSs andreconciliations between APMs and
their IFRS equivalents are set outin Note 21.
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9. Profit after tax, excluding net gains or losses oninvest
property, divided by dividends paid and approved for the year.
10. Dividends paid and approved for the yeal
1. Following the recent update to EPRA’s Best Practice
Recommendations Guidelines e group
has adopted EPRA net tangible a s the primary
f net asset value. There are no differences between
npany’s IFRS NAV, EPRA NAV and EPRA NTA

been obtained
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Business model and strategy

Custodian REIT offers investors the opportunity to access a diversified portfolio
of UK commercial real estate through a closed-ended fund. The Company seeks
to provide investors with an attractive level of income and the potential for capital
growth, becoming the REIT of choice for private and institutional investors seeking
high and stable dividends from well-diversified UK real estate.

The Company'sinvestment policy® is summarised below:

Toinvestinadiverse portfolio of UK The property portfolio should be Tofocus onareas with highresidual
commercial real estate, principally diversified by sector, location, tenant values, strong local economies and
characterised by individual property andlease term, witha maximum animbalance between supply and
values of less than £10mat acquisition. weighting to any one property sector demand, acquiring modern buildings
or geographic region of 50%. or those considered it for purpose by
occupiers.
Noone tenant or property should The Company willnot undertake The Company may use gearing
account for more than 10% of the rent speculative development except for provided that the maximum LTV shall
rollat the time of purchase, except for: the refurbishment of existing holdings, not exceed 35%, with a medium-term
(i) governmental bodies or but may investin forward funding netgearing targetof 25% LTV.
departments; or agreements where the Company may
(i) single tenants rated by Dun & acquire pre-let development land and
Bradstreet as having a credit risk construct investment property
score higher thantwo ', where with the intention of owning the
exposure may not exceed 5% completed development.
of therentroll

The Boardreviews the Company’s investment objectives at least annually to ensure they remain appropriate to the market in which
the Company operates and in the best interests of shareholders

Our portfolio Total portfoliorentroll

% of portfolioincome £3 8 7m

Retail

9.7%

Industrial Retail warehouse

41.4% 209%

16. Afullversion of the Company's Investment Policy is available at custodianreit.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/CREIT-Investment-policy.pdf
17. Arisk score of two represents “lower than average risk”


http://custodianreit.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/CREIT-Investment-policy.pdf
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Diverse portfolio
Annual %

passing rent portfolio

Top tentenants Assetlocations (£m) income
Aberdeen, Edinburgh, Glasgow, Ipswich, Norwich,

Menzies Distribution Stockton-on-Tees, Swansea, Weybridge 1.6 3.8%
B&Q Banbury, Galashiels, Weymouth 14 3.2%
B&M Retail Swindon, Ashton-under-Lyne, Plymouth, Carlisle 1.3 2.9%
VW Group Derby, Stafford, Shrewsbury 0.8 2.0%
Superdrug Weston-super-Mare, Avonmouth, Southsea, Worcester 0.8 1.9%
Wickes Building Supplies Winnersh, Burtonupon Trent 0.8 1.8%
Williams Motor Co (t/a Williams BMW and Mini) Stockport 0.6 1.5%
Regus (Maidstone West Malling) West Mallling 0.6 1.5%
First Title (t/a Enact Conveyancing) Leeds 0.6 1.5%
H&M Winsford 0.6 1.5%

Our Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) objectives

Minimising our
environmental impact
Seek toreduce pollution

and comply with all relevant
environmental legislation,
gather and analyse dataonthe
environmental performance
of our properties and measure
environmental performance
against targets.

Engaging with our
stakeholders

The Boardand Investment
Manager ensure ESG progress
isdiscussed and embedded
acrossallwork done. The
Investment Manager liaises
closely with tenants to understand
consumptiontrendsanddataand
understand where we canupgrade
and optimise buildings for tenant
well-being and environmental
impact reductions.

Supportinglocal communities
The Company is committed to
engaging constructively with
centraland local government

to ensure we support the wider
community throughlocal
economic and environmental plans
and strategies and play our partin
providing the real estate fabric of
the economy, givingemployers a
place of business.

Transparent disclosure
TheInvestment Manager has
been working with the Company's
environmental consultants,
Carbon Inteligence, to putin
place anenvironmental visionand
strategy including implementation
of environmental key performance
indicators, data collectionand
monitoring and long-term
emissionstargets.

Portfolioincome split by region

4

"

N

@ South East: 14%

@ Eastern:5%

@ West Midlands: 20%
@ South West: 10%

® Wales: 1%

@ Scotland:9%

North East: 10%
North West:17%

Financial resilience

@ EastMidlands: 14%

Other sub-sectorincome split

/.Ij

@ Hotel: 1%

@ Restaurant: 21%
@ Healthcare:3%

@ Trade Counter: 7%
@ Nursery: 2%

Leisure:30%

@ Motor Trade: 35%

Place of Worship: 1%

Net gearing

O
249 /O 31Mar 2021
22 4% 31Mar2020
Number of property assets
159 assets 31Mar 2021
161 assets 31Mar 2020
Debt facility average maturity
74 yedars 31Mar 2021
7.8 years 31Mar2020
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Chairman’s statement

00

The Company’s absolute
focus on income by
maximising rent collection
has enabled it to weather
the storm imposed by the

COVID-19 pandemic

David Hunter
Chairman

Inthe circumstances|was delighted to
be able to announce that the Company’s
successfulfocus onrent collection
allowed dividends per share totalling
5.0ptobedeclaredforthe year. This
dividend outcome s significantly ahead
of the minimumlevel announcedin April
2020 of 0.75p per quarter before the
fullimpact of the first national lockdown
couldbe ascertained.

Targetdividend per share

2022 Minimum 5.0p

2021 5.0p

2020

Custodian REIT'sinvestment strategy has been
tested, with the Company operating for afull year
under the shadow of COVID-19. The Company's
absolute focus onincome by maximising rent
collectionand preserving cash flow fromthe
property portfoliohas enabled it to weather the
storm. Following the shock of the firstlockdown,
and fromalow pointin May 2020, Custodian REIT's
share price showed less volatility through the second
half of 2020. Since the start of 2021 the share

price hasbeengently recovering. Thistrajectoryin
share price performance has matched the greater
clarity that the Company was able to provide
around dividends through the course of the year,
demonstrating the importance placed onincome
by shareholders

Theimpact of the pandemic has beento accelerate
the decline in high street retail, pushing an increasing
number of occupiersinto Administration or
Company Voluntary Arrangements (‘CVAS’)

and many occupiersinto seeking to defer rental
payments for later collection. Despite the strongly
positive performance of the Company's industrial
andlogistics portfolio, the netresult has beena 3.5%
(£19.6m) property valuation decrease during the
year.91% of rent was collected, net of contractual
deferrals, or 89% before contractual deferrals. Most
tenants are honouring rent deferral agreements but
somearrears are still at risk of non-recovery from
CVAsor Administrations

Inthe circumstances | was delighted to be able to
announce that the Company's successful focus on
rent collection rate allowed dividends per share of
50ptobedeclaredfor the year.

Thisdividend outcomeis significantly ahead of the
minimum level announced in April 2020 of 0.75p
per quarter before the fullimpact of the first national
lockdown could be ascertained.

Thisdividendwas one of the highest fully covered
dividends amongst the Company's peer group of
listed property investment companies® for the year
ended 31March 2021and, inline with the Company's
policy, was fully covered by net cashreceipts and
113% covered by EPRA earmings.

Acknowledging the importance of income for
shareholders, | was also very pleased toannounce
that the Companyis targeting a dividend per share
ofatleast5.0p for the year ending 31 March 2022,
based onrent collection levels remaininginline with
expectations.

These have beentesting times which have
necessitated anexceptional effort from the
Investment Manager, both in the collection of rents
andinoperating remotely as ateam.lwouldlike
toacknowledge thisachievement. lalso thank

my fellow Board members who have been flexible
and supportive during a year which has required
numerous formal and informal additional Board
meetings

18. Source: Numis Securities Limited
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o Interest cover covenant® waiversinplace
tomitigate the risk that covenants on individual
longer-term fixed-rate debt facilities might have
come under pressure due to curtailed rent
receipts.

Financialand operational resilience
The Company remains ina strong financial position
toaddressthe extraordinary circumstances
imposed by the COVID-19 pandemic. At 31March
2021ithad:

Covenant waivers have not been required due to
the level of rent collected and are not expected to
be requested beyond 31 March 2021 Nolender
covenants have been breached during the period

o Adiverse and high-quality asset and tenant
base comprising 159 assets and 201 typically
institutional grade' tenants across allcommercial
sectors, withanoccupancy rate of 916%;

The market

FY21hasseenamarket where almost every
commercial property investment has beenimpacted
by COVID-19-some negatively and some positively.
Wehave not seensucha widespreadimpact across
the whole property investment market since the
GlobalFinancial Crisis.

e £39mof cashand £10.0m of undrawnrevolving
credit facility (‘RCF"), with gross borrowings of
£140mresultinginlow net gearing, with no
short-termrefinancing risk and a weighted
average debt facility maturity of seven years;

» Significant headroom onlender covenants
ataportfolio level, withnet gearing of 24.9%
andamaximumloantovalue ('LTV") covenant
of 35%; and

Net asset value

The NAV of the Company at 31 March 2021 was £409.9m, approximately 97.6p per share, a
decrease of 4.0p (3.9%) since 31 March 2020

Pence per share £m
NAV at 31March 2020 1016 4267
Valuation movements relating to:
o Asset management activity 22 94
o General valuation decreases 69 (290
Valuation decrease before acquisition costs @7) (196)
Impact of acquisition costs 02 07)
Valuation decrease including acquisition costs 49 (203
Profit ondisposal of investment property 01 04
Net valuation movement 4.8) (19.9)
Revenue 95 397
Expensesandnet finance costs 38) (160
Dividends paid®® 49 (2006)
NAV at 31 March 2021 976 409.9

The netvaluationdecrease of 3.5% (£19.6m) saw fallsinretail, other and office sector valuations, partially
offsetbya4.6% (£12.0m) increase inindustrial and logistics, further detailed in the Investment Manager's
report,dueto:

« The Company's valuers reflecting historical rent arrears within valuations and downgrading valuations for
properties let to tenants which had ceased or significantly curtailed trading, in line with current RICS advice
tovaluers;

o Asteepreductioninretailvalues;

o Strongly polarisedinvestment demand, favouring logistics andlong income and shunning consumer
facing property, especially retail; and

« Theimpact of CVAs and company Administrations, detailed in the Asset management report

Custodian REIT'sinvestment strategy continues to be weighted towards regional industrial and logistics
assets which has stood the Company in good stead again this year. With investment yields tightening in
this very popular sector and withincome returns coming under pressure the opportunities for a diversified
investment strategy, to support future dividends, remain a focus for the Company.

19. Historical rentalincome received and projected contractual rentalincome receivable less certain property expenses divided by interest and
fees payabletoits lenders must exceed 250%.

20. Dividends totalling 4.9125p per share (16625p relating to the prior year and 325p relating to the year) were paid on shares inissue throughout
the year,

However,adownturnis oftenthe best time foran
investment strategy to be tested, and so the last year
has proved. Custodian REIT has endured lower
volatility relative toits close peer group of diversified
propertyinvestment companies?', andits property
portfolio continues to deliver asset management
opportunities which are value accretive, as discussed
inthe Assetmanagementreport.

Property investment companies with certain
sector specificinvestment strategies, such as
healthcare andlogistics, have outperformed
during the year. However, we believe that for a
large swathe of investors the long-term attributes
of adiversified strategy remain the key attraction
of real estate investment. Our strategy offers
diversification of tenant, lease expiry profile and
asset type, low net gearing, arisk-averse debt
profile, strong regional property locations and
the ability of the managementteamto generate
futureincome fromthe assets. These attributes
contribute to lower share price volatility than

the close peer group and have been rewarded
with continued dividends, supporting a5%

plus dividend yield for most of the year.

Relative to its close peer
group of diversified property
investment companies,
Custodian REIT has endured
lower volatility and its
property portfolio continues
to deliver asset management
opportunities which are value
accretive, discussed in the
Asset management report.

The Company enjoys the support of a wide range
of shareholders with the majority classified as
private client or discretionary wealth management
investors. The Company'sinvestment and dividend
strategy is well suited to investors looking for a

close proxy todirectreal estate investment butina
managed and liquid structure. After many months of
Open-Ended Property Funds blocking redemptions
(inpartduetoFCArestrictionsandin part due to
lack of liquidity), the investment trust structure offers
anatural choice for retallinvestors seeking high and
stable dividends from well-diversified UK real estate
throughaliquid vehicle.

21, Source: Numis Securities Limited
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Chairman’s statement continued

ESG achievements

EPRA Sustainability

The Company's 2020 Annual Report received
an EPRA Sustainability Reporting most
improved award

GRESB

Made our first Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (‘GRESB") submissionin 2020,
which provided valuable insight into the
Company's sustainability performance

‘4
'l' @
G R E S B

Datamanagement

Implemented a comprehensive environmental
datamanagement service using a dedicated
software system that collects, verifies, stores and
reports onthe key carbon and ESG performance
metrics

KPIs

Set target environmental KPIs tomeasure its
success towards achieving its environmental
objectives

TCFD

Undertookits firstin-depthreview

of climate-related risks and opportunities to begin
toalign disclosures to the recommendations

of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures

Investment Manager

Custodian Capital Limited (‘the Investment
Manager’) is appointed under aninvestment
management agreement (‘IMA") to provide property
management and administrative servicesto the
Company. The performance of the Investment
Manager is reviewed each year by the Management
Engagement Committee (‘MEC”). During the year
fees paidto the Investment Manager were £3.8m
(2020: £4.0m) inrespect of annual management
andadministrative fees. Further details of fees
payableto the Investment Manager are set outin
Note 18.

The Boardis pleased with the performance

of the Investment Manager, particularly inrent
collection levels and its continued successful
asset management during the pandemic which
contributed toboth capital values andincome. The
Boardis satisfied that the Investment Manager's
performance remains aligned with the Company’s
purpose, values and strategy.

The MEC reviewed, indetall, the arrangements
withthe Investment Manager when the Investment
Management Agreement ('IMA”) reached the end
of its three-year termon 31May 2020. Inlight of the
positive performance of the Company the Board
agreedafurther three-year termwith the Investment
Manager, from 1June 2020. The fees payable to the
Investment Manager under the IMA were amended
toinclude

o Astepdowninthe annualmanagement fees™
from 0.65% to 0.55% of NAV applied to NAV
inexcessof £750m; and

o Astepdownintheadministrative fee from
0.05% t00.03% of NAV applied toNAV in
excess of £750m.

Allotherkey terms of the IMA remained unchanged.
The Board considers these amendments to the
IMAtobeinthe bestinterests of the Company’s
shareholders because:

o Continued growthin NAV, particularly above
thresholds of £500m and £750m, will further
reduce the Company's OCRandincrease
dividend capacity: and

o Another three-year term provides the Investment
Manager withappropriate security of tenure
and allows further investment in the dedicated
systems and people providingits services under
the IMA.

Board successionand remuneration
Althoughthe Company's succession policy allows
for a Director tenure of longer than nine years, inline
withthe 2019 AIC Corporate Governance Code
for Investment Companies (‘AIC Code’), the Board
acknowledges the benefits of ongoing Board
refreshment and for this reason expected Director
retirement dates are staggered withinanine-year
tenure period.

22. Annual management fees comprise property management
services fees and investment management services fees.

On1danuary 2021, after nearly seven years of
service, Professor Barry Gibertsonretired as
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. The Board wouldlike to thank Barry for
his significant contribution to the development of the
Company since hisappointmentonIPOin2014.

Responding to Barry's departure and the growth of
the Company since inception we were delighted to
welcome Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland to
the Boardon1April2021. Both new Directors bring
arange of different but complementary skills which
strengthen the Board's property and governance
experience and add toits diversity. We look forward
tothe contribution they willboth make.

The Boardis conscious of theincreased focus on
diversity and recognises the value andimportance
of diversity in the boardroom. No Directors are from
aminority ethnic background. The appointment

of ElizabethMcMeikanincreases the female
representation on the Board to 33% which meets
the gender diversity recommendations of the
Hampton-Alexander Review for at least 33% female
representationon F TSE350 company boards.
Asaconstituent of the FTSESmallCap

Index Custodian REIT is not bound by this
recommendation. The Board supports the overall
recommendations of the Hampton-Alexander
and Parker Reportsalthoughitisnot seentobein
the interests of the Company and its shareholders
to set prescriptive diversity targets for the Board

at thispoint.

InMarch 2020 the Remuneration Committee
determined that there would be noincreasein the
level of Directors annual fees for the year ending
31March2021due to the uncertainty caused by

the COVID-19 pandemic. For the year ending 31
March 2022 the Remuneration Committee has
continued its historical policy of paying appropriately
benchmarked Directors fees.

Environmental,

Socialand Governance (“ESG”)
The Boardrecognises that its decisions have
animpact on the environment, people and
communities. It also believes there are positive
financial reasons to incorporate good ESG
practicesinto the way we do business.

The Board shares the increased stakeholder
interestin,andrecognises the importance of,
compliance requirements around good ESG
management. It seeks to adopt sustainable principles
wherever possible, actively seeking opportunities to
make environmentally beneficialimprovements toits
property portfolio andencouraging tenantstoreport
andimprove emissions data. As testament to this
commitment, the Board recently constitutedan ESG
Committee to monitor the Company's performance
against its environmental key performance indicators
("KPIs"); ensure it complies withits environmental
reporting requirements; assess the engagement
with the Company's environmental consultants; and
assess the level of social outcomes being achieved
for its stakeholders and the communities in which
itoperates.
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The combination of

resilient capital values

and a return to stabilised
dividends should lend support
to Custodian REIT's objective
to be the REIT of choice

for private and institutional
investors seeking high and
stable dividends from well-
diversified UK real estate

Financial Statements

Farnborough

The Company's ESG policy outlines our approach to
managing ESGimpacts and provides the framework
for setting and reviewing environmental and social
objectives to ensure we are continuously improving
our performance and setting aleadership direction

Asaresult, the Board committed to:

o Seektominimise pollution and comply withall
relevant environmentallegislation;

o Gatherandanalyse data onour environmental
performance across our property portfolio;and

« Monitor environmental performance and
achievements against targets for our properties
asacommitment to continuous improvement.

Progress towards these commitments during the
year is summarised below:

e TheCompany's Annual Report for the year ended
31March 2020 received a mostimproved award
for its first year complying with EPRA Sustainability
Best Practice Recommendation reporting.

e TheCompany madeitsfirst Global Real Estate
Sustainability Benchmark (‘GRESB’) submission
inJuly 2020, one of the most widely used
sustainability benchmarks inthe real estate sector.
Theresults of this submission have provided
avaluable insight into the Company’'s current
sustainability performance andidentified certain
areas forimprovement. As aresult during the year
the Company implemented acomprehensive
datamanagement service using adedicated
software systemthat collects, verifies, stores and
reports onthe key carbon and ESG performance
metrics. This systemwillboth ensure all datais
robustand accurate for externalandinternal
reporting and provide dataaccess for tenants to
upload data direct and share information to assist
them inimproving environmental performance.

o The Company set target environmental KPIs
to provide a strategic way to measure its
success towards achievingits environmental
objectives and ensure the Investment Manager
isembedding key ESG principlesinto portfolio
management.

» The Company undertook its firstin-depth review
of climate-related risks and opportunities to begin
toaligndisclosures to the recommendations
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures ("TCFD") and better understand how
the Company and the portfolio will be impacted by
climate change and the transition to alow-carbon
€Conomy.

Details of the Company's environmental policy and
its KPIs are contained within the ESG Committee
report withinthe Strategic report.

Outlook

Despite the headwinds, real estate continues tobe
indemand by occupiers and as aninvestment class.
The Asset management report looks more closely
atoccupier demandand paints arosier picture than
ayear of pandemic headlines might suggest,and
although occupancy has decreased from 95.9%to
91.6%, more than half of our vacant properties are
currently under offer tolet. The outlook feels more
positive and predictable than 12 months ago and we
expect that the Company's property portfolio will
continue to support the policy of stable dividendsina
post-pandemic world. As discussedin the Financial
review, dividends per share of 5.0p have been
approved for the year and the Board has announced
aminimumdividend of 5.0p for the year in prospect.

Inalong-term low interest rate environment,

the marginalincome return fromreal estate
investment over risk-free investment, represented
by UK 10-year gilts and the low cost of debt,
arebothlikely to support property pricing.

The combination of resilient capital valuesand a
return to stabilised dividends should lend support
to Custodian REIT's objective to be the REIT

of choice for private andinstitutionalinvestors
seeking high and well supported dividends
fromdiversified UK commercial property.

David Hunter
Chairman
15June 2021
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Investment Manager’s report

00

Real estate
investment has

been remarkably

resilient

Richard Shepherd-Cross
Investment Manager

The UK property market

Incommon with the wider economy, the commercial
property investment market has experienced a
year unlike any other with office workers deserting
their offices, shoppers going online asretailers were
forced to close and pubs and restaurants unable
toserve customers for alarge part of the year. The
government's moratorium on the eviction of tenants
for non-payment of rent has left landlords unable

to compel tenants to pay rent, but despite these
challenges, | believe real estate investment has
beenremarkably resilient.

Asadiversified property investment company,
CustodianREIT s resllienceinthe face of the
pandemicisrepresentative of theresilience of the
real estate market more broadly. Custodian REIT's
NAV decreased by 4.0p over the year which was
exceeded by dividends paidto deliver amarginal,
but positive NAV total return of 0.9% for the year.
We gointothe year ending 31March 2022 with
the estimated rental value (‘ERV") of the property
portfolio, adjusted for acquisitions and disposals,
only 14% diminished, albeit withanincreased
vacancy rate.

These positive total returns and limited rental
reductions, when compared to significant share
price volatility, particularly in Q1, suggest that real
estate outperformed market expectations of
earlierinthe year. A share price recovery beganin
Q4inline with greater certainty of rent collection
rates which were much better than forecast

and had beenimproving through the year.

Theclear winner inreal estate investment has
been the industrial andlogistics sector which has
benefited from the shift from the high street to
'E-tailing and from the onshoring of the national
supply chain post Brexit. Investment demand and
pricing are both at recordlevels which hasbeen
strongly positive for Custodian REIT as this sector
makes up 49% by value of the portfolioandits
valuationincreased by 4.6% during the year.

The high streetretail sector's future is uncertain, but,
Ibelieve, as part of a combined retail and leisure-
based city centre there will still be active demand
fromoccupiers. The trend for fewer shops was
wellestablished prior to the pandemic butin core
locations we still expect to see high occupancy
levels albeit at rentallevels 25-50% below the peak.
High street retail makes up only 8% by value of the
property portfolioand we have sold four smallshops
inthe last six months, withanother under offer, which
we did not feel had medium-term potential for a
returntorental growth

By contrast the out of town retail sector, which makes
up 18% of the Custodian REIT portfolio by value, is
witnessing investors openly competing for assets
Thisisasector where thereis confidence that the
combination of convenience, lower costs per square
footand the complementary offer to online retail wil
keep these assets relevant. Through thelast year we
have seen DIY and discounters (B&Q and B&M for
example) trading strongly.

After a year of working from home many workers
are looking forward to returning to the office
Without doubt the way we use offices and how
frequently we visit them has changed, following the
largely successful national experiment of remote
working. As always, when considering real estate
investment, the location of offices will be key. Having
withdrawn from an office acquisitionin Oxford, to
preserve cash, at the start of the first lockdown
Custodian REIT completed on the same office
building one year later in a city which is benefiting
fromthe growthin Biotech, drivenin part by the
university and the focus of this growing sector in the
Oxford-Cambridge arc. We have already agreed
terms to lease the last remaining space inthe
building at a new headline rent demonstrating the
positive future prospects for the property.

The sustainability credentials of both the building and
thelocation willbe evermoreimportant for occupiers
andinvestors. AsInvestment Manager we are
absolutely committed to the Company's ambitious
goalsinrelationto ESG andbelieve the real estate
sector should be aleader inthis field.

ESGhasbecome animperative for many investors.
Commercial real estate is a significant contributor to
nationalemissions, so we believe anemphasis on
how we canimprove the ‘E'is particularly relevant
forreal estate. In thisregard we are striving to beat
the Company's target toimprove the Energy
Performance Certificates (‘EPC") of the portfolio.
We expect to eradicate all EPCs of 'F'and'G'ahead
ofthetarget setof end of 2022 andall EPCs of £’
before 2025.
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We are welladvanced with this project with plans
inplaceforallthe F and'G' EPCsand 30% of the
‘E'EPCs.

Energy performance and emissions are important
considerations across allredevelopments
andrefurbishmentsin the portfolio, asis the
importance of S" (Social) in creating an engaging,
appropriate and sustainable (inall senses of the
word) built environment. These commitments are
demonstrated inthe refurbishment of a property in
West Bromwich, the details of which are set outin
the ESG Committee report. Investing in real estate
that meets the ESG requirements of occupiers and
legislation willlead to shorter periods of vacancy,
higher rents and enhanced values. We have policies,
embedded in our strategy, to keep Custodian REIT
ontargettomeet the required standards but we
remain focused ondelivering returns at the same
time. The KPIs the Company has set itself are set
outinthe ESG Committee report.

Before considering rent collection, which has been
akey focus through the year, itis worth reflecting
onthe continued use of CVAs by tenants to

reduce their operating costs. As discussedinthe
Asset management report CVAs have beenthe
cause of a1.3% reduction in annual passing rent
during the year. While, on the face of it, CVAs are
disadvantageous for landlords thisis not always the
case over amedium-term time horizon. An example
of how this can be positive for investors is the CVA
of Pizza Hut. The Custodian REIT portfolio contains
three Pizza Hut restaurants operating an arguably
outdated model. The CVA enabled the Company
to gain vacant possession of each property with
increasingly competitive bids received to secure
the assets from new drive-through operators
including fast food and coffee shops and Pizza Hut
itself. Allthree units now have 21st century tenants
lined up to take occupation.

Rent collection

As Investment Manager, Custodian Capital invoices
and collects rent directly,importantly allowing it to
hold conversations promptly with most tenants
regarding the payment of rent. This direct contact
has provedinvaluable, through the COVID-19
pandemic disruption, enabling better outcomes for
the Company. Many of these conversations have
led to positive asset management outcomes, some
of whichare discussed in the Asset management
report. The financial resilience of the Company

and the pragmatic approach of the Manager have
enabled the Company to take alonger-term view
of rent collection. It was better to acknowledge

the challenges faced by certain occupiersand
balance their contractual requirement to pay rent
and the abllity of the Company to fund short-term
rent deferrals. If quarterly rent payments could not
be secured consensually the Manager sought to
allow tenants to pay monthly and, only if this was not
achievable, toallow for an element of rent to

be deferred.

Financial Statements

Where possible longer lease commitments were
soughtinreturnas part of alease re-gear. Rent
concessions were offered, asalast resort, but
amountedto less than 1% of the total contractual
rentroll.

91% of rent relating to the year has been collected,
netof contractual rent deferrals, or 89% before
contractual deferrals, as set out below:

Outstanding rentalincome remains the subject
of discussion with various tenants, and some
arrears are potentially at risk of non-recovery
duetodisruption caused by the recent national
lockdownand from CVAs or Administrations.

The Company's doubtful debt provisionhas
increased by £2.7m (0.6p per share) from £0.3m
to £3.0m during the year toreflect the risk of failing
to collect outstanding and deferred rent.

Watford

00

The financial resilience of the
Company and the pragmatic
approach of the Manager
enabled the Company to
take a longer-term view of
rent collection

Netof Before
2021  contractual  contractual
31Mar rent rent
£m deferrals deferrals

Rentalincome frominvestment property (IFRS basis) 387

|easeincentives (19)

Cashrentalincome expected, before contractual rent deferrals 36.8 100%
Contractual rent deferred untilsubsequent financial years 0.9) (3%)
Cashrentalincome expected, net of contractual rent deferrals 359 100%

Qutstanding rentalincome (31 (9%) (8%)
Rentalincome collected 32.8 91% 89%
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Investment Manager’s report continued

Property portfolio balance

The property portfolio is split between the main commercial property sectors in line with the Company’s objective to maintain a suitably balanced investment portfolio
The Company has arelatively low exposure to office and high street retail combined with a relatively high exposure to industrial and to alternative sectors, often referred
to as other'in property market analysis. The current sector weightings are:

Valuation Valuation

movement movement
Valuation Weighting by Valuation Weighting before including Weighting Weighting
31March income?® 31March pbyincome acquisition acquisition by value by value
2021 31March 2020 31March costs costs 31March 31March
Sector £m 2021 £m 2020 £m £m 2021 2020
Industrial 2702 41% 2573 40% 120 18 49% 46%
Retail warehouse 997 21% 109.7 22% (10.9) (10.9) 18% 20%
Other® 84.4 16% 874 17% (5.6) (5.7) 15% 16%
Office 548 12% 526 10% (5.8) ©6.2) 10% 9%
High street retail 428 10% 528 1% 9.3 (9.3 8% 9%
Total 551.9 100% 559.8 100% (19.6) (20.3) 100% 100%

Duringthe year the different sectorshave performed  Acquisitions Burton upon Trent

inline with market norms. Industrialandlogistics
values have strengthened by 4.6%, recording
highlevels of occupancy and continued rental
growth. Office values have suffered a10.4%
decrease, experiencinganincrease in vacancy
asoccupiers exercised their options to vacate
atlease expiry or break, in order toride outthe
pandemic. For the second year retailhas been

the worst hit, although with a greater percentage
declineinhigh street locations of 21.6% compared
to out of town retail warehousing decline of 10.8%.
Thislower decline for out of townis perhaps a
reflection of the stock selection in the Custodian
REIT portfolio where retail warehouse occupiers
are predominantly value retailers and homewares/
DIY,many of whom have remained open for trading
during the COVID-19 pandemiclockdown.

The 31March 2020 valuation was reported
onthe basis of material valuation uncertainty’
inaccordance with RICS valuation standards.
This basis did not invalidate the valuation but,
inthe circumstances,implied that less certainty
could be attachedto the valuationthan
otherwise would be the case. However, for
31March 2021 valuations, no ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ clauses were appliedto any asset
classesin the Company's property portfolio.

The Company has appointed Savills as valuer
toreplace Lambert Smith Hamptonand

towork alongside Knight Frank. We thank
Lambert Smith Hampton which has valued

the Custodian REIT portfolio since IPOin 2014
Fromthe quarter ending 30 June 2021, Knight
Frank and Savills will take responsibility for
approximately half of the property portfolio each.

For details of all properties in the portfolio please see
custodianreit.com/property/portfolio.

23, Current passing rent plus ERV of vacant properties.

The Company invested £11.4minthree
acquisitions during the year described below:

o InDecember 2020 the Company acquired Willow
Court for £7.86m,a 22,545 sq ft office building
onMinns Business Park, one mile west of Oxford
city centre. The property comprises four floors let
to RBS, Dehns, Charles Stanley, Oxentiaand the
Smith Institute with a weighted average unexpired
lease termto first break or expiry of four years and
anaggregate rent of £537k per annum, reflecting
anetinitial yield ('"NIY”") of 6.41%.

o InNovember 2020 the Company acquired
four industrial units on Hilton Business Park,
Derby for £1975m, covering anaggregate
23,250 sq ft. The units are occupied by MP Bio
Science, Shakespeare Pharmaand Jangala
Softplay with a weighted average unexpired term
tofirstbreak or expiry of 2.0 yearsand aggregate
passingrent of £134k per annum, reflectinga NIY
of6.39%

o Duringthe year the Company acquired 0.6 acres
of landinNottingham onwhich it has developed
a 2,163 sq ft drive-through coffee shop with 34
parking spaces, with land and construction
coststotaling £1.60m. The unit was pre-let to
KBeverage Limited (trading as Starbucks)
ona20-year lease with no breaks and five-yearly
upward only market rent reviews with passing rent
of £115k pa, reflectingaNIY of 6.67%

The Company hasalso invested £0.7m of capital
expenditure developing a drive throughrestaurant
(shownopposite) onanexisting retailpark holding
inBurtonupon Trent, pre-let to 10ak Limited (t/a
Starbucks) at anannual rent of £55k for aterm of
20vyearswithabreakinyear 10, whichcommenced
tradinginNovember 2020.

Since the year end the Company has acquiredan
industrial assetinKnowsley for £3.5m.

24. Includes car showrooms, petrol filing stations, children's day nurseries, restaurants, health and fitness units, hotels and healthcare centres.
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Property portfolio risk

Financial Statements

We have managed the property portfolio'sincome expiry profile through successful asset
management activities with only 53% of aggregate income expiring within five years at 31 March
2021(2020:51%). Short-termincome at risk is a relatively low proportion of the property portfolio's
income, with only 31% expiring inthe next three years (2020: 32%) and our experience suggests
that evenin the current uncertain climate, the majority of tenants do not exit at break or expiry.

31March ~ 31March
Aggregate income expiry 2021 2020
O-1years 1% 9%
1-3years 20% 23%
3-5years 22% 19%
5-10 years 34% 37%
10+ years 13% 12%
100% 100%

Lease expiry profile

Rentreview analysis
‘ @ Openmarket:81%
‘ @ RPI:7%
® Fixed:11%
CPI:1%

Income atrisk

»,
~4

@ O-1years:11%

@ 1-3years:20%

® 3-5years:22%
5-10years: 34%
10+years: 13%
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Disposals

Owning theright properties at theright time is
akey element of effective property portfolio
management, which necessarily involves
periodically selling properties to balance the
property portfolio. Custodian REIT isnota
trading company but identifying opportunities
todispose of assets significantly ahead

of valuationor that no longer fit withinthe
Company'sinvestment strategy is important.

The following properties were sold during the year
for an aggregate headline consideration of £4.4m:

o InMay 2020 the Company solda 20,280 sq ft
industrial warehouse in Westerham for £2.8m,
£0.5m (23%) ahead of the 31March 2020
valuation, representing a net initial yield of 4.50%.

o InOctober 2020 the Company sold four high street
retail properties at auctionin Chester, Scarborough,
Bedford andLlandudno foranaggregate £1.6m,in
line withthe mostrecent valuations. The properties
were originally acquired within larger portfoliosin
2014 and 2015 and were either vacant or let on
short-termleases and the disposals reduced the
Company's high street retail sector weighting by
income from 11%t0 10%

Sincethe year end the Company has sold a high
street retail property at auctionin Nottingham for
£0.7m, inline with the most recent valuation.

Mar28 Mar-29 Mar-30 Mar-31

12 months to

Outlook

InMarch 2020, as the country entered the first
lockdown, the pandemic was taking hold. At that
stage amarginal but positive NAV total return

for the year ahead would have been seenasan
exceptional result. 12 months later Custodian

REIT has delivered a positive NAV total return,
demonstrating the resilience of UK commercial real
estate and the power of income to support returns.
[talsounderscores the need tolook atreal estate
investment over thelong term. NAV total return since
IPO sevenyears ago has averaged 6.3% per annum
andas we look forward to a post pandemic world the
Company isinagood position to continue to deliver
positivereturns.

Inordinary times rent collection and asset
management are rightly taken for granted by
shareholders but theimportance of the close
relationships between manager and tenantand

the manager's ability toinfluence the outcome of
negotiations has come to the fore this year. From the
outside, it may appear that property fund managers
have spent the year chasing rent collectionand
worrying about the pandemic. From our perspective
we are largely experiencing business as usual,
managing landlord/tenant relationships and
engaginginnormallevels of activity in terms of new
lettings, extending existing leases, acquiring new
assets and selling assets that we do not believe will
performover the mediumtolong term.

Mar-32 Mar-33 Mar-34 Mar-356 Mar-36 Mar-37

Mar-38 Mar-39 Mar-40 Mar-41 2041+

Throughthe year we have completed 50 separate
asset management transactions, each designed
tokeep the portfolio relevant, to protect value and
tosupport dividends which have always been our
key objectives.

Theimportant consideration for the outlook
forcommercial property is occupier demand.

If cormmercial property remains in use by occupiers,
thenithasabright future. As touched on above,
occupier demandin theindustrialand logistics
sectoris very strong and forecast to remain so,
whichis supporting rental growth. We are seeing
demand fromoccupiers onretail parksandin
prime town centres but onrebased rents. Offices
arelikely to continue tobe an essential feature of
most businesses and we are seeing occupiers
look beyond the pandemic to secure appropriate
space. The overlay onallthis demand willbe ESG.
Asamanager we are committed to achieving

the objectives set outin the ESG Committee
report. We have an ongoing project toimprove the
environmental performance of the portfolio when
properties are under landlord's control and also
whenlooking at the let portfolio. We understand that
ourcommitment to ESG must mirror our tenants'
objectives. Meeting the demands of our tenants will
ensure ongoing performance for shareholders

Richard Shepherd-Cross

forand onbehalf of Custodian Capital Limited
Investment Manager

15June 2021
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Asset management report

66
Many asset

Mmanagement initiatives
currently under way are
expected to come to
fruition over the next

6-12 months

Alex Nix
Assistant Investment Manager

Valuationincreases fromasset
managementinitiatives

2020

Our continued focus onasset management

during the year including rent reviews, new lettings,

lease extensions and the retention of tenants
beyond their contractual break clauses resulted
ina£9.4mvaluationincreaseinthe year.

Inwhat hasbeena challenging year we have
seenthat close collaboration with tenants will
generate asset management opportunities
including lease extensions and re-gears which
has seen the Company maintain its weighted
average unexpired lease termtofirst break
orexpiry ("WAULT") above five years despite
the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic

Property portfoliosummary

2021 2020
Property portfolio value £551.9m £5598
Separate tenancies 265 280
EPRA occupancy rate 91.6% 959%
Assets 159 161
WAULT 5.0 years 53 years
NIY 6.6% 6.8%
Weighted average EPC rating C(63) C (70)

Key asset management initiatives completed
during the year include:

1)

2)

Completinga10-year lease with Life
Technologies at anindustrial unitin Warrington
atanannualrent of £378k, with a tenantonly
break option and open market rent review
inyear five, increasing valuation by £1.6m;

Completinga 20-year lease extension with
Bannatyne Fitness on aleisure schemein
Perth, extending lease expiry to August 2046
andincorporating five-yearly RPI linked rent
reviews, whichincreased valuation by £15m;

1 Warrington

2 Perth
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3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

4 Stoke 7 TeamValley

6 Shrewsbury 9 Kilmarnock

Completing alease extension without

break with DX Networks at alogistics unit

in Nuneaton, with lease expiry moving from
March 2022 to March 2032. The March 2022
rentreview is expected toresultinanincrease
inthe annual £267k passingrent. Thislease
extensionincreased valuation by £1.4m;

Completinganew lease to Nuffield Health
at Stoke for aterm of 20 years without
break, at anannualrent of £300k subject
tofive-yearly CPI-linked rent reviews,
increasing valuation by £0.9m;

Unconditionally exchanging an agreement for
lease withMCC Labelsin Daventry onanew
ten-year lease without break commencing in
Spring 2021 after the current tenant vacates
inDecember 2020, atarentof £295k pa,
whichincreased valuation by £0.8m;

Commencing a letting with Nationwide Building
Society onahigh street retail unitin Shrewsbury
foratermof 10 years without break, atanannual
rental of £100k, increasing valuation by £0.6m;

Completing a five-year reversionary lease
with Worthington Armstrong onanindustrial
unitin Gateshead at anincreased annual rent
of £285k,increasing valuation by £0.4m;

Completinga 10-year lease renewal with
Silgan Closures at anindustrial unitin
Doncaster, with tenant break optionsinyears
three and five atanincreased annual rent

of £400kK, increasing valuation by £0.3m;

Completinga 10-year lease renewal with
abreakinyear five to Royal Mailat an
industrial unitin Kilmarnock, maintaining
the current passing rent of £95k with
anopenmarket rent review in year five,
increasing valuation by £0.3m;
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10)

1)
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12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

16

Completingalease assignment foracar
showroomin Stockport from Benham
Specialist Cars to the stronger covenant
of Williams Motor Company, and rebasing
the annualrent from £740k to £640k

with afixed uplift to £669k in August
2022 increasing valuation by £0.3m;

Completing a five-year lease extension with
DHL onanindustrial unit at Speke, Liverpool,
subjecttoatenant-only break inyear three,
maintaining annual passing rent at £119k
whichincreased valuationby £0.2m;

Varying the lease with Elma Electronics
atanindustrial unitin Bedford toremove
the September 2022 break option,
moving lease expiry out to September
2027,increasing valuation by £0.2m;

Settling an outstanding rent review with Unilin
Distributionat alogistics unitin Manchester,
securing an upliftinannual passing rent from

£220k 10 £254Kk, increasing valuation by £0.2m;

Completing an open market rent review
with Yodelat alogistics unitin Bellshill
securing an uplift from £275k to £310k,
increasing valuation by £0.2m;

Completing lease renewal with Rexelat an
industrial unitin Gateshead ona 10-year
termwithatenant break optioninyear

five and open market rent reviews and
annual passing rentincreasing from £50k
to £55k, increasing valuation by £0.1m;

Completing a five-year lease extension

with Erskine Murray at anoffice building in
Leicester, extending the lease expiry from
December 2020 to December 2025 atan
increased annual rental of £72.5k (previously
£66.5k) whichincreased valuation by £0.1m;

Completinga deed of variation with Urban
Outfitters in Southampton to push the October
2021tenant only break optionback to April
2024,increasing the term certainto 3.5

years, whichincreased valuation by £0.1m;

Settling an openmarket rent review with
Synergy Health at anindustrial unitin Sheffield,
increasing the annualrent from £142k to
£158k whichincreased valuation by £0.1m;

Completing a five-year lease extension
withHomebase at Leighton Buzzard,
maintaining annual passing rent of £341k and
moving lease expiry from December 2023
102028, increasing valuation by £0.1m;

Asset management report continued

10 Stockport 15 Gateshead

11 Speke 16 Leicester

12 Bedford 17 Southampton

13 TraffordPark 18 Sheffield

14 Bellshill 19 LeightonBuzzard
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20 Evesham

21 Chester 24 Portsmouth

22 Plymouth 25 Nottingham

23 Lincoln 26 Portsmouth

20) Exchanginganagreementforlease with
Just for Pets on aretail warehouse unit
inEvesham for a term of 10 years with
abreakinyear six, atanannual rent of
£95k, with noimpact on valuation;

21) Completingadeed of variation toremove
the September 2021 break option with
Felldale Group at aretail unitin Chester,
extending the lease expiry to September
2026 withnoimpact on valuation;

22) Completingalease assignment fromJB
Global to Oak Furniture Land Group ata
retailwarehouse unitin Plymouth, rebasing
the passingrent from £250k to £150k and

including mutual break optionsinyears two

and four, with noimpact on valuation;

23) Unconditionally exchanging anagreement

forlease with MKM in Lincolnonanew

10-year reversionary lease ona trade counter

unit, extending expiry from June 2022 to
June 2032 without break and maintaining

annual passingrent at £192k with 12 months'

rent free, with no impact on valuation;

24) Re-gearing with The Worksin Portsmouth

which removed atenant only break optionin
QOctober 2021, extending the term certainto
October 2026, with noimpact onvaluation;

25) Completing alease renewal with The White
Company in Nottingham for a five-year lease

with 2.5 year tenant only break optionata

reduced annual rent of £65k, with the property
disposed of since the year end at valuation;

26) Completing ashort-term turnover-based
lease with mutual breaks to retain Game
in Portsmouth following expiry of its
existing lease whilst we re-market the
premises, with noimpact on valuation;
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Asset management report continued

27 Weymouth 28 Burton upon Trent

29 Perth

30 Guildford 31 Carlisle

27) Completing afive-yearlease renewal with
Sports Direct onaretail parkin Weymouth
atarebasedannual rent of £90K (previously
£118Kk), subject toa 5% turnover top-up clause
and featuring rolling mutual break options
after 36 months, withnoimpact on valuation;

28) Commencing theletting of anewly developed
drive-through coffee restaurant in Burton
upon Trentletto10ak (t/a Starbucks) on
a20-year lease subject toatenant break
optioninyear 10,atanannualrent of £55k
with five-yearly RPI-inked rent reviews;

29) Exchanginganagreement forlease with
TimHortons Fast Food Restaurantsona
drive-through restaurantin Perth (formerly a
Frankie & Benny's) at an annual rent of £90k
foratermof15years, withatenant only break
optioninyear 10, withnoimpact on valuation;

30) Completingafive-year lease renewal with
Reiss onahigh street retail unit in Guildford
atanannual rent of £170k, whichreduced
Reiss footprint to allow access tothe
unused upper floors for potential residential
conversion, withnoimpact on valuation;

31) Completingafive-year lease to Oak Furniture
Land Groupin Carlisle with annual tenant
break options andlandlord break options
inyearstwoandfour,at anannual rent of
£100k, withnoimpact onvaluation.

Tenant business failures have contributed to
occupancy levels decreasing to 916% from
95.9% at 31March 2020, but letting activity
isincreasing across most sectors. We have
astrong pipeline of potentialnew tenants
and since the year end have completed:

o Anewfiveyearlettingto Green Retreats ata
recently refurbished industrial unitin Farnborough
withannual rent of £185k;

o Anewl0yearlettingtoJustfor Pets at aretall
warehouse unitin Eveshamwith an annual rent
of £95k;

o Anew 10 year letting to Dehns on the ground floor
suite of an office building in Oxford withan annual
rent of £81k;and

o Anew10 year letting to Spa Medica on the ground
floor suite of anoffice building in Leicester withan
annual rent of £80Kk.
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Althoughthese positive asset management outcomes have been tempered by the impact of the following business failures, which have resulted in
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£1.346k (3.3% of rent roll) of lost annual contractual rent since 31March 2020, in most cases we have subsequently seen positive letting activity:

Lostannual
contractual
rent Activity following
Location Tenant Sector £000 Event business failure
Comprehensive building
West refurbishment underway, with
Bromwich Office Team Industrial 280 Tenant vacated andin liquidation unitbeingremarketed
Agreement forlease with
Granthamand Retail CVA—tenantremainsin occupation new tenant exchanged for
Evesham Poundstretcher warehouse 221 rent free whilst units are remarketed Eveshamsite
CVA-rentreduced to 25%in 2020 Leaseassignedto AGO Hotels
Portishead Travelodge Hotel 167 and 70%in 2021 (t/a/Ibis) atabove the CVArent
Leicesterand Watfordsites
CVA—baserentreducedbyan under offer to national drive-
Leicester, Watford average of 66% of passing rent plus through chains. Crewe unitis
and Crewe PizzaHut Restaurant 155 an 8% of turnover top-up beingmarketed
Pre-pack Administration— easesassignedtonew Oak
Carlisleand JBGlobal (t/aOak Retall Oak Furniture Landnow occupying Furniture Land trading company
Plymouth Furniture Land) warehouse 140 under licence atalowerrent onrebasedrents
The Restaurant CVA-rentreduced to 0% for 12 Now letto TimHortons
Perth Group Restaurant 100 months before closure Restaurants
CVA-rentreduced by 25% for three Tenantremainsin
Lincoln TotalFitness Other 95 years occupationat CVArent
Edinburgh Woollen High street Tenant vacatedandin Unitvacantandbeing marketed
Shrewsbury Mill retail 93 Administration
Gateshead Human Office Industrial 32 Tenantinliquidation Unitvacantandbeing marketed
High street Leaseassignedto Ask Italian
Shrewsbury Azzuri retail 24 Pre-pack Administration Restaurant atareducedrent
Tenantremainsinoccupation
Torquay Laslguanas Restaurant 20 In Administration underlicence atalowerrent
High street
Shrewsbury Paperchase retail 19 Tenantin Administration Unitvacantandbeing marketed
1,346

Inaggregate these lettingsincreased occupancy
by 1.0%. We expect occupancy levels acrossthe
portfolio to continue to recover over the next 3-6
months as we complete more new lettings, unless
there were to be further significant tenant failures

Outlook
Looking forward, we maintain a positive outlook with
many of the asset management initiatives currently

under way expected to come to fruition over the next
6-12 months which should see new tenants secured,
leases extended and new investment into existing
assetsimproving their environmental credentials and
realising their full potential

Alex Nix

AssistantInvestment Manager

forand onbehalf of Custodian Capital Limited
Investment Manager

15June 2021
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ESG Committee report

00

The Board recognises
that its decisions have
an impact on the
environment, people
and communities

Hazel Adam
Chair of the ESG Committee

ESG achievements

EPRA Sustainability

The Company’s 2020 Annual Reportreceived an
EPRA Sustainability Reporting most improved’
award

GRESB

Made our first Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (‘GRESB") submissionin 2020, which
provided valuable insight into the Company’s
sustainability performance

¢‘v®
G R E S B

KPls

Set target environmental KPIs to measure its
success towards achieving its environmental
objectives

Datamanagement

Implemented a comprehensive
environmental data management service
using adedicated software system that
collects, verifies, storesand reports onthe
key carbonand ESG performance metrics

TCFD

Undertook its firstin-depth review

of climate-related risks and opportunities
tobegintoaligndisclosuresto the
recommendations of the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures

ESG Committee report

The ESG Committee (‘the Committee’) was
constituted on1April 2021 Its key responsibilities
are:

o Tomonitorandreport onthe Company's
performance against its environmental
KPIsandensure the Investment Manager
ismanaging its property portfolio inline with
the ESG policy;

o Toensurethe Company complies with
itsexternal reporting requirements and
obligations on ESG matters such as GRESB,
EPRA, TCFD,and SECR and adopts sector
pest practice where appropriate;

o Joassess,atleastannually the feesand
scope of engagement of the Company's
environmental consultants;and

o Toassesswhether the Companyis
obtaining a suitable level of social outcomes
forits tenants, other stakeholders and the
communitiesinwhich it operates.

The Company is committed to delivering

its strategic objectivesinan ethical and
responsible manner and meeting its corporate
responsibilities towards society, human
rights and the environment. The Board
acknowledgesits responsibility to society

is broader than simply generating financial
returns for shareholders. The Company's
approach to ESG mattersaddresses the
importance of these issuesinthe day-to-day
running of the business, as detailed below.



StrategicReport /  Covernance /

Financial Statements

ESG policy

Environmental

We want our properties to minimise their

impact onthelocaland wider environment.

The Investment Manager carefully considers

the environmental performance of our properties,
both before we acquire them, as well as during
our period of management. Sites are visitedon a
regular basis by the Investment Manager and any
obvious environmentalissues are reported.

2
sl

Social

Custodian REIT strives to manage and develop
buildings which are comfortable, safe and
high-quality spaces. As such, our aimis that

the safety and well-being of occupants of our
buildingsis maximised. We haveimplemented
aportfolioapproach to well-being which
encourages engagement withtenants, ensures
maximum building safety and optimises comfort
and quality of occupancy.

Governance

High standards of corporate governance
anddisclosure are essential to ensuring the
effective operation of the Company and instilling
confidence amongst our stakeholders. We aimto
continuallyimprove our levels of governance and
disclosure toachieve industry best practice.

The Committee encourages the Investment
Managertoactresponsiblyinthe areasitcan
influence as alandlord, for example by working
withtenants toimprove the environmental
performance of the Company’s properties and
minimise theirimpact on climate change. The
Committee believes that following this strategy will
ultimately be to the benefit of shareholders through
enhancedrentandassetvalues.

The Company’s environmental policy commits the
Company to:

« Seektoreduce pollutionand comply withall
relevant environmental legislation;

+ Gatherandanalyse data on the environmental
performance of our properties;and

- Settargetsfor the environmental performance
of our properties and monitor achievementsasa
commitment to continuous improvement.

Environmental key

performanceindicators
Duringthe year with the assistance of Carbon
Intelligence, specialist environmental consultants,
the Company set targetenvironmentalkey
performanceindicators (“KPIs”) to provide a
strategic way tomeasure its success towards
achievingits environmental objectivesandensure
the Investment Manager isembeddingkey ESG
principles. These environmental KPIs cover our
mainareas of environmentalimpactincluding
energy efficiency, greenhouse emissions, water,
waste and tenantengagement.

These KPIs helpthe Company to monitor our

ESG progressanddirectly support climate risk
mitigation and capture some ESG opportunities
fromthe transitiontoalow-carboneconomy. As
we progress our climate-relatedrisk identification
and management, we aimtoidentify andimplement
further climate-related metrics that can more
clearly define theimpact of climate-relatedrisks
and opportunities onour business. ESGreporting
frameworks, including GRESB, require businesses
todisclose the KPIs which contribute towards
benchmark scoringand potentially influence
investor decisions.

The Company’s qualitative and quantitative
environmentaltargets, measured viathe KPIs,
cover four ‘boundaries’ and are set out opposite.

Boundary

KPI

Whole portfolio boundary

» Reduce total portfolio absolute emissions
by 30% by 2025

» AllI'D’'EPCratings to be removed orimproved
by 2027, all‘'E’ EPC ratings to be removed
orimproved by 2025andall‘F’and ‘G’ EPC
ratings to be removed or improved by
31March2022

« Reduce absolute energy consumption of
the property portfolio by 15% againsta2019
baseline by 2025

Landlord controlled boundary

« Switchalllandlord-controlled sites
to 100% renewables by 2025

- Switchalllandlord-controlled sites to green
gasby 2025

« InstallEV charging points across 100% of the
Company’s retail warehouse assets by 2025
andinvestigate onsite renewables onone
assetby 2025

« Zerowaste tolandfill from landlord-controlled
waste by 2022

» Reduce landlord-controlled water
consumption by 50% by 2025

Tenant boundary

» Engagewith occupiersduringlease
negotiations toincorporate sustainability
clausesintonew leases

» Engage withtenants on quarterly basis
onESGissues

Development boundary

» Achieve EPRA Gold Standard for the year
ended 31March 2021

» Reportto TCFD by 2021

+ Incorporate ESGfactorsintoallinvestment
duediligence undertaken

These KPIs were formulated during the yearended 31 March 2021. The Company intends toreporton
progressagainst each measurein subsequent financial years.

Tohelpthisassessment of progress against KPIs a central datamanagement system, hosted by the
Company's environment consultants, has been established to provide arobust data collationand

validation process. This datamanagement systemis being used toidentify tenantengagementand asset
optimisation opportunities and facilitates the communication of environmental performance data to various

stakeholders.
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Investment decisions

Investment decisions will play a key role in
achieving the Company's environmental
KPls. The Company undertakes an
environmental assessment onvacated
assets and during the acquisition due
diligence process, rating assets or tenants
against anumber of ESG factors which form
part of the Investment Committee decision
making process. This process also helps the
Investment Manager evaluate the potential
environmental risks and opportunities
associated withanasset and theimpact
ontheachievement of the KPIs.

During the year the Company amendediits
procurement policy for property services
toinclude an assessment of new suppliers
on their specification and use of sustainable
andenergy efficient materials, systems,
equipment, onsite operating practices and
performance evaluation/incentives putin
place for direct external suppliers and/or
service providers to employ sustainable
processes in day-to-day work.

ESG Committee report continued

Current initiatives

Toachieve the Company’'s environmental objectives and targets,
the Investment Manager seeks to achieve the folowing initiatives:

Energy consumption and management
o Complywithallapplicable, relevant

energy-relatedlegislationand other requirements;

o Monitor energy consumption across our
properties and tenant consumption, where
possible;

» Undertake thorough environmental due diligence
including obtainingan EPC for allnew property
acquisitions;

e |dentify and, where possible, upgrade high
energy-consuming properties within our property
portfolio assets to achieve higher energy
efficiency levels andimproved EPC ratings;

o Review our energy objectives andtargets on
anannual basis;

o Promote energy efficiency and management
toour tenants;and

» Where possible, buildingreen lease® clauses
intoour tenant leases.

Building materials

* Whenwehave the opportunity to develop new
property or refurbish current assets, we commit
toreviewing building materials whichhave a
lower environmentalimpact and to select these
materials, if appropriate; and

o Select greener building materials, inline with our
vision to increase the sustainability certifications
of our property portfolio.

GHG emissions and management

o Quantify our Scope 1and 2 (landlord controlled)
emissions onanannual basisinline with reporting
requirements;

o Gather tenant energy consumptiondata, where
possible, to guantify our properties emissions;

o Comply with,and make representationsto,
industry standard ESG frameworks including
the EPRA Annual Sustainability Report and
GRESB;and

o Continuetoexpandour carbonreportinginline

withindustry expectations andrelevant legislation.

Further information on our GHG emissions
is set out within our Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Report (SECR) inthe Directors’ report.

25. A'greenlease incorporates clauses where the owner and
occupier undertake specific responsibilities/obligations regarding
the sustainable operation/occupation of a property, for example:
energy efficiency measures, waste reduction/ management and
water efficiency.

Waste management

* Monitor waste levels across our properties and
monitor tenant consumption, where possible;

o Implementlandfill diversion waste streams such
asrecyclinginour properties, where possible; and

o Promote waste management to our tenants

Water consumption and management

o Monitor water consumption across our properties
and monitor tenant consumption, where possible;

o |dentify and implement water reduction
technologies and opportunities within our
property portfolio, where possible;and

» Promote water management to our tenants.

Climate change adaptation
andresilience

o Throughour risk management processes, identify
climate-relatedrisks, both physical and financial;

o Performenvironmental risk assessments of our
property portfolio onan ongoing basis; and

o Designmitigation and management strategies for
climate and environmentalrisks.

Biodiversity

In the circumstances where we are developing new
assets, the biodiversity of the development area will
be considered and maintained to the highest level
possible.

Assetlevel safety, healthand well-being
We wishto manage and develop buildings which
are comfortable, safe and high-quality spaces.
Assuch,our aimis that the safety and well-being

of the occupants of our buildings is maximised

We willimplement a property portfolio approach

to well-being whichencourages engagement with
tenants, ensures maximum building safety and
optimises the comfort and quality of occupancy.
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Stakeholder engagement

We engage regularly with the followinginternaland
external stakeholders on environmentaland social
matters:

¢ Board-the Board meetsatleast quarterly
and monitors ESG performance and progress
towards our objectives;

Investment Manager —as part of the Investment
Manager's training and staff roles and
responsibilities, ESG progressis discussed and
embedded across the work it does;

Managing agents—wereceive quarterly reports
onourasset performance and engage directly
on property portfolio optimisation; and

Tenants—we attempt to engage with tenants
onaquarterly basis both tounderstand
consumption trends and data and understand
where we canupgrade and optimise buildings
for tenant well-being and environmentalimpact
reductions.

Tomonitor energy consumption across the
property portfolio, as wellasidentify opportunities
tomake energy reductions, the Company has
engaged with Carbon Intelligence to provide
strategic advice onthe process. This collaboration
promotes the ethos of investing responsibly and
has ensured statutory compliance with the Energy
Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) Regulations
2014 and The Companies (Director'sreport) and
Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon
Report) Regulations 2018, and has facilitated
inclusion of EPRA Sustainability Best Practice
Recommendationsin the Annual Report.

Case study:
West Bromwich refurbishment

Area

57432 sq ft

1202 SIUNCO0Y PUB LIoday fenuly 91d 1134 uelpoisn)

As part of a comprehensive refurbishment of Units 1-7 Hawthorms
Business Park, West Bromwich, significant investment is bbeing made
toimprove the ESG credentials of the asset. This additionalinvestment
will significantly reduce the use of carbbon for operation when assessed
against competing buildings in the local market.

Oncompletion the refurbished property willbe served by six EV charging points to promote and
support the use of electric vehicles. These installations support all forms of electric vehicles currently
onthemarketand will be an attractive proposition to any future tenant

Inaddition Custodian REIT is making aninvestment of circa £85k to provide solar photovoltaic (PV)
coveragetoover 700 sgm of theroof area. Thisrenewable energy is anticipated to offset circa 116
tonnes of carbonin Year 1, meaning the anticipated payback oninvestment is 3.5 years. As wellas aiding
tenantsin their reduction of carbon usage the Company is able to offer future tenants areductionin their
utility costs by selling generated energy directly to the tenant rather than directly to the central network.
The panels are self-cleaning and offer a 20-year guarantee.

Afurther investment of circa £50k is being made to install air source heat pumps to provide heating
and hot water. This installation will see a saving of nearly £2k a year in running costs and areductionin
carbonuse of around 12k kg a year incomparison to traditional gas boilers. As part of this investment
new energy efficient radiators are also being installed. Warehouse and office lighting is being replaced
withnew LED fittings including passive infrared sensors to reduce operational use.

Pre-refurbishment, the EPC rating for the property was C-(69) and it is projected that a high B will be
achieved oncompletion of the refurbishment

[tisanticipated that the ERV of the property on completion of the works willincrease from £280k pa
(£4.80 per sq ft) tocirca £350k pa (£6.00 per sq ft). Once re-let itis estimated that the upliftin property
valuation willbe wellin excess of the capital outlay for refurbishment.

23
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ESG Committee report continued

EPCratings

During the year the Company has updated EPCs
at B3 units across 43 properties covering 983k sq
ft for properties where existing EPCs had expired
orwhere works hadbeen completed. For updated
EPCs, there was anaggregate decrease inrating
of 37 ‘energy performance asset rating points.
Some of the properties showing animprovement
are detailed below:

o Burtonupon Trent—anew Starbucks drive
throughrestaurant was built on the site of a former
tool hire centre, improving the EPC score from
D(99)toB(43)

o Daventry—asignificant refurbishment of this
industrial property was carried out during the year,
improving the EPC score from C(52) to B(46)

o Glasgow West George Street —arefurbishment
of these offices improved the EPC score from
E(62) toB(34)

The Company's weighted average EPC scoreis
ilustratedin the chart on the right:

Climate-related risks and opportunities
Climate change poses a number of physical

risksto our property portfolio, for example those
causedby the increased frequency and severity

of extreme weather events. The Committee also
recognises there are anumber of transition-related
risks, including economic, technology or regulatory
challenges related to moving to a greener economy,
which it needs to consider. But climate change also
provides opportunities toinvest in alternative asset
classes or to provide tenants with additional services

The Company has commenced work toidentify
and understand our climate-relatedrisks and
opportunities alongside our work on our wider
ESG ambitions and metrics. Below we have
outlined our first year of disclosures aligned to
the recommendations of Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures ('TCFD’). We are
working together with our sustainability partner,
Carbon Inteligence, to continue to refine our
TCFD programme over the next financial year.

Governance

TheBoardis ultimately responsible to stakeholders
for the Company's activities and for oversight of our
climate-relatedrisks and opportunities. Specifically,
the ESG Committeeis the Board-level governance
body responsible for reviewing our identified climate-
relatedrisks alongside our ESG strategy.

Thelnvestment Manager maintains the Company's
risk management framework andrisk register, which
means our ESG objectives are embedded into the
way the Company conducts and manages the
business andthe property portfolio day to day.

Risk management

Thisyear, the Company conducted arisk
identification and materiality assessment to
determine our climate-relatedimpacts, identifying
the following climate-related risks and opportunities
asmaterial to the business

26. One EPC letter represents 25 energy performance
asset rating points.

Weighted average EPC ratings
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Climate-relatedrisks:

Financial Statements

Climate-related opportunities:

Physicalrisks
o Assetdamage from stormsand flooding

o (lobaltemperatureincreases reducing the
appeal of less energy-efficient assets

« Insufficient electricity supply to maintain
tenant operations due toinadequate

e Exposuretonew asset classes for
potentialinvestment

» Shiftingtenant preferences may
create new demand for new or existing
products/services

infrastructure o Opportunities to expand low-carbon
pbuildings and low-carbon landlord services
« Shifting tenant preferences to diversify
sectorsand asset types
Transitionrisks

* Reducedattractiveness of the portfolio
duetochanging tenant preferences

¢ Changinginsurance products, pricing
and availability

o Investor divestment or activism due to
changing ESG expectations

o Sector stigmatisation due to high emissions

o Unsuccessfulinvestmentin new technology

o Reducing emissions footprint of buildings
for tenants

Toaccount for the long-term nature of climate
change three time horizons were used within
the assessment:

o Short-term (0-3years);
o Medium-term (3-12 years);and
o Long-term (12-20 years).

This period differs from the longer-term viability
assessment of three years, as the outputs of
our climate-related materiality assessment will
be reviewed and built upon over timein order
to effectively embed identified risks into our risk
management framework.

Strategy

Inline with the TCFD recommendations, the

next phase of implementing TCFD willbe to
conduct climate scenario analysis, toimprove our
understanding of the specificimpacts of climate
change on the Company. Scenario analysis wil
increase our understanding of our business and

portfolio resilience under different climate scenarios

including bestand worst-case scenarios. This will

ensure we are able to comprehensively assess and
build upon the existing risk management processes

and controls to further mitigate our climate risks.

Approval
Thisreport was approved by the Committee
andsignedonitsbehalf by:

Hazel Adam
Chair of the ESG Committee
15June 2021
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Financial review

00

The Company’s business
model has remained
resilient during the year
and our lenders remain
supportive of our
ambition for continued

erowth

Ed Moore
Finance Director

The Company has facedits most challenging year
since IPOIn 2014 due to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic onrent collectionrates, occupancy

and property portfolio valuations but its financial
performance has beenrobust, allowing dividends
of 5.0p per share to be declared for the year, fully
covered by net cashreceipts and 112.7% covered by
EPRAearnings

Asummary of the Company's financial performance
for the year is shown opposite.

The Company'srent rollhas decreased by 5.0%
from £40,749Kk at 31March 2020 to £38,692k at
31March2021asillustrated below, which resulted
inIFRSrevenue decreasing by 3.2% from £40,903k
t0£39,578k

Asillustrated opposite, this decrease in contractual
rentwas due to tenants exiting at contractual lease
break or expiry (2.6%) and cessation of rents through
Company Voluntary Arrangements (‘CVAs') and
Administrations (3.2%), partially offset by net property
acquisitions (0.8%). Helpfully, rentalincreasesin the
industrial sector offset rental decreases seenin other
sectors, demonstrating the robust nature of the
Company's diverse property portfolio

EPRA earnings per share decreased to 5.6p (2020:
7.0p) due primarily to this decrease in revenue,
af£27mincreaseinthe doubtful debt provision
reflecting our prudent assumptionsregarding the
recovery of overdue and deferred contractual rents,
£0.6mofirrecoverable debts due to tenant failure
andthe concessionof £0.25m of contractual rent
to support tenants most severely impacted by
governmentrestrictions.

Financial summary

Yearended 31 Yearended31

Mar 2021 Mar2020
Financial summary £000 £000
Revenue 39,578 40903
Expenses and net finance costs (15,904) (12,230)
EPRA profits 23,674 28673
Netloss oninvestment property (19,925) (26,550)
Profitbefore tax 3,749 2123
EPRAEPS (p) 5.6 70
Dividend cover 12.7% 104.4%
OCRexcluding direct property costs 1.12% 112%
Borrowings
Netgearing 24.9% 224%
Weighted average debt maturity 7.4years 78years
Weighted average cost of debt 3.0% 30%
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Dividends

The Board acknowledges the importance of income
for shareholders and during the year its objective
wastopay dividends onasustainable basisata

rate which was fully covered by net rental receipts
and does not inhibit the flexibility of the Company's
investment strategy.

The Company paid dividends totalling 4.9125p per
share during the year, comprising the fourthinterim
dividend of 16625p per share relating to the year
ended 31 March 2020 and interim dividends of
0.95p,105pand1.25p per share relating to the year
ended 31March 2021

The Company paid a fourthinterim dividend of 1.25p
per share for the quarter ended 31 March 20210on
28May 2021 totaling £5.3m,and has approved a
fifthinterim dividend per share of 0.5p totaling £21m
resulting ina total dividend relating to the year of 5.0p
per share (2020:6.65p), totaling £21.0m (2020:
£275m). Dividends relating to the year ended 31
March 2021 were 112.7% covered by net recurring
income of £23.7m, as calculated in Note 21.

Costcontrol

Despite the operational disruption caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic, increasingly onerous
compliance requirements and additional
expenditure in ensuring the Company’s
environmentalimpact is minimised, the
Investment Manager's focus on cost control
and the Company's competitive management
fee structure meant that OCR (excluding direct
property costs) was maintained at 112% for the
year. Although governance related expenditure
is likely to continue to increase we believe the
economies of scale provided by the Company's
relatively fixed cost base and fee structure will
mean that further growth will allow ongoing
charges to be kept proportionately low.

Key performance indicators
The Boardreviews the Company's quarterly
performance againstanumber of key measures:

o NAV per share total return —reflects both the
NAV growth of the Company and dividends
payable to shareholders. The Boardregards this
asthe best overallmeasure of value delivered
toshareholders. The Board assesses NAV per
share total return over various time periods and
compares the Company'sreturns to those of
its peer group of listed, closed-ended property
investment funds;

o NAV per share, share price and market
capitalisation—reflect various measures of
shareholder value ata pointintime;

o Share price totalreturn—reflects the movement
inshare price and dividends payable to
shareholders;

o EPSandEPRAEPS —reflect the Company’s
ability to generate recurring earnings fromthe
property portfolio which underpin dividends;

Financial Statements
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Dividends per share and dividend cover—to
provide an attractive, sustainable level of income
toshareholders, fully covered from net rental
income. The Boardreviews target dividends in
conjunction with detailed financial forecasts to
ensure that target dividends are being met and
aresustainable;

Target dividend per share —an expectation of the
Company'sability to deliver anincome stream to
shareholders for the forthcoming year;

Premium or discount of the share price to

NAV —the Board closely monitors the premium
ordiscount of the share price to the NAV and
believes akey driver of thisis the Company's
long-terminvestment performance. However,
there can be short-term volatility in the premium
ordiscount and the Board therefore seeks imited
authority at each AGM toissue or buy back
shareswithaview to trying tomanage

this volatility;

Net gearing—measures the Company's
pborrowings as a proportion of itsinvestment
property, balancing the additional returns available
from utilising debt with the need to effectively
managerisk;

OCR-measures the annual running costs of
the Company andindicates the Board's ability to
operate the Company efficiently, keeping costs
low to maximise earnings from which to pay fully
covereddividends;

EPRAvacancy rate —the Boardreviews the level
of property voids within the Company’'s property
portfolio onaquarterly basis and compares thisto
its peer group average; and

« Weighted average EPC rating —measures
the overallenvironmental performance of the
Company's property portfolio.

The Board considers the key performance
measures over various time periods and against
similar funds. Arecord of these measures
isdisclosed in the Financial highlights and
performance summary, the Chairman's statement
and the Investment Manager's report
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Financial review continued

EPRA performance measures
EPRABest Practice Recommendations have
beendisclosed to facilitate comparison with the
Company's peers through consistent reporting of
key realestate specific performance measures.

« EPRAEPS-akeymeasure of the Company's
underlying operating results and anindication of
the extent to which current dividend payments are
supported by eamings;

o EPRANAV per share metrics —make adjustments
tothe NAV per the IFRS financial staterments
to provide stakeholders with the most relevant
information on the fair value of the assets and
liabilities of areal estate investrent company,
under different scenarios;

o EPRANet Tangible Assets —assumes that
entitiesbuy and sellassets, thereby crystallising
certainlevels of unavoidable deferred tax;

» EPRANetReinstatement Value —assumes
that entities hold assets and aims torepresent
the value required to rebuild the entity

EPRANet Tangible Assets —assumes that
entitiesbuy and sellassets, thereby crystallising
certainlevels of unavoidable deferred tax

EPRANIY and topped up NIY-alternative
measures of property portfolio valuation based
oncash passingrents at the reporting date and
once lease incentive periods have expired, net
of ongoing property costs;

o EPRAccostratios—alternative measures of
ongoing charges based on expenses, excluding
operating expenses of rental property recharged
totenants, butincludingincreases in the doubtful
debt provision, compared to gross rentalincome;

o EPRAcapital expenditure —capital expenditure
incurred on the Company's property portfolio
during the year;

o EPRAlike-for-like rental growth—ameasure of
rental growth of the property portfolio by sector,
excluding acquisitions and disposals; and

o EPRASustainability Best Practice
Recommendations —environmental
performance measures focusing on emissions
and resource consumption which create
transparency to potentialinvestors by enabling
acomparisonagainst peers and set a direction
towards improving the integration of ESGinto
the management of the Company’'s property
portfolio.

Debt financing

Since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic we

have maintained a regular dialogue with our

lenders, proactively reporting onrent collectionand
discussingindividual asset performance on atimely
basis. These positive actions have reinforced the
excellent relationships we have built withour lenders.

The Company operates witha conservative level
of net gearing, with target borrowings over the
medium termof 25% of the aggregate market
value of all properties at the time of drawdown.

The Company's net gearingincreased from 22.4%
LTVlastyearto24.9%at the year enddue to £11.4m
of acquisitions made during the year and a £19.6m
decreaseinthe property portfolio valuation.

The Company has the following facilities available:

o A£35mrevolving credit facility (‘RCF") with Lioyds
Bank plc (‘Lloyds”) withinterest of between 1.5%
and 1.8% above three-month LIBOR, determined
by reference to the prevailing LTV ratio of a
discrete security pool of assets, and expiring on 17
September 2022. The RCF limit canbe increased
to £50m with Lloyds consent;

o A£20m termloan facility with Scottish Widows
Limited ('SWIP") repayable in August 2025, with
fixed annualinterest of 3.935%;

o Ag45mtermloan facility with SWIP repayable in
June 2028, with fixed annualinterest of 2.987%;
and

o AL50mtermloan facility with Aviva Real Estate
Investors (‘Aviva’) comprising:
» A£35mtrancherepayable on6 April 2032,
with fixed annualinterest of 3.02%; and
» AgL15mtrancherepayable on 3November
2032 with fixed annualinterest of 3.26%.

Eachfacility has a discrete security pool, comprising
anumber of the Company'sindividual properties,
over which the relevantlender has security and the
following covenants:

e Themaximum LTV of each discrete security pool
isbetween 45% and 50%, withan overarching
covenant on the Company's property portfolio of
amaximum35% LTV;and

o Historicalinterest cover, requiring net rental
receipts from each discrete security pool, over the
preceding three months, to exceed 250% of the
facllity's quarterly interest liability.

The Company has £165.0m (30% of the property
portfolio) of unencumbered assets which could be
chargedtothe security poolstoenhancethe LTV
ontheindividual loans. During the year the Company
charged five unencumbered properties valued
at£211mto add additional headroomto certain
facilities.

In the expectation thatinterest cover covenants
onsome individualloans could have come under
short-term pressure due to COVID-19 pandemic
restrictions, the Company obtained waivers of
interest cover covenants until31March 2021, These
waivers were not utilised and the Company complied
with allloan covenants during the year.

The weighted average cost of the Company's
agreed debt facilities at 31March 2021 was 3.0%
(2020: 3.0%) witha Weighted Average Maturity
("WAM") of 74 years (2020: 7.8 years) and 82%
(2020: 77%) of the Company's drawn debt facllities
are now at fixed rates. This high proportion of fixed
rate debt significantly mitigates long-terminterest
rate risk for the Company and provides shareholders
with abeneficialmargin between the fixed cost of
debt andincome returns from the property portfolio.

LIBOR, the London Inter Bank Offer Rate interest
rate benchmark used for setting the interest rate
chargedonthe Company's RCF facllity, is expected
tobe discontinued after the end of 2021, Inits place,
areplacement risk free'rate, the Sterling Overnight
Index Average (‘SONIA") willgenerally be used. We
are working with Lloyds to prepare for asmooth
transitionin preparation for the cessation of LIBOR
and donot expect the transition to have a material
impact on theinterest rate on the RCF. We expect
to complete this process during the year ending 31
March2022.

Outlook

The Company'sbusiness modelhas remained
resilient during the year. Although we took
pre-emptive action at the beginning of the pandemic
toarrange debt covenant waivers, these waivers
were not utilised andthe Company'slenders remain
supportive of our ambition for continued growth. We
have a scalable cost structure and flexible capital
structure to be on the front foot when opportunities
presentthemselves toraise new equity and exploit
acquisition opportunities.

EdMoore

Finance Director

forand onbehalf of Custodian Capital Limited
Investment Manager

15June 2021
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00

EPRA Best Practice
Recommendations have
been disclosed to facilitate
comparison with the
Company’s peers through
consistent reporting of
key real estate specific
performance measures

Further information canbe foundin our
environmental disclosures.

Debt expiry profile

50

45

40 RCF 1.5-1.8% +
LIBOR

35
30
25
20
15
10

£m

2021 2022

2021 2020 Change
EPRAEPS (p) 5.6 70 (20.0%)
EPRANet Tangible Assets (‘N TA") per share (p) 97.6 1016 (3.9%)
EPRAetinitialyield ('NIY”) 6.0% 6.2% (0.2%)
EPRA 'toppedup NIY 6.4% 6.6% (0.2%)
EPRAvacancyrate 8.4% 41% 4.3%
EPRA costratio (including direct vacancy costs) 26.1% 16.6% 95%
EPRA cost ratio (excluding direct vacancy costs) 23.9% 14.5% 94%
EPRA capital expenditure (£m) 14.5 275 (47.3%)
EPRA like-for-like rental growth (£m) 375 400 6.3%)

RCF (extended)

2023

SWIP
3.9% fixed

2024 2025 2026 2027

2028

Aviva
3.02-3.26%
fixed

SWIP
3.0% fixed

2029

2030

2031

2032
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Property portfolio

Our locations

A diverse portfolio
consisting of
properties let to
institutional-grade

tenants throughout
the UK

PropertyIncome

([ <£100k
o £101-£350k
® o




StrategicReport /  CGovernance  / Financial Statements

Our sectors

Industrial

Read more about this
portfolio sectoron
page 32

Read more about this
portfolio sectoron
page 48

Read more about this
portfoliosectoron
page 62

Read more about this
portfoliosectoron
page44

Retail warehouse

Read more about this
portfolio sectoron
page56

Property portfolioincome %

Industrial

414%

Retail warehouse Retail

209% 9.7%
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Property portfolio continued

Industrial
at a glance

Key metrics

2021value Portfolio weighting

byincome
£27()2m A
2020: £2573m O

2020: 40%

Annualrentalincome

Occupancy

£16.2m 09 0%

2020: £16./m 5

2020 £167 O
2020:96.8%

Number of properties

09

2020: 69

Teleperformance
Ashby

Area

71098 sq ft
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H&M
Winsford

Area

105,757 sq ft

Menzies Distribution
Various

Area

286405 sq ft

Top 10 tenants by location

Menzies Distribution Restore
Various 3.8% Salford 1.1%
H&M Daher Aerospace
Winsford 1.5% Hilton 0.9%
JTF Wholesale Revlon International
Warrington 1.4% Stone 0.9%
Teleperformance Next
Ashby-de-la-Zouch 1.3% Eurocentral 0.9%
ATL Transport Life Technologies
Burtonupon Trent 1.2% Warrington 0.9%
JTF Wholesale
Warrington
Area

112,544 sq ft
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Property portfolio continued

Bl

Winsford . Bedford
H&M

Warrington
‘TF W C

Ashby-de-la

Eurocentral

\

10. Warrington
Life Techr

11. Tamworth

13. Kettering
Multi-let
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Property portfolio continued
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. Redditch . Daventry
Nt t

. Normanton . Gateshead
Y Ele Multi-let

. Biggleswade . West Bromwich

\Y/ Distribution
. Cannock
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Property portfolio continued

26. Plymouth

28. Nuneaton
DX

29. Milton Keynes
ain

30. Avonmouth
S ug

. Trafford Par

Unilin Dis

uti

. Weybridge

36. Coventry

3l Mall

37. Aberdeen

Men

38. Hamilton
i

Ic

Utility
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Property portfolio continued

. Livingston

nain

hurch

. Cambuslang
Brenntag

46.Farnborough
it

47. Warrington
. .

D) Ex
48. Norwich

50. Coalville

51. Erdington
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Property portfolio continued

. Castleford

Bunz

. Speke

. Swansea

. Hilton Harrison

Court
Multi-let

. Stockton

61. Sheffield
62. Sheffield

Riverlsland
63. Kettering

64. Atherstone

65. Speke

DHL International

66. Huntingdon
PHS
67. Glasgow

arding (UK)

68. Normanton
\ Of

69. Kilmarnock
fail
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Industrial

% % %
portfolio portfolio portfolio
Tenant Location income Tenant Location income Tenant Location income
Menzies Distribution Various 3.8% Ichor Systems Hamilton 05% PHS Huntingdon 0.3%
H&M Winsford 1.5% Morrison Utility Synertec Warrington 0.3%
Services Stevenage 0.5%
JTF Wholesale Warrington 1.4% DHL Global Forwarding (UK) Glasgow 0.2%
AShare &Sons (t/a
Teleperformance Ashby-de-la-Zouch 1.3% sC9) Livingston 05% Acormn Web Offset Normanton 0.2%
ATL Transport Burtonupon Trent 1.2% Sytner Oldbury 05% | TMPower Sheffield 0.2%
Restore Salford 1.1% Vertiv Infrastructure Bedford 05%  Iricel Composites Leeds 0.2%
Daher Acrospace Hiton 0.9% DHL Supply Chain Aberdeen 0.5%  Sovereign Air Movement Leeds 0.2%
Revion International Stone 0.9% Interserve Project Rapid Vehicle Repairs Kettering 0.2%
Next Eurocentral 0.9% Services Christchurch 0.5% Boots Gateshead 0.2%
Life Technologies Warrington 0.9% Sermcon Warwick 0.5% MPBoScience Harrison Court 0.1%
ICT Express Tamworth 0.8% Procurri Europe Warrington 05% Rexel Gateshead 0.1%
Sigan Closures Doncaster 0.8% Brenntag Cambuslang 0.5%  Equinox Aromas Kettering 0.1%
YESSS Electrical Normanton 0.8% DinexExhausts Warrington 04%  JangalaSofiplay Harrison Court 0.1%
;urpm Distribution - ; 0.8% VP Packaging Kettering 04%  Nigl Training Academy Kettering 0.1%
ernvices iggleswade .8%
Foval M R /K . 0.8% MTSLogstics Coaile 0.4% The Human Office Gateshead 0.1%
oyal Mai oventry/Kilmarnocl .8% West Midlands
Yodal Bl 07% Al EreeSaes Erdington 0.4% Shakespeare Pharma Harrison Court 0.1%
Other smaller tenants Ketterin 0.1%
HellermannTyton Cannock 0.7% Warburton Langley Mil 0.4% & 2
Vacant 3.3%
Massmould Miton Keynes 0.7% Northern y 0.4%
Sherwin Wiliams Plymouth 0.7% Sl ram =2
Synergy Health Sheffield Parkway 0.4% 41.4%
Worthington Gateshead—Team 0.6%
Armstromg Valey 070 Bunzl Castleford 0.3%
DX Nuneaton 0.6% Powder Systems Speke 0.3%
Saint-Gobain Milton Keynes 0.6% WH Partnership Gateshead 0.3%
Superdrug Avonmouth 0.6% Arkote Sheffield 0.3%
Unilin Distribution Manchester 0.6%
Sealed Arr Kettering 0.3%
Heywood Wiliams
Components Bedford 0.6% North Warwickshire
BSSGroup Bristol 0.6% Borough Counci Atherstone 0.3%
Elma Electronics Bedford 0.5% DHL International Speke 0.3%

1202 SIUNCO0Y PUB LIoday fenuly 91d 1134 uelpoisn)

43



1202 SIUNCO0Y PUB LIoday fenully 91d 1134 uelpoisn)

44

Property portfolio continued

Office
at a glance

Key metrics

2021value

£54 8m

2020: £52.6m

Annualrentalincome

£492m

2020: £39m

Portfolio weighting

129

2020: 10%

Occupancy

84 1%

2020:90.3%

Number of properties

13

2020: 12

Wienerberger
Cheadle

Area

16984 sq ft
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First Title
(t/a Enact Conveyancing)
Leeds

Area

35910 sq ft

Regus (Maidstone West Malling)
West Malling

Area

29065 sq ft

Top 10 tenants by location

Regus (Maidstone Edwards Geldards
West Malling) Derby
WestMalling 1.5% Countryside Properties
First Title (t/a Enact Leicester
Conveyancing) Lyons Davidson
Leeds 1.5%  solihull
National Grid Regus
Castle Donington 0.8% (Leicester Grove Park)
Wienerberger Leicester
Cheadle 0.8% Systra
Home Office Birmingham
Sheffield 0.6%

National Grid

Castle Donington

0.6%

0.5%

0.4%

0.4%

0.3%

Area

25471 sq ft
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Property portfolio continued

Birmingham
Multi-let

West Mallin

Oxford
Multi-let

Leicester

Castle
Donington

Wienerberger

9. Leeds
First Title

10. Leicester

11. Derby
=6

12. Glasgow
Multi-let
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% %

portfolio portfolio
Tenant Location income  Tenant Location income
Regus (Maidstone Erskine Murray Leicester 0.2%
West Maling) West Malling 1.5% KWB Property
First Title (t/a Enact Management Birmingham 0.1%
Conveyancing) Leeds 15%  BalComwall -
National Grid Castle Donington 0.8% Associates Birmingham 0.1%
Wienerberger Cheadle 0.8%  CopelandWedge )
Horne Office Sheffield 06%  /ssocates UL e 0:1%
Edwards Geldards Derby 06% omithinstitute Oxford 0.1%
Countryside Quantem Consulting Birmingham 0.1%
Properties Leicester 0.5% Bradley & Cuthbertson
Lyons Davidson Solihull 04% LLP Brmingham 0.1%
Regus (Leicester Safe Deposits Glasgow 0.1%
S Lelsestier 0% Other smaller tenants Various 0.1%

i i 0

Systra Birmingham 0.3% Vacant 1.9%
Dehns Oxford 0.3%
Oxentia Oxford 0.3% 1.7%
Cognizant
Technology Glasgow 0.2%
Health & Safety
Executive Sheffield 0.2%
NatWest Oxford 0.2%
Charles Stanley Oxford 0.2%
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Property portfolio continued

Other
at a glance

Key metrics

2021value

£84.4m

2020: £874m

Annualrentalincome

£6.5m

2020: £71m

Portfolio weighting

16%

2020: 17%

Occupancy

04.3%
. @

2020: 971%

Number of properties

36

2020: 35

MKM Building Supplies
Castleford

Area

13034 sq ft
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Williams Motor Co (Holdings)
Stockport

Area

42289 sq ft

VW Group
Shrewsbury

Area

20,231 sq ft

Top 10 tenants by location

VW Group
Derby/Shrewsbury
/Stafford

Williams Motor Co
(Holdings)
Stockport

Total Fitness
Health Clubs
Lincoln

MKM Building
Supplies
Castleford/Lincoln

Nuffield Health
Stoke

2.0%

1.5%

0.9%

0.7%

0.7%

Co-operative
Gillingham
Bannatyne Fitness
Perth

Pendragon Property
York

Liverpool
Community Health
NHS Trust
Liverpool
Royalbase
Liverpool

0.6%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

Total Fitness Health Clubs
Lincoln

Area

03,676 sq ft
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Property portfolio continued

Stockpol

Multi-let
Liverpool

Lincoln
Tote
Derby

Vi
/

\\/
\%

\VV

Group

Stok
Nuffielc

Torquay
Multi-let

. Gillingham

. Salisbury
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Property portfolio continued

-
B a8

Shrewsbury s 22. Maypole
o i Starbu

23.Shrewsbury

Multi-let

. HighWycombe
PubCo
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Property portfolio continued

25. Shrewsbury b 32. Basingstoke
nt

30. Kings Lynn
Lou

31. Stratford

d
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Other

% %
portfolio portfolio
Tenant Location income  Tenant Location income
Derby/Shrewsbury/ The Gym Group Carlisle 0.3%
0,
ity Stafford 2000 AGO Hotels (t/a lbis) Portishead 0.2%
Wiliams Motor Co Las! T 0.2%
(Holdings) Stockport 1.5% EBIguEh=s Cierey Hd
ToElEiEss LeBistrot Pierre Torquay 0.2%
Health Clubs Lincoin—Total Fitness 0.9% TimHortons Perth 0.2%
MKM Buildings McDonald's Plymouth 0.2%
Supplies Castieford/Lincoln 0.7% D Wetherspoons Portishead 0.2%
Nuffield Health Stoke 0.7%  SeotcoEasten
Co-operative Gilingham 0.6% (t/aKFQ) Perth 0.2%
Bannatyne Fitness Perth 0.5% Ask Italian Restaurant Shrewsbury 0.2%
Pendragon Property York 0.5%  Wedgmoor Crewe 0.2%
Liverpool Community The Universal Church
HealthNHS Trust Liverpool 0.5% of the Kingdom of God Stratford 0.1%
Royalbase Liverpool 0.5% Bright Horizons Chesham 0.1%
Parkwood Raven Valley Gateshead 0.1%
Health &Fit I .59
e ness Salisbury 05% Knutsford Day Nursery Knutsford 0.1%
Crewe/|eicester/ .
Pizza Hut* Watford 0.4%  F1Autocentres Crewe 0.1%
Listers Group Loughborough 0.4% Sfa;ﬂ‘SF?‘Ub (Ts/a House
f 0/
NEezzEneD Crewe 0.3% of the Rising Sun) Shrewsbury 0.1%
0/
Chokdee Baih 0.3% Edmundson Electrical Crewe 0.1%
. Jurassic Coast (t/a
MTOR Cateshead 03%  CostaCoffee) Torquay 0.1%
Stonegate PubCo High Wycombe 0.3%  Other smaller terants Various 0.1%
0
Starbucks Coffee Maypole 0.3% hym— 0.9%
TJ Vickers & Sons Shrewsbury 0.3%
Loungers Kings Lynn/Torquay 0.3% 16.3%
KBeverage (t/a
Starbucks) Nottingham 0.3%
ggggﬂg%?yst Crewe 0.3% * Includes tenants in occupation paying £nil rent through CVAs where

ERV has been used to calculate % portfolio income,
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Property portfolio continued

Retail warehouse
at a glance

Key metrics

2021value

£99/m

2020: £109.7m

Annualrentalincome

£8.3m

2020: £8.8m

Portfolio weighting

219

2020:22%

Occupancy

05.6%
. O

2020:96.3%

Number of properties

20

2020: 20

Matalan
Leicester

Area

44901 sq ft
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B&M
Ashton-under-Lyne

Area

30,404 sq ft

B&Q
Banbury

Area

34,805 sq ft

Top 10 tenants by location

B&Q Halfords
Banbury/Galashiels 3.2% Carlisle/Sheldon 0.8%
/Weymouth /Weymouth
B&M Homebase
Various 2.9% LeightonBuzzard 0.8%
Wickes Go Outdoors
Winnersh/Burtonupon Trent 1.8% Swindon 0.8%
Matalan Smyths Toys
Leicester 1.2% Gloucester 0.6%
Magnet JB Global
Gloucester/Leicester 1.1% (t/aOak Furniture Land)
/Plymouth Plymouth 0.6%
Wickes
Winnersh
Area

30,120 sq ft
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Property portfolio continued

-

Evesham
Multi-let

Carlisle
Multi-let

TheRange)

Winnersh

Leicester
\ lan

Banbury

Ashton
-under-Lyne
B&M

. Sheldon

Multi-let

. Leighton

Buzzard
Hom
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Property portfolio continued

o
B d

. Milton Keynes

nt

. Galashiels

. Leicester

. Grantham

Multi-let

19. Torpoint

20. Portishead
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Retail warehouse

% %
portfolio portfolio
Tenant Location income Tenant Location income
Banbury/Galashiels/ Argos Evesham 0.4%
BQ Weymouth 32%  Next Evesham 0.4%
Swindon/Ashton-under- Poundstretcher* Evesham/Grantham 0.4%
B&M Lyne/Plymouth/Carlisie 2.9%
e e— Dreams Sheldon 0.4%
urton upon Tren
0 TJMorris (t/a
Wickes Winnersh 1.8% oS RerisiEzg) 0.3%
0/
ictizten B : /LLe\ceste; i Iceland Carlisle 0.3%
i
Y. oucesterLgeserl . Poundand Calse 02%
Carlisie/Sheldon/ Sports Direct Weymouth 0.2%
Halfords \Weymouth 0.8%  Carpetright* Grantham 0.2%
Homebase Leighton Buzzard 0.8% 102k (t/aStarbucks) Burton upon Trent 0.1%
Go Outdoors Swindon 0.8%  Majestic Wine
Smyths Toys Gloucester 0.6% Varenouse Portishead 0%
Oak Other smaller tenants Various 0.1%
Furniture Land Carlisle/Plymouth 0.6%  \/acant 1.0%
AShare &Sons
(/aSCS) Plymouth 0.5% 20.9%
M&S Evesham 0.5%
Sainsbury's Torpoint 0.5%
Petsat Home Winnersh 0.5%
Boots Evesham 0.5%
CcDS Burton upon Trent 0.5%

* Includes tenants in occupation paying £nil rent through CVAs where ERV has been used to calculate % portfolio income:
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Property portfolio continued

Retail
at a glance

Key metrics

2021value

£492 8m

2020: £52.8m

Annualrentalincome

£3.5m

2020: £42m

Portfolio weighting

109

2020: 1%

Occupancy

80.2%

2020: 95.3%

Number of properties

The Works
Portsmouth

Area

7084 sq ft
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Specsavers
Cardiff

Area

5807 sq ft

Superdrug
Worcester

Area

13,108 sq ft

Top 10 tenants by location

Superdrug
Southsea/

Weston-super-Mare

/Worcester

Reiss
Guildford

Specsavers
Cardiff/Norwich

URBN UK
Southampton

Sportswift
Cardiff/Portsmouth

The Works
1.3% BuryStEdmunds/
Portsmouth
Phase Eight
Edinburgh
0.9% Poundland
Portsmouth
0.8% Nationwide
Shrewsbury
0.5% Portsmouth
City Council
0.5% Southsea

URBN UK
Southampton

0.4%

0.3%

0.3%

0.2%

0.2%

Area

7880 sq ft
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Shrewsbury . Colchester 9. Birmingham
Multi-let Multi-let Multi-let

Worcester . Southampton 10. Chester

Sur

Cardiff
Multi-let

Portsmouth
Multi-let
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Property portfolio continued

e
HH

. Norwich

. Weston-

. Chester

. Portsmouth

T

. Shrewsbury
N e

. Stratford

19. Taunton

20. Bury St
Edmunds
Th
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Property portfolio continued

21. Chester 25. Glasgow
S it

26. Bury St
Edmunds
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Retail

% %
portfolio portfolio
Tenant Location income  Tenant Location income
Kruidvat Real Estate
Southsea/Weston- A
Superdrug super-Mare/Worcester 13% (aSavers) Colchester 0.2%
Specsavers Cardiff 0.8% Crepeaffaire St Albans 0.2%
URBN UK Southampton 05%  Lush Colchester 0.2%
Sportswift Cardiff/Portsmouth 0.5% HSamuel Colchester 0.2%
Bury St Edmunds/ Der Touristk Chester 0.2%
The Works Portsmouth 0.4%
= ! u 2 The White Company Nottingham 0.1%
Reiss Guildford 0.4%
o Savers
Phase Eight Edinburgh 0.3% Health & Beauty Bury St Edmunds 0.1%
Poundland Portsmouth 03%  vourPhone Care Portsmouth 0.1%
Nationwide Shrewsbury 0.2% Feldale Retal
Portsmouth (t/a Lakeland) Chester 0.1%
City Councl couiifsea ) Ciel (Concessions)
Foxtons Stratford 0.2%  (t/aChesca) Chester 0.1%
Wilko Retal Taunton 0.2%  AsianJewelery Chester 0.1%
Signet Trading (t/a Done Brothers
Ernest Jones) Chester 02% (t/aBetfred) Cheltenham 0.1%
TescoStores Brmingham 02%  Brook Taverner Cirencester 0.1%
Birmingham/ o
Greggs S 0.2% LLeeds Building Society Colchester 0.1%
The Danish Wardrobe
0
Holland &Barrett Shrewsbury 0.2% (t/aNoaNoa) Olereasi 0.1%
Coral Birmingham 0.1%
Other smaller tenants Various 0.1%
Vacant 1.4%
9.7%
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The business resilience

and risk planning of the
Company’s key service
providers has been tested
during the year and in all
cases has responded very
well to the challenges
presented by the COVID-19
pandemic disruption

COVID-19 pandemicresponse
Theimpact of the COVID-19 pandemic hasbeen
pervasive across the globe, and has had a significant
impact onrentalreceipts, tenant stability, property
valuations, headroom against borrowing covenants
and government legislation, and could cause
further operational interruption to the Company
for atleast the financial year ending 31March

2022, Thisexpectedimpact has beenreflected
inthe table below and s considered further in the
Going concernandlonger-term viability section of
the Strategic report, although the Board believes
uncertainty remains regarding the longer-term
ramifications of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The businessresilience andrisk planning of the
Company'skey service providers has been tested
during the year and in all cases has responded very
wellto the challenges presented by the COVID-19
pandemic disruption, with allkey teams able to work
fromhome and continue to offer highlevels of service
tothe Company.

The Board met at least fortnightly via video-
conference during the initial period of lockdown

and has continued to receive regular updates on
rent collectionlevels during the year toensure the
Company reacted promptly to the dynamic situation,
including guiding and challenging the Investment
Manager's response and approving decisions
quickly whenrequired

Risk assessment

The Boardhas overallresponsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of risk management and
internal control whichis operated by the Investment
Manager. The Company's risk management
process is designed to identify, evaluate and mitigate
the significant risks the Company faces. Atleast
annually, the Board undertakes arisk review, with

the assistance of the Audit and Risk Committee,
toassess the effectiveness of the Investment
Manager's risk management and internal control
systems. During thisreview, no significant failings
orweaknesses were identified in respect of risk
management, internal controland related financial
and business reporting.

The Company holds a portfolio of high-quality
property let toinstitutional grade tenants and

is primarily financed by fixed rate debt with no
short-termrefinancingrisk. It does not undertake
speculative development

Thereare anumber of potential risks and
uncertainties which could have a materialimpact on
the Company’'s performance over the forthcoming
financial year and could cause actual results to
differ materially from expected and historical results.
The Directors have assessed the risks facing the
Company, includingrisks that would threaten the
business model, future performance, solvency or
liquidity. The table below outlines the principal risks
identified, but does not purport to be exhaustive as
there may be additional risks that materialise over
time that the Company has not yetidentified or

has deemed notlikely to have a potentially material
adverse effect on the business.

OVERALL CHANGE
INRISKFROM LAST
RISK TYPE LIKELIHOOD IMPACT YEAR RISK MITIGATING FACTORS
1. High High —~ e Tenantdefaultduetoa o Diverse property portfolio covering allkey
Remains high cessationor curtailment of sectorsand geographical areas
] trade due tothe COVID-19
revenue o The Company has 265 individualtenancies

pandemic

e Anincreasing number
of tenants exercising

contractual breaks or not
renewing atlease expiry

» Enforcedreductionin

contractual rents througha

withthe largest tenant accounting for 3.8%
of therentroll

o |nvestment policy imits the Company'srent
rollto no more than 10% froma single tenant
and 50% froma single sector

o Primarily institutional grade tenants

CVAorlegislativechanges  » Focusedonestablishedbusinesslocations

duetothe COVID-19
pandemic

e DecreasesinERVs

resultingindecreasesin

passing renttosecure
long-term occupancy

o Expiriesor breaks
concentratedina
specific year

forinvestment

» Activemanagement of lease expiry profile
considered in forming acquisition decisions

o Building specifications typically not tailored
tooneuser

» Strong tenantrelationships have meant
short-term rent deferrals have been agreed
wherenecessary to address arrears caused
by COVID-19 pandemicinterruption

Unable to re-let void units

LLow UK economic growth
impacting the commercial
property market
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OVERALL CHANGE
INRISKFROM LAST
RISKTYPE LIKELIHOOD IMPACT YEAR RISK MITIGATING FACTORS
2. Moderate High J e Decreasesinsector- o Active property portfolio diversification
Decreases Decreased specificERVs between office, industrial (distf\but\on, ‘
. manufacturing and warehousing), retall
in property o | ossof contractualrevenue
portfolio warehousing, high street retailand other
valuation > TemerisE g Investment policy limits the Cormpany’s
contractualbreaks or not i ;
) . property portfolio tonomore than50%in
renewingatlease expiry )
any specific sector or geographical region
* I\/Iarket pricing Smaller lot-size business model limits
affectingvalue '
exposure toindividual asset values
> Cengeingemen High-quality assetsingoodlocations
forspace o
should remainpopular withinvestors
o Properties concentrated
inaspecificgeographical
locationor sector
o Reducedproperty
market sentiment
andinvestor demand
o | ackoftransactional
evidence
3. Moderate High J e Reducedavailability The Company has three lenders
Financial Decreased o \ncrgased COSt, OT Interest cover covenant waiverswerein
arranging or servicing debt
place duringthe year
» Breachofborrowin
9 Targetnet gearing of 25% LTV on property
covenants
portfolio
o Significanti
signiicantincreasesin 829%of drawn debot failties at a fixed rate
Interestrates }
of interest
Significant unencumbered properties
avallable to cure any potential breaches
of LTV covenants
Ongoing monitoringand management of
the forecast liquidity and covenant position
4. Low High &~ » |nadequate performance, Ongoingreview of performance by
. No change controls or systems independent Board of Directors
Operational
operatedby the Investment . )
Manager Outsourcedinternal audit functionreporting
directly to the Audit and Risk Committee
External depositary withresponsibility for
safeguarding assets and performing cash
monitoring
5. Moderate High N2 * Adverseimpactof new Strong compliance culture
orrevisedlegislationo )
Regulatory Decreased s il External professional advisersare
regulations, or by changes )
andlegal engaged toreview and advise upon control

inthe interpretation or
enforcement of existing
government policy, laws
andregulations

Non-compliance withthe
REIT regime®” or changes
tothe Company'stax status

environment, ensure regulatory compliance
andadvise ontheimpact of changes due to
the COVID-19 pandemic

Business modeland culture embraces
FCAprinciples

REIT regime compliance is considered
by the Boardinassessing the Company's
financial positionand setting dividends
and by the Investment Manager inmaking
operationaldecisions

27, Asdefined by the Corporation Tax Act 2010.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

OVERALL CHANGE
RISK TYPE LIKELIHOOD IMPACT INRISKFROMLAST YEAR RISK MITIGATING FACTORS
oderate ig o Cyber-attackresultsintne o Investment Manager staff are allcapable o
! Mod High Cyber-attack ltsinth | 1] M taff I ble of
Business Decreased Investment Manager being working fromhome for an extended period
. . unabletouseitsIT systems :
interruption e — Dataisregularly backed up andreplicated
andthe Investment Manager's T systems
e Terrorismor pandemics are protected by anti-virus software and
interrupt the Company's firewalls that are regularly updated
operations through ) )
. e ) “ Fire protectionand access/security
impact oneither the
InvestmentManageror proceduresareinplace atallof the
e ey Company's managed properties
tenants Comprehensive property damage and
business interruptioninsuranceis held,
including three years'lost rentand terrorism
Atleast annually, afirerisk assessmentand
health and safety inspectionis performed
foreach property inthe Company's
managed portfolio
oderate oderate « Failure toappropriately e Company engaged specialis
g Moderat Moderat Failure tel TheC d ialist
ESG Increased manage the environmental environmental consultantsin 2019 to advise
performance of the the Board oncompliance withrequirements
property portfolio, and adopting best practice where possible
resultinginit not meetin
the reqS\re dstandar dsif The Company publishedits ESG policy
environmentallegislation in 2020 which seeks toimprove energy
andmaking properties efficiency andreduce emissions
unlettable or unsellable In April 2021the Company constituted an
5 Bl ESG Co.mm\ttee toensure compliance
: withenvironmental requirements, the ESG
beinginsufficient tomeet . ) o
sl e e Hestel policy and environmental KPIs, detailed in
the ESG Committee report
stakeholders
> Neesiislanssi Ata property‘\eve\ an enwronmental
assessment is undertaken which
environmental reporting -
; influences decisions regarding acquisitions,
requirements
refurbishments and asset management
initiatives
8. Low High &~ o Unidentified liabilities Comprehensive due diligenceis
Acquisitions No change associated withthe undertakenin conjunction with professional
q acquisition of new advisers and the provision of insured
properties (whether warranties andindemnities is sought from
acquireddirectly orviaa vendors where appropriate
corporate structure)
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Emergingrisks

Financial Statements

The COVIDA9 pandemic represents a principal risk and has significantly impacted the Company
in the current financial year, but its medium and long-term impacts on the global economy are yet

to be fully understood.

The Boardis continuing to monitor the potential longer-term risks associated with Brexit. The main
potential negative impact of Brexit is a deterioration of the macro-economic environment, potentially
leading to further political uncertainty and the investment and occupier markets. The Board believes
the Company is well placed to weather any longer-termimpact of Brexit because the Company has
adiverse portfolio by sector and location with an institutional grade tenant base and low gearing.

No emerging risks have been added to the Company's Risk Register during the year.

Going concernandlonger-term viability
Inaccordance with Provision 310f the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018issued by the Financial
Reporting Council (‘the Code"), the Directors have
assessed the prospects of the Company over a
periodlonger than 12 months. The Board resolved
toconduct thisreview for a period of three years,
because:

o TheCompany'sforecasts cover a three-year
period;and

o TheBoardbelieves a three-year horizon
maintains a reasonable level of accuracy
regarding projected rentalincome and costs,
allowing robust sensitivity analysis to be
conducted.

The Directorshave assessed the following factors,
in particular relating to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic,inassessing the Company'sstatusasa
going concern and ts longer-term viability,including
events up to the date of authorisation of the financial
statements:

o Theextent of any operational disruption;
» Potential curtailment of rental receipts;

o Diminished demandforleasing the Company’s
assets going forwards;

» Contractual obligations due or anticipated within
onevyear,

o Potential liquidity and working capital shortfalls;

» Accesstofunding and compliance with banking
covenants;and

o Ongoing compliance with regulatory
requirements including the REIT regime

The Directors note that the Company has
performed better than expected over the course
of the COVID-19 pandemic disruption, with rent
collection rates ahead of forecast and industrial
asset valuations and rentsin particularimproving
over thelast 12 months.

Results of the assessment

Based on prudent assumptions within the
Company's forecasts regarding the recovery of
deferredrent, tenant default, void rates and property
valuation movements, the Directors expect that over
the three-year period of their assessment:

o TheCompany hassurplus cashtocontinuein
operationand meet itsliabilities as they fall due;

* Interestcover covenants onborrowings are
complied with;

e LTVcovenantsaren'tbreached,and
o REIT testsare complied with

Sensitivities

Theseassessments are subject to sensitivity
analysis, whichinvolves flexing anumber of key
assumptions and judgementsincludedin the
financial projections:

* Theanticipatedlevel of recovery of rents deferred
duetotheimpact of the COVID-19 pandemic;

o Tenantdefault;

o | _engthof potential void period following lease
break or expiry:

o Acquisition NIY, disposals, anticipated capital
expenditure and the timing of deployment of cash;

o |nterestrate changes;and
o Property portfolio valuation movements.

This sensitivity analysis also evaluates the potential
impact of the principal risks and uncertainties should
they occur which, together with the steps taken to
mitigate them, are highlighted above andin the Audit
and Risk Committee report. The Board seeks to
ensure that risks are mitigated appropriately and
managed withinits risk appetite all times.

Sensitivity analysis considered the following areas:

Covenantcompliance

The Company operates four loan facilities which
are summarisedin Note 15. At 31March 2021 the
Company had significant headroom onlender
covenants ata portfoliolevel with:

* Company netgearing of 24.9% comparedtoa
maximum LTV covenant of 35% and £165.0m
(30% of the property portfolio) unencumbered
by the Company’'s borrowings; and

» Covenantwaiversinplace onits fixed-rate debt
facilities for the quarter ended 3t March 2021to
mitigate risk on each individual security pool.

Reverse stress testing has been undertaken to
understand what circumstances would resultin
potential breaches of financial covenants. While the

assumptions applied in these scenarios are possible,

they donot represent the Board's view of the likely
outturn, but the results help inform the Directors'
assessment of the viability of the Company. The
testing indicated that:

» Therateofloss or deferral of contractual rent
onthe borrowing facility withleast headroom
would need to deteriorate by a further 38% from
thelevelsincludedinthe Company's prudent
forecasts tobreach interest cover covenants;and

o Ataportfoliolevel property valuations would
have to decrease by 28% from the 31March 2021
positiontorisk breaching the overall 35% LTV
covenant

The Board notes that the May 20211PF Forecasts
for UK Commercial Property Investment survey
suggestsanaverage 0.4% increase inrents during
2021 with capital value increases of 1.8%. The
Boardbelieves that the valuation of the Company's
property portfolio will prove resilient due toits higher
weighting toindustrial assets and overalldiverse
and high-quality asset and tenant base, comprising
159 assetsandover 201 typically ‘institutional grade’
tenants across allcommercial sectors.

Liquidity

At 31March2021the Company has:

e £39mof cash-in-hand and £10m undrawn RCF,
with gross borrowings of £140mresulting inlow
net gearing, withno short-termrefinancing risk

anda weighted average debt facility maturity
of sevenvyears;

o Anannual contractual rent rollof £38.7m, with
interest costs on drawn loan facilities of only
c.£4./mper annum;and

o Received 90% of rents due relating to the
April—June 2021 quarter.

The Company's forecast model projects it will
have sufficient cash and undrawn facilities to settle
itstarget dividends andits expense and interest
liabilities for a period of at least 12 months.

The Boardhas considered the scenario used
incovenant compliance reverse stresstesting,
where the rate of loss or deferral of contractual rent
deteriorates by a further 10% from the levels included
inthe Company’s prudent three-year forecasts. In
this scenario, over the three-year longer-term viability
assessment horizon, allfinancial covenants andthe
REIT tests are complied with and the Company has
surplus cash to settleits liabilities

As detailedinNote 15, the Company’'s £35m RCF
expiresin September 2023 but can be extended
by a further year at the lender's discretion. The
Boardanticipateslender supportinagreeingto the
avallable extensions,and would seek torefinance
the RCF withanother lender or dispose of sufficient
properties torepay itin September 2023in the
unlikely event of lender support being withdrawn.

Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic

The Boardbelievesittooearly tounderstand fully
the longer-term impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
inparticular on the future use of the office and the
impact of the acceleration of retail sales moving
online, but the Board believes the Company is well
placed to weather any shorter-termimpacts due
tothereasons set outin the Principal risks and
uncertainties section.
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Section 172 statement and stakeholder relationships

The Directors consider that in conducting the business of the Company over the course of the year they have
complied with Section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act”) by fulfiling their duty to promote the success
of the Company and act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its members asa whole.
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Our stakeholder

Groups
&

Tenants

Ooo

The Investment Manager
and its employees

O

Suppliers

{E)

Shareholders

G

Government, local authorities

and communities

Issues, factors and stakeholders

The Board has direct engagement with the
Company's shareholders and seeks arounded
and balanced understanding of the broader impact
ofits decisions through regular engagement with its
stakeholder groups (detailed below) tounderstand
their views, typically through feedback from the
Investment Manager and the Company's broker,
whichis regularly communicated to the Board via
quarterly meetings. Stakeholder engagement also
ensures the Board is kept aware of any significant
changesinthe market, including the identification
of emerging trends andrisks, whichin turn canbe
factoredinto its strategy discussions.

Management of the Company’s day-to-day
operations hasbeendelegated to the Investment
Manager, Custodian Capital Limited, and the
Company hasnoemployees. Thisexternally
managed structure allows the Boardandthe
Investment Manager to have due regardto the
impact of decisions on the following matters
specifiedin Section 172 (1) of the Act:
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Governance
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APPROACH TAKEN

a)
Likely consequences of any
decision in the long term

The business model and strategy of the Company is set out
within the Strategic report. Any deviation from or amendment
tothat strategy is subject to Board and, if necessary,
shareholder approval. The Company’'s Management
Engagement Committee ensures that the Investment
Manager is operating within the scope of the Company’'s
investment objectives.

Atleastannually, the Board considers a budget for the
delivery of its strategic objectives based on athree-year
forecast model. The Investment Manager reportsnon-
financialand financial key performanceindicatorstothe
Board, set outin detailin the Business model and strategy
section of the Strategicreport, atleast quarterly whichare
usedtoassess the outcome of decisions made.

The Board's commitment to keeping inmind the long-term
consequencesof its decisions underlies its focus onrisk,
including risks to thelong-term success of the business. This
approachresultedinthe change to dividend policy during the
year to preserve cashresources by broadly paying dividends
from net rentalincome, inresponse to the politicaland market
uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Theinvestment strategy of the Companyis focused on medium
tolong-termreturns and minimising the Company'simpact on
communities and the environment and as such thelong termis
firmly within the sights of the Board when all material decisions
aremade

TheBoard gainsanunderstanding of the views of the
Company'skey stakeholders from the Investment Manager,
broker and Management Engagement Committee, and
considers those stakeholders'interests and views in Board
discussions andlong-term decision-making.

b) The Company hasnoemployeesasaresult of itsexternal The Company's Nominations Committeeis responsiple for
The interests of the management structure, but the Directors have regardto applying the diversity policy set outin the Nominations Committee
Company’semployees theinterests of the individuals responsible for delivery of the report to Board recruitment
property management andadministration services tothe
Company totheextent that they are able to.
C) Businessrelationships with suppliers, tenants and other The Company pays suppliersinaccordance with pre-agreed
The need to foster the counterparties aremanaged by the Investment Manager. terms. The Management Engagement Committee engages
N Suppliersandother counterparties are typically professional - directly withthe Company'skey service providers providing
relationships with suppliers firms suchaslenders, property agents and other property adirectline of communication for receiving feedback and
S ETIRaYCIES ’ professionals, accounting firms and legal firms andtenants resolvingissues
withwhichthe Investment Manager oftenhas alongstanding
relationshio, Where material counterparties arenewtothe Because the Investment Manager directly invoices most tenants
i i andcollectsrent without using managing agents, it has openlines
business, checks, including antimoney laundering checks o .
of communication with tenants and canunderstandand resolve
where appropriate, are conducted prior to transacting any )
. ; anyissues prompitly.
business to ensure that no reputational or legal issues would
arise from engaging with that counterparty. The Company
also periodically reviews the compliance of all material
counterparties with relevantlaws andregulations such asthe
ModernSlavery Act 2015
d) The Boardrecognises the importance of supportinglocal TheBoardtakes overallresponsibility for the Company'simpact

The impact of the Company’s
operations on the community
and the environment

communities where the Company'sassetsarelocated and
seeks toinvestinproperties which will be it for future purpose
andwhichalignwithESG targets. The Company also seeks
to benefitlocal communities by creating social value through
employment, viewing its properties asakey part of the fabric
of thelocaleconomy.

onthe community andthe environment andits ESG policies are
setoutinthe ESGreport.

The Company's approachto preventing bribery, money
laundering, slavery andhumantrafficking is disclosedinthe
Governancereport.
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Section 172 statement and stakeholder relationships continued

SECTION172(1) FACTOR

APPROACH TAKEN

e)

The desirability of the
Company maintaining a
reputation for high standards
of business conduct

TheBoardbelieves that the ability of the Company to conduct
itsinvestment business and finance its activities dependsin
partonthereputation of the Boardand Investrment Manager's
team. Therisk of falling short of the high standards expected
andtherebyrisking its business reputationisincludedin

the Board's review of the Company'srisk register, whichis
conducted periodically.

The principalrisks and uncertainties facing the business are
setoutinthat section of the Strategicreport. The Company’s
requirements for ahigh standard of conduct and business ethics
areset outinthe Governance report.

f)

The need to act fairly
as between members
of the Company

The Company's shareholdersare averyimportant
stakeholder group. The Board oversees the Investment
Manager's formalinvestor relations programme which
involves the Investment Manager engaging routinely with
the Company's shareholders. The programme is managed
py the Company's broker and the Board receives prompt
feedback fromboth the Investment Manager and broker on

Theinvestor relations programme s designed to promote formal
engagement withinvestorsandis typically conducted after each
half-yearly results announcement. The Investment Manager also
engages withexistinginvestors who may request meetings and
withpotential new investors onanadhoc basis throughout the
year, including where prompted by Company announcements,
Shareholder presentations are made available on the Company's

the outcomes of meetings and presentations. The Board
and Investment Manager aim to be open with shareholders

and avalable to them, subject to compliance withrelevant
securities laws. The Chairman of the Company and other Non-
Executive Directors make themselves available for meetings
asappropriate and attend the Company's AGM

website. The Company has a single class of share inissue with all
members of the Company having equal rights.

Methods used by the Board
The mainmethods used by the Directors to perform
their duties include:

o BoardStrategy Days held atleast annually to
review allaspects of the Company's business
modeland strategy and assess the long-term
sustainable success of the Company and its
impact onkey stakeholders;

o TheManagement Engagement Committee
engages with the Company's key service
providersandreports ontheir performanceto the
Board. The responsibilities of the Management
Engagement Committee are detailed in the
Management Engagement Committee report;

Read more about the responsibilities of the
Management Engagement Committee on
page 91

o TheBoardisresponsible for the Company's ESG
activities set out in the ESG Committee report,
whichit believes are akey part of benefiting the
localcommunities where the Company's assets
arelocated;

Read more about the Company’s ESG
activitieson page 20

The Board'srisk management procedures set
outinthe Governance report identify the potential
consequences of decisionsin the short, medium
andlong term so that mitigation plans can be put
inplaceto prevent, reduce or eliminaterisks to the
Company and wider stakeholders;

Read more about the Board's risk
management procedures on page 70

The Board sets the Company's purpose, values
and strategy, detailed in the Business model and
strategy section of the Strategic report, and the
Investment Manager ensures they align with

its culture;

Read more about the Company’s purpose,
values and strategy on page 4

The Board carries out direct shareholder
engagement via the AGM and Directors attend
shareholder meetings onanadhoc basis;

Externalassuranceis received throughinternal
and external audits and reports from brokers and
advisers;and

Specific training for existing Directors and
inductionfor new Directorsas set outinthe
Governancereport.

Principal decisionsinthe year

The Board has delegated operational functions
tothe Investment Manager and other key
service providers. Inparticular, responsibility
formanagement of the Company's property
portfolio has been delegated to the Investment
Manager. The Board retains responsibility for
reviewing the engagement of the Investment
Manager and exercising overall control of

the Company, reserving certain key matters
assetoutinthe Governance report.

The principal non-routine decisions taken by the
Board during the year were:

« Liaising withthe Investment Manager to
implement measures to ameliorate the effects
of the COVID-19 pandemic;

o Extending the term of the RCF as detailed
inNote 15;

o Renewing the Investment Management
Agreement as detailed inNote 18;

» Appointing twonew Directors as detalled in the
Chairman’s statement;

» Changing one of the Company'sindependent
valuers fromthe quarter ending 30 June 2021as
detailedin the Investment Manager'sreport; and

¢ Constitutingan ESG Committee as
detailedin the ESG Committee report.

Duetothe nature of these decisions,
avariety of stakeholders had to be factored
into the Board's discussions. Each decision
wasannounced at the time, so that all
stakeholders were aware of the decisions.
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Section 172 statement and stakeholder relationships continued

The Boardrecognises the importance of stakeholder engagement to deliver its strategic objectives and believes

its stakeholders are vital to the continued success of the Company. The Board is mindful of stakeholder interests
and keeps these at the forefront of business and strategic decisions. Regular engagement with stakeholders

is fundamental to understanding their views. The below section highlights how the Company engages with its

key stakeholders, why they are important and the impact they have onthe Company and therefore itslong-term
success, which the Board believes helps demonstrate the successful discharge of its duties under s172(1) of the Act.

Stakeholders

gth EWS
tion highligh

f) 000 O
Tenants The Investment Suppliers
Manager and its
employees

TheInvestment Manager
understands the businesses
occupyingthe Company's assets
and seeksto createlong-term

partnerships and understand their

needstodeliver fit for purpose
real estate and develop asset
management opportunities to
underpin long-term sustainable
income growth and maximise
occupier satisfaction.

As an externally managed fundthe
Company's key service provider
isthe Investment Manager andits
employees are a key stakeholder.
The Investment Manager's culture
aligns with that of the Company
andits long-standing reputation

of operatinginthe smaller lot-size
market is key whenrepresenting
the Company.

Acollaborative relationship
with our suppliers, including
those towhomkey services are
outsourced, ensures that we
receive high-quality services

to help deliver strategicand
investment objectives

Stakeholder interests

o High-quality assets

o Profitability

o [Efficient operations

* Knowledgeable
and committed landlord

o Flexibility toadapttothe
changing UK commercial
landscape

o Buidings withstrong
environmental credentials

Stakeholderinterests

o |Long-termviability
of the Company

o |Long-termrelationship
with the Company

o Well-being of the Investment
Manager'semployees

* Beingabletoattractandretain
high-calibre staff

* Maintaininga positive and
transparent relationship with
the Board

Stakeholderinterests

o Collaborative and transparent
working relationships

o Responsive communication

e Beingabletodeliver service
levelagreements

Stakeholder engagement

o Regular dialogue through
rent collection process

» Reviewpublisheddata, suchas

accounts, trading updates and
analysts reports

o Ensured buildings comply
withthe necessary safety
regulations andinsurance

* Most tenants contacted
torequest environmental
performance data

o Occupancy hasremained at
over 90% during the year

Stakeholder engagement

e Boardand Committee
meetings

» Face-to-face andvideo-
conference meetings with the
Chairmanand other Board
Directors

* Monthlyandquarterly KPI
reporting to the Board

o External Board evaluation,
including feedback fromkey
Investment Manager personnel

« |Informal meetingsand calls

Stakeholder engagement

o Boardand Committee
meetings

o One-to-onemeetings

o Annualreview of key service
providers for the Management
Engagement Committee
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G

Shareholders

Lenders

Government,
local authorities
and communities

Building a strong investor base
through clear and transparent
communicationis vital to building
asuccessfuland sustainable
business and generating long-
termgrowth.

Ourlenders play animportantrole
inour business. The Investment
Manager maintains close and
supportive relationships with this
group of long-term stakeholders,
characterised by openness,
transparency and mutual
understanding

Asaresponsible corporate citizen

the Company is committed to
engaging constructively with
centralandlocal government and
ensuring we support the wider
community.

Stakeholder interests

o Sustainable growth

o Attractivelevel
ofincomereturns

» Strong Corporate Governance
and environmental credentials

e Transparentreporting

Stakeholderinterests

o Stablecashflows

» Stronger covenants

* Beingable tomeetinterest
payments

o Maintaining agreed gearing
ratios

Stakeholder interests

o Opennessandtransparency

¢ Proactive compliance withnew
legislation

o Proactive engagement

o Support forlocaleconomic
andenvironmental plansand

framework » Regularfinancialreporting strategies
» Proactive notification ofissues » Playingits partin providing
orchanges the real estate fabric of the
economy,givingemployersa
place of business
Stakeholder engagement Stakeholder engagement Stakeholder engagement
o Annualandhalf year » Regular covenant reporting o Engagementwithlocal
presentations o [ace-to-face meetings, when authorities where we operate
o AGM restrictions allow » Twoway dialogue with
o Marketannouncements regulatorsand HMRC
and corporate website

» Regularinvestor feedback
received fromthe Company’s
proker

o Ongoingdialogue
with analysts

Approval of Strategic report
The Strategic report (incorporating
the Business model and strategy,
Chairman’s statement, Investment
Manager'sreport, Asset management
report, ESG Committee report,
Financialreport, Property portfolio,
Principal risks and uncertainties

and Section 172 statement and
stakeholder relationships) was
approved by the Board of Directors
andsignedonits behalf by:

David Hunter
Chairman
15June 2021
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Board of Directors and key Investment Manager personnel

The Board comprises six Non-Executive Directors. A short biography of each Director is set out below:

David Hunter
Independent Chairman, age 67

Davidis a professional non-executive director and
strategic adviser focused principally on UK and
international real estate. He chairs the Company
andits Nominations Committee andis on the
boards of both listed and unlisted companiesin

the UK and overseas, as wellas holding corporate
advisory roles. He qualified as a chartered surveyor
in1978 andhas over 25 years experienceasa

fund manager, including as Managing Director of
Aberdeen Asset Management's property fund
business. Davidis aformer President of the British
Property Federation and was actively involvedin the
introduction of REITs to the UK. He is also Honorary
Swedish Consulto Glasgow andanHonorary
Professor of real estate at Heriot-Watt University.

On1May 2020 David was appointed as
Non-Executive Director of GCP Student Living
plc (‘\GCP").On9March 2020 he was appointed
asNon-Executive Director of Capital & Regional
plc ("C&R") and was appointed as Chair of C&R
on20May 2020. The Board perceives no
material conflicts of interest between Custodian
REIT andthe activities of GCP and C&R due
totheir divergent property strategies

David's other roles are not considered toimpact
his ability to allocate sufficient time to the Company
todischarge hisresponsibilities effectively.

Committee membership
Chair M N
Member R

Elizabeth McMeikan
Senior Independent Director, age 59

Elizabethjoined the Board as Senior Independent
Director ("SID") on1April 2021, Her substantive
executive career was with Tesco plc where she
was a Stores Board Director before embarking
onanon-executive career in 2005

Elizabethis currently SID and Remuneration
Committee Chair at The Unite Groupplc, the
UK'slargest owner, manager and developer of
purpose-built student accommodation, and Non-
Executive Director and ESG Committee Chair

of Dalata Hotel Group plc, the largest hotel group
inthe Republic of Ireland. Her other Board roles
include Non-Executive Director and Remuneration
Committee Chair at McBride plc, Europe'sleading
manufacturer of cleaning and hygiene products, and
Non-Executive Director of Fresca Group Limited,
afruitand vegetable import/export company.

Previously she was SID of JD Wetherspoon
plc, SID and Remuneration Committee Chair of
Flybe plcand Chair of Moat Homes Limited.

Elizabeth's other roles are not considered toimpact
her ability to allocate sufficient time to the Company
todischarge her responsibilities effectively.

Committee membership
Member AMRNE

Matthew Thorne FCA
Independent Director, age 68

Matthew chairs the Company's Auditand Risk
Committee. Matthew qualified as a chartered
accountantin1978 with Price Waterhouse. He was
anindependent non-executive director for nine
years of Bankers Investment Trust plc, retiring in 2018
having chaired the Audit Committee. Since May
2007 Matthew has beenan adviser to Consensus
Business Group (led by Vincent Tchenguiz).
Matthew was also Audit Committee chairand the
finance member of the Advisory Board and Advisory
Panel of Greenwich Hospital, the Naval Charity,
untilJanuary 2020. Matthew's previous executive
roles have included Group Finance Director of
McCarthy & Stone plc from 1993 to 2007, Finance
Director of Ricardo plc from 1991to0 1992 and
Investment Director of Beazer plc from 198310 1991,

Matthew's other roles are not considered toimpact
his ability to allocate sufficient time to the Company
todischarge hisresponsibilities effectively.

Committee membership
Chair AR
Member M N
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lan MattioliMBE
Director,age 58

lanis CEO of Mattioli Woods plc (“Mattioli Woods")
with over 35 years' experience in financial services,
wealthmanagement and property businesses and
is the founder director of Custodian REIT. Together
with Bob Woods, lan founded Mattioli Woods, the
AlM-listed wealth management and employee
benefits business whichis the parent company

of the Investment Manager. Mattioli Woods now
has over £9bn of assets under management,
administration and advice. lanis responsible for
the vision and operationalmanagement of Mattioli
Woods andinstigated the development of its
investment proposition, including the syndicated
property initiative that developed into the seed
portfolio for the launch of Custodian REIT. His
personal achievementsinclude winning the
London Stock Exchange AIM Entrepreneur of

the Year award and CEQO of the year inthe 2018
City of Londonwealthmanagement awards.

lanwas awarded an MBE in the Queen's 2017 New
Year's Honours list for his services to business and
the community in Leicestershire and was appointed
High Sheriff of Leicestershire inMarch 2021,an
independent non-political Royal appointment
forasingle year. lanis also Non-Executive Chair

of K8 Capital Group plc, whichis listed on AIM

and specialises inbusiness transfer, business
brokerage and corporate finance across the UK.

lan's other roles are not considered toimpact his
ability to allocate sufficient time to the Company
todischarge his responsibilities effectively.

Committee membership
Member N

Financial Statements

Hazel Adam
Independent Director, age 52

Hazel was aninvestment analyst with Scottish
Life until1996 andthen joined Standard Life
Investments. As a fund manager she specialised
inUKand then Emerging Market equities. In 2005
Hazeljoined Goldman Sachs International as
anexecutive director onthe new markets equity
sales desk before moving to HSBCin 2012,
holding a similar equity sales role until 2016.

Hazelis anindependent non-executive
director of Aberdeen Latin American Income
Fund Limited and holds the CFA Level 4
certificate in ESG Investing and the Financial
Times Non-Executive Directors Diploma.

Hazel'sotherroleis not considered toimpact her
ability to allocate sufficient time to the Company
todischarge her responsibilities effectively.

Committee membership
Chair E
Member MARN

Chrislreland FRICS
Independent Director,age 63

Chris was appointed as an Independent Director
on1April2021. Chris joined international property
consultancy King Sturge in 1979 as a graduate

and has worked his whole career across the UK
investment property market. He ran the investment
teams at King Sturge before becoming Joint
Managing Partner and subsequently Joint Senior
Partner prior toitsmerger with JLL in2011.

Chriswas appointed as Chief Executive Officer of
JLL UK in2016 andbecameits Chairin April 2021,
He willcontinue to play anactive role in the capital
markets business andis committed to leading the
property sector onsustainability and supporting
the debate around the climate emergency.

Chrisisa former Chair of the Investment
Property Forumandisa Non-Executive
Director of Le Masurier, a Jersey based family
trust withassetsacross the UK, Germany
and Jersey. Chrisis also a keensupporter

of the UK homelessness charity Crisis.

Chris’ other roles are not considered to impact his
ability to allocate sufficient time to the Company
to discharge his responsibilities effectively.

Committee membership
Member AMRNE

Committee key
A AuditandRisk Committee

M  Management Engagement
Committee

R Remuneration Committee
N Nominations Committee
E ESGCommittee
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Board of Directors and key Investment Manager personnel continued

Ashortbiography of the Investment Manager's key personnel and senior members of the Investment Manager's

property teamis set out below:

Richard Shepherd-Cross MRICS
Managing Director

Richard qualified asa Chartered Surveyorin
1996 and until 2008 worked for JLL, latterly
running its national portfolioinvestment team.

Since joining Mattioli Woodsin 20089, Richard
established Custodian Capital as the Property Fund
Management subsidiary to Mattioli \Woods and

in 2014 was instrumentalin the establishment of
Custodian REIT plc from MattioliWoods' syndicated
property portfolioandits 1,200 investors. Following
the successful PO of the Company, Richard has
overseen the growth of the Company toits current
property portfolio of over £0.5bn. Richard and

his family own 371,381shares in the Company.

lan MattioliMBE
Founder and Chairman
lan's biography is set out set out on page 81

Ed Moore FCA
Finance Director

Ed qualified as a Chartered Accountantin 2003
with Grant Thornton, specialising inaudit, financial
reportingandinternal controls acrossits Midlands
practice. Heis Finance Director of Custodian
Capital with responsibility for all day-to-day financial
aspectsofits operations. Edis also amember of
the Custodian Capital Investment Committee.

Since PO in 2014 Ed has overseen the Company
raising over £300m of new equity, arranging or
refinancing six loan facilities and completing three
corporate acquisitions. Ed's key responsibilities
for Custodian REIT are accurate externaland
internal financial reporting, ongoing regulatory
compliance and maintaining a robust control
environment. Ed was appointed Company
Secretary of Custodian REIT on 17 June 2020
andisresponsible for the Investment Manager's
environmental reporting initiatives, attending
Custodian REIT ESG Committee meetings.

AlexNix MRICS
Assistant Investment Manager

Alex graduated from Nottingham Trent
University withadegreein Real Estate
Management before joining Lambert Smith
Hampton, where he spent eight yearsand
qualified asa Chartered Surveyor in 2006.

Alexis Assistant Investment Manager to Custodian
REIT having joined Custodian Capitalin 2012. Alex
headsthe Company's property management and
asset managementinitiatives, assists in sourcing
andexecuting new investments and is amember of
the Investment Manager's Investment Committee.
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Tom Donnachie MRICS
Portfolio Manager

Tom graduated from Durham University with a
degreein Geography before obtainingan MScin
Real Estate Management from Sheffield Hallam
University. Tomworkedin London for three years
where he qualified as a Chartered Surveyor with
Workman LLP before returning to the Midlands first
with Lambert Smith Hamptonand then CBRE.

Tomjoined Custodian Capitalin 2015 as Portfolio
Manager witha primary function to maintainand
enhance the existing property portfolio and assist in
the selectionand due diligence process regarding
new acquisitions. Tomalso leads the Investment
Manager's environmentalinitiatives and attends
Custodian REIT ESG Committee meetings.

Javed Sattar MRICS
Portfolio Manager

Javed joined Custodian Capitalin 2011 after
graduating from Birmingham City University

with adegreein Estate Management Practice.
Whilst working as a trainee surveyor on
Custodian REIT's property portfolio for Custodian
Capitalhe completed a PGDipin Surveying

via The College of Estate Management and
qualified asa Chartered Surveyor in 2017,

Javed operates as Portfolio Manager
managing properties predominantly
locatedin the North-West of England
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Governance report

The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance containedin the Code, for which the Boardis accountable to shareholders. The Code
isavailable from the FRC website at www.frc.org.uk.

The Company has complied with the principles and provisions set out in the Code during the year, so far as is possible, given the Company’s size and nature
of business.

The Boardhas also considered the principles and recommendations of the 2019 AIC Corporate Governance Code for Investment Companies (‘AIC Code”).

The AIC Code addresses allthe principles set out in the Code, as well as setting out additional principles and recommendations onissues that are of specific
relevance to the Company. We believe that reporting against the principles and recommendations of the AIC Code (whichincorporates the Code), provides better
information to shareholders, except where set outin this section.

Further explanation of how the main principles of the Code have been appliedis set out below, in the Remuneration Committee report and inthe Audit and Risk
Committeereport.

Theareas of non-compliance with the Code since admission to trading on the London Stock Exchange in 2014 (*Admission’) are

« Thereisnochief executive position within the Company, which is not in accordance with provision 9 of the Code. As aninvestment company, the Company has
no employees and therefore no requirement for a chief executive; and

« The Company's succession policy permits a tenure of longer than nine years where considered appropriate, inline with the AIC Code.

Role of the Board

The Board meets at least four times per year andis responsible to shareholders, tenants and other stakeholders for promoting the long-term sustainable success
of the Company and generating shareholder value. Good governance is fundamental to the long-term success of the Company and the Board and Investment
Manager work together to ensure the highest standards of governance are maintained by the Company and are central to every Board decision.

The Board comprises six Directors, all of whom have wide experience, are non-executive and, save for lan Mattioli, are independent of the Investment Manager.
Biographicalinformation oneach Director is set out earlier in the Governance report. The Directors are responsible for managing the Company's businessin
accordance withits Articles of Association (‘the Articles”) and the Investment Policy (as set outin the Strategic report), and have overall responsibility for the
Company'sactivities. The Directors may delegate certain functions to other parties andin particular the Directors have delegated responsibility for management
of the Company's property portfolio to the Investment Manager. The Board retains responsibility for reviewing the engagement of the Investment Manager and
exercising overall control of the Company, reserving the following key matters:

» Setting the Company’s values, standards, investment strategy, strategic aims and objectives;

o Approving the annual operating and capital expenditure budgets and external financial reporting;

o Approving valuations of the Company's property portfolio;

« Approving the Company's dividend policy and the interim dividends;

o Ensuringasatisfactory dialogue with shareholders and approving AGM resolutions and shareholder circulars;

« Reviewingand approving changes to the structure, size and composition of the Board, including succession planning, following recommendations from the
Nominations Committee;

o Determining the remuneration policy for the Directors, following the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee;

o Undertaking a formaland rigorous annual review of its own performance, that of its Committees and individual Directors, and the division of responsibilities and
independence;

o Considering the balance of interests between shareholders, employees, customers and the community; and

o Approving the appointment of the Company's principal professional advisers.

Meetings

The Board meets at least four times a year to consider the Company’'s quarterly trading performance and approve the Annual and Interimreports. The Board also
meets onanadhoc basisto discuss specific issues. Meetings are attended by the Directors, the Investment Manager, the Company Secretary and other attendees
by invitation.

Dueto the significant impact of the COVID-19 pandemic during the year, in addition to scheduled quarterly meetings, the Board has met regularly via video-conference
to consider issues including the prevailing and expected levels of rent collection, requests from tenants for rent deferrals, potential property acquisitions and disposals
and expected levels of capital expenditure, and the impact of these matters onthe Company's liquidity position, borrowing covenants and dividend policy. At each
meeting the Board has also considered how this informationis most effectively reported to the market and how the Board's response to the pandemic promotes the
long-term sustainable success of the Company andimpacts its stakeholders and the communities in whichit operates.

Division of responsibilities
The Company applies principles F -1 of the Code in determining the division of responsibilities of the Board


http://www.frc.org.uk
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Chairman

David Hunter is the Chairman and s responsible for the leadership of the Board and ensuring its overall effectiveness on directing the Company. The Chairman
isresponsible for setting the Board's agenda and ensuring that adequate time is available for discussion of allagenda items, in particular strategic issues.

The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of other Non-Executive Directors.

The Chairmanis also responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information and ensuring effective communication with shareholders

Senior Independent Director
Elizabeth McMeikan was appointed to the Board as the SID on 1 April 2021. Barry Gilbertson was the SID untilhis retirement from the Board on 1January 2027,
with Matthew Thorne acting as the interim-SID from 1January 2021 until 1 April 2021

The SID has aresponsibility to be available as an alternative point of contact (other than the Chair) for shareholders and other stakeholders and to act as a sounding
boardfor the Chairman.

Non-Executive Directors

On1April2021Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland were appointed as Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The Company has six Non-Executive Directors
andnoemployees. The Board has delegated operational functions to the Investment Manager and other key service providers. The Non-Executive Directors
provide constructive challenge, strategic guidance and offer specialist advice to the Investment Manager and hold it to account.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretaryis available to support all Directors and is responsible for the efficient administration of the Company, particularly with regard to ensuring
compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements and for ensuring that decisions of the Board areimplemented. Its other roles include, developing Board and
Committee agendas, advising onregulatory compliance and corporate governance, facllitating Director induction programmes and organising the AGM.

Board performance and evaluation
The Directors have annual appraisals as part of a Board Effectiveness Review (‘BER’). The Chair reviews the performance of the other Independent Non-Executive
Directors, and the Senior Independent Director reviews the Chair.

Separately, the Board undertook aninternally-facilitated BER during March 2021 managed by Matthew Thorne. The individual Directors were allcanvassed onthe:
o Skills of the Board and succession planning;

o Boardand sub-committee’s mandate, responsibility and operation;

¢ Performance of the Chair;

o Strategic planning process;

o Riskmanagement,and

o Capability and diversity.

The Board considered the output from the BER during May 2021and specifically noted:
¢ The contribution fromeach Director;and

« Theenhanced skillsets and diversity that the newly appointed Directors brought.

Board Committees

Audit and Risk Committee

The Auditand Risk Committee comprises the independent Directors, excluding the Board Chair,andis chaired by Matthew Thorne. Its responsibilities are set out
inthe Audit and Risk Committee report.

Management Engagement Committee
The Management Engagement Committee comprises the independent Directors andis chaired by David Hunter. Its responsibilities are set out inthe Management
Engagement Committee report. Chris Ireland is expected to take over as Chair on 1July 2021 following completion of the current year process

Nominations Committee

TheBoardasawholeisresponsible for ensuring adequate succession planning to maintain an appropriate balance of skills on the Board to ensure it functions
effectively and promotes the long-term sustainable success of the Company, whilst generating shareholder value. Changes to the structure, size and composition

of the Board may be made following recommendations from the Nominations Committee, which operates under written terms of reference which are available on
the Company's website. This includes the selection of the Chair of the Board, the Senior Independent Director and the Company Secretary. The letter of appointment
of new Directors sets out the expected time commitment and the Directors must undertake that they will have sufficient time to meet what is expected of them. Their
other significant commitments are disclosed to the Board before appointment, with a broad indication of the time involved, and they are required to inform the Board of
subsequentchanges.

The Nominations Committee comprises all six Directors and is chaired by David Hunter. Its responsibilities are set out in the Nominations Committee report.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises the independent Directors andis chaired by Matthew Thorne. Its responsibilities are set out in the Remuneration
Committeereport.
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Governance report continued

ESG Committee
The ESG Committee comprises Hazel Adamas Chair, Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland, all of whom are independent Non-Executive Directors. The ESG
Committee was constituted on1April 2021and its key responsibilities are set outin the ESG Committee report.

Meeting attendance

Theattendance of the Directors at scheduled Board and Board committee meetings held during the year was as follows:
Management
AuditandRisk  Remuneration Nominations ~ Engagement
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
David Hunter 4/4 n/a 2/2 2/2 11
Matthew Thorne 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 1
Hazel Adam 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 11
lan Mattioli 4/4 n/a n/a 2/2 n/a

Directors'interests are set out inthe Remuneration Committee report.

Thelnvestment Manager

The Company has appointed Custodian Capital Limited as Investment Manager and Alternative Investment Fund Manager (‘AIFM”) under an Investment
Management Agreement (‘IMA”). Under the IMA, the Investment Manager is due anannual fund and asset management fee and an annual administration fee.
TheIMA fee structure was varied on 22 June 2020 as detailed inNote 18.

The Investment Manager is a subsidiary of Mattiol Woods, arelated party and a provider of specialist pension consultancy and administration, employee benefits
and wealthmanagement services. The Investment Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA”) and has an established market
presenceinthe smaller lot-size property sector, with a proven track record of property syndication (external to the Company), investment and asset management

lanMattioliis CEO of Mattioli Woods andis beneficially interested in the share capital of Mattioli Woods, the parent company of the Investment Manager, and therefore
hasanindirect interestinthe Investment Manager. As a result, lan Mattioliis notindependent.

Key personnel
The Investment Manager's key personnel at 31March 2021 were Richard Shepherd-Cross, Ed Moore, Alex Nix and Tom Donnachie

AIFM Directive

Thedirective creates a European Union ("EU”) wide framework for regulating an AIFM. The Company’s activities fall within the scope of the directive and the Board
has determined that the Investment Manager willactas AIFM for these purposes. The Board has putin place a system of regular reporting from the AIFM and the
Company's depositary to ensure both are meeting their regulatory responsibilities in respect of the Company,

Non-mainstream pooledinvestments
The Company conductsits affairs so that its shares can be recommended by financial advisers to retailinvestors in accordance with the rules of the FCA in relation
tonon-mainstream pooled investments, and intends to continue to do so for the foreseeable future.

Directors’share dealings
The Directors have adopted a code for directors'share dealings, whichis compliant with the EU's Market Abuse Regulation (‘MAR”). The Board is responsible
for taking all proper and reasonable steps to ensure compliance with the MAR.

Shareholders

The Boardis responsible for ensuring a satisfactory dialogue with shareholders based on the mutual understanding of objectives. It approves the resolutions and
corresponding documentation to be put forward to shareholders at the AGM, together with any circulars, prospectuses, listing particulars and press releases
concerning matters decided by the Board.

The Company reports to shareholders at least twice each year inits interim and annual reports, and makes announcements, where any price sensitive or other
information requires disclosure, to the London Stock Exchange and on the Company's website. Any material presentations to investors are made available on the
Company's website. Where there has been contact with shareholders, feedback is presented to the Board by the Investment Manager and the Company's broker,
Numis Securities Limited, to ensureitis aware of any issues raised by investors. The Company's shareholder profile and any material changes in shareholdings are
reviewed by the Board at least quarterly and more often as appropriate.

Allmembers of the Board are available to meet with investors as and when required. The Board considers that the provision of independent feedback to the Board
through the Company's brokers and, where appropriate, directly frominvestors ensures that the whole Board remains wellinformed of investors' views.

Board members, including Chairs of the Audit and Risk, Management Engagement, Nominations and Remuneration Committees and representatives of the
Investment Manager are available to meet with investors and to answer any questions at the Company’'s AGM. All shareholders have at least 20 clear working
days'notice of the AGM, where all Directors and committee members are available to answer guestions, subject to prevailing government COVID-19 guidance
onattendance. At the AGM all votes are dealt with ona polland the number of proxy votes cast is indicated. Votes on separate issues are proposed as separate
resolutions.

Significant holdings of ordinary shares in the Company are setoutin the Directors report.
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Conflicts of interest

The Articles allow the Board to authorise potential conflicts of interest that may arise, subject to imposing limits or conditions when giving authorisationif this is
appropriate. Only independent Directors (who have nointerestin the matter being considered) are able to take the relevant decision and, in taking the decision, the
Directors must actinaway they consider willbe most likely to promote the Company's success. Procedures have been established to monitor actual and potential
conflicts of interest onaregular basis, and the Board s satisfied that these procedures are working effectively.

Internal control

TheInvestment Manager is responsible for operating the Company’s system of internal control and reviewingits effectiveness. Such a systemis designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of fraud or the risks of not achieving some or all of the Company’s business objectives and can provide only reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Investment Manager outsources its internal audit function to RSM which has undertaken an assessment of the
design effectiveness of internal controls during the year with no significant deficiencies reported.

The Board has an ongoing process to monitor the Company's risk management and internal control systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
andtoidentify, evaluate and manage the significant risks faced by the Company in line with principle O of the Code. The process is regularly reviewed by the Board,
based onreports from the Investment Manager, and accords with the Internal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code produced by the Turnbull
working party.Key features of the Company's system of internal control include:

o Adetailed authorisation process and formal delegation of authority;
« Acomprehensive financial reporting and forecasting system:;
« Adefined schedule of matters reserved for the Board;and

o Anannualreview of the effectiveness of internal controls and formal consideration of businessrisks. Issues are also raised at quarterly Board meetings
asappropriate.

Investment Manager employees are covered by Mattioll Woods whistleblowing policy.

Bribery, money laundering, slavery and human trafficking
The Board has considered the requirements of the Bribery Act 2010, the Criminal Finances Act 2017 and the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and has taken steps to ensure
thatit has adequate proceduresin place to comply with their requirements.

The Board has a zero tolerance policy towards unethical behaviour and is committed to carrying out business fairly, honestly and openly and it expects the same
of itsbusiness partners. The Investment Manager actively reviews andis responsible for monitoring perceived risks and responsibility for anti-bribery and corruption
TheInvestment Manager maintains arisk register where perceived risks and associated actions are recorded and this is shared annually with the Board for approval.

We believe that all efforts should be made to eliminate unethical behaviour from our supply chains. We seek to mitigate our exposure to any unethical activity by
engaging with reputable third-party professional service firms basedin the United Kingdom. We request formal governance information from our current or potential
suppliersif thereis a perceived risk of unethical behaviour to assess overall supply chain risk and conduct due diligence and risk assessment on potential new
suppliers where considered necessary. We will continue to monitor and collaborate with our suppliers and tenants to ensure that they continue to adopt systems and
controls that reduce the risk of facilitating bribery, money laundering, modern slavery and human trafficking.

Approval
This Governance report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

David Hunter
Chairman
15June 2021
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Audit and Risk Committee report

Compositionand designation

The Auditand Risk Committee (‘the Committee”) comprises Matthew Thorne as Chair, Hazel Adam, Elizabeth McMeikanand Chris Ireland, all of whom are
independent Non-Executive Directors. On1January 2021 Barry Gilbertson retired as a Director of the Company and left the Committee. On1April 2021 Elizabeth
McMeikan and Chris Ireland became Directors of the Company and were appointed to the Committee.

Responsibilities

The Committee meetsregularly to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and to ensure they present a fair, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’'s position and prospectsin line with principle N of the Code. The Committee is also responsible for the appointment, performance and
independence of the external auditor and the programme of work and reports of the internal auditor inline with principle M of the Code. Inproviding support to the
Boardinmaking this statement, the Committee has reviewed and approved a process undertaken by the Investment Manager to provide confirmation to the Board

The Committee operates under written terms of reference which are available on the Company's website.

Thekey responsibilities and principal activities of the Committee are as follows:

« Tomonitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Company and any formal announcements relating to the Company’s financial performance, and review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

¢ Toadvisethe Board onwhether the Interim Report, Annual Report and financial statements are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business model, strategy, risks, working capital requirements and longer-term viability:

o Toadvise the Board on whether the Investment Manager's working capital review supports assertions made in the Annual Report regarding going concernand
longer-termviabllity;

« Tomonitorand review the effectiveness of the Company's internal control environment and monitoring processes, which were in place for the year under review
and up tothe date of approval of these financial statements;

» Toreview the significantrisks faced by the Company:

« Toreview theinternal audit programme and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit process by reviewing reports, meeting with the internal auditor and
identifying any mattersit considers need action or improvement, making recommendations as to the steps to be taken:;

¢ Tomakerecommendations to the Board to be put to shareholders for their approval in general meeting inrelation to the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor:

« Toreview the appointment of the external auditor, monitoring the external auditor'sindependence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking
into consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements;

« Todevelopandimplement policy onthe engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services, taking into account relevant ethical guidance regarding
the provision of non-audit services by the external audit firm and to report to the Board, identifying any mattersin respect of which it considers that action or
improvement is needed and making recommendations as to the steps to be taken;

o Toagree the scope of statutory audit work and any additional assurance work to be undertaken;

» Totakeanactive partindiscussions between the external auditor and the Investment Manager regarding the resolution of issues that impact the audited financial
statements;and

o Tohavethe opportunity to meet with the external property valuers at least once a year, to discuss the valuers remit and any issues arising from the valuations.

The Committee also oversees and approves the calculation of fees payable to the Investment Manager set out in Note 18.

Meetings

The Committee meets noless than three times a year, typically in May to consider the Annual Report and external audit findings, in Novermber to consider the Interim
Report, interim announcement and external review findings, andin January to plan for the financial year ahead. Any other matters, including internal controls, are
considered asand when necessary.

Meetings are attended by the Committee members, the Investment Manager, the external auditor and, periodically, the internal auditor. The Committee allows time
to speak with the external auditor and internal auditor without the Investment Manager present for at least one meeting each year.
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Primary areas of judgement in relation to the Annual Report and financial statements

The Committee considers the significant judgements made in the Annual Report and financial statements and receives reports from the Investment Manager

and the external auditor onthose judgements. The Committee pays particular attention to the mattersit considers to be important by virtue of size, potentialimpact,
complexity and level of judgement.

The principal issue considered by the Committee for the year was the valuation of the Company’'s property portfolio, whichiis fundamental to the Company's
statement of financial position and reported results. The external auditor met with the valuers separately from the Audit and Risk Committee, using real estate
specialists where applicable, and reported back to the Committee onits review. The Committee also gained comfort from the valuers' methodology and other
supporting market information.

The Committee alsoreviewed the reports of the internal auditor and considered how best to resource the internal audit function. During the year, the internal auditor
hasreported on the design effectiveness and operational effectiveness of the internal control environment.

LLoan covenantand REIT regime compliance are matters for the whole Board. The Company's assessment of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Company'sloan covenant compliance is set out inthe Principal risks and uncertainties section of the Strategic report. The Committee has considered reports
tosupport the Company’s REIT regime compliance, going concern status and longer-term viability statement, along with details of available undrawn facilities
and financial forecasts.

The Committee was satisfied that these issues had been fully and adequately considered and addressed and that the judgements made were appropriate.
The Committee discussed the issues with the external auditor, who had concurred with the judgement of the Investment Manager.

Audit

The Company's day-to-day operations are contracted to the Investment Manager. The Company'sinternal audit function, which assesses the systems and control
framework of the Investment Manager andits parent company, Mattioli Woods, is carried out by RSM. The Committee agrees an appropriate annual internal audit
programme with the Investment Manager, taking into consideration the current size of the Company andits relative lack of business complexity, and reviews the
reports of the internal audit function.

The external audit, review of its effectiveness, auditor reappointment and audit tendering
The Committee reviews annually the external auditor’s:

o Appointment;

Relationship with the Company;

o |evelofeffectiveness;

Auditand non-audit fees; and

e Independence.

The Committee notes the continuing engagement of Deloitte LLP (‘Deloitte’) as auditor of Mattioli Woods and of the Investment Manager but considering the
separate Deloitte teams involved and the measures that Deloitte takes to ensure separation and independence of the teams, itis not deemed a conflict.

The Committee uses a framework to assess the effectiveness of the audit approach and considered the views of the Investment Manager. This framework includes:
o Theauditor confirming itsindependence and compliance with the FRC's Ethical Standard and the Company's policy for the supply of non-audit services;
* How the auditor demonstrated professional scepticismand challenged assumptions where necessary: and

o Assessment of Deloitte’s audit quality.

Inassessing how the auditor demonstrated professional scepticism and challenged assumptions, the Committee considered the depth of discussions held with the

auditor, particularly in respect to challenging the Company’s approach to its significant judgements and estimates (set out in the Strategic report). The Committee was
satisfied that a summary of findings from the Financial Reporting Council ('FRC’) report on Audit Quality Inspections in July 2020 supported Deloitte’'s capability. After

taking these matters into account, the Committee concluded that Deloitte had performed the audit effectively, efficiently and to a high quality.

Feesincurred by the Company from Deloitte during the year were as follows:

Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020

£000 £000

Audit of the Company's Annual Report 106 96
Totalauditrelated fees 106 96
Review of the Company’s Interim Report 20 18
Othernon-auditservices - 8
Totalnon-auditfees 20 26
Totalfees 126 122

Other non-audit services relate to administrative assistance regarding Board effectiveness reviews
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Audit and Risk Committee report continued

Audit continued

Non-audit fees

Anon-audit fee policy has been adopted by the Committee, which considers the appointment of the external auditor for non-audit work, after taking into account
their suitability to perform the services, the potentialimpact on their independence and objectivity and the relationship of non-audit to audit fees. Fees for permissible
non-audit fees payable to the external auditor are capped at 70% of the average audit fee over the three preceding financial years (or from appointment, if later) inline
with the FRC's Revised Ethical Standard 2019. Where there are any doubts as to whether the external auditor has a conflict of interest, Committee approvalis required
inadvance of the engagement

Given the external auditor's detailed knowledge of the structure of the organisation, certainrecurring services provided by them, subject to the amount of fee involved,
are not considered to impair the external auditor's independence or objectivity. Services includedin this category are: accounting advice, compliance and regulatory
certificates and minor projects, where the fee involved per service will not exceed £10,000 without the prior consent of the Committee.

Other than the review of the Interim Report, the Committee will not normally allow the external auditor to be used for the following: tax services; compiling accounting
records; payroll services; work oninternal controls; valuation work; legal services; internal audit services; corporate finance services; share brokerage or human
resources. Non-audit fees incurred during the year related to areview of Board effectiveness

The Committee hasreviewed the level of fees due to Deloitte for permitted non-audit services andis satisfied the independence and objectivity of Deloitte as the
Company's auditoris notimpaired.

Asa publicinterest entity’, the Company is required at the latest tore-tender the external audit by 2024 and rotate audit firms by 2034. The Committee intends
tore-tender the external audit within the timeframe set by the Financial Reporting Counciland adopt its specific requirements for the tendering process

Deloitte has confirmed its willingness to continue in office and ordinary resolutions reappointing Deloitte as auditor and authorising the Committee to set the auditor's
remuneration will be proposed at the AGM.

Approval

Thisreport was approved by the Committee and signed onits behalf by:

Matthew Thorne
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee
15June 2021
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Management Engagement Committee report

Composition

The Management Engagement Committee (‘the Committee”) comprises David Hunter as Chair, Matthew Thorne, Hazel Adam, Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris
Ireland, all of whom are independent Non-Executive Directors. On1January 2021Barry Gilbertsonretired as a Director of the Company andleft the Committee, being
replacedas Chair by David Hunter. On 1 April 2021 Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland became Directors of the Company and were appointed to the Committee.
Chrislrelandis expected to take over as Chair of the Committee on 1July 2021 following completion of the current year's process.

Meetings
The Committee meets atleast once a year and otherwise asrequired.

Responsibilities
Thekey responsibilities of the Committee are:

« Monitor andannually review the independence, expertise and performance of the Investment Manager and its compliance with the terms of the IMA;

Ensure the terms of the IMA comply with all relevant regulatory requirements, conform with market practice and remainin the bestinterests of shareholders;

Oversee the relationship with the external property valuers considering changes, re-appointment and tendering, their remuneration, terms of engagement,
independence and expertise;and

« Reviewannually the remuneration, any points of conflict and the Manager's views on the effectiveness of the Company's other key service providers.

During the year, the Committee has considered:
« Thecapability and resources of the Investment Manager to deliver satisfactory investment performance;
¢ Thelengthof the notice period of the IMA; and

o Thefeespayable tothe Investment Manager.

The Directors are satisfied with the Investment Manager's ability to deliver investment performance that meets the agreed objectives, such that the continuing
appointment of the Investment Manager, onthe revised terms set out in Note 18, was considered in the best interest of the Company andits shareholders

The Committee has also consideredits external valuer engagements with Lambert Smith Hampton Group Limited (‘LSH”) and Knight Frank LLP, whichbeganin 2014
and 2019 respectively. Following a tender process for the portion of the portfolio valued by LSH, triggered by LSH's engagement exceeding five years, the Committee
recommendedto the Board that Savills be appointed as valuer on that part of the portfolio from the quarter ending 30 June 2021.

Approval

Thisreport was approved by the Committee and signed onits behalf by:

David Hunter
Chair of the Management Engagement Committee
15 June 2021
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Nominations Committee report

Composition

The Nominations Committee (‘the Committee’) consists of David Hunter as Chair, Matthew Thorne, Hazel Adam, Elizabeth McMeikan, Chris Ireland and lan Mattiol.
On1January 2021Barry Gilbertsonretired as a Director of the Company andleft the Committee. On 1 April 2021 Elizabeth McMeikanand Chris Ireland became
Directors of the Company and were appointed to the Committee.

Meetings
The Committee meetsatleast once a year and otherwise as required

Responsibilities
The key responsibilities of the Committee, which take into account principles J, Kand L of the Code, are:

» Reviewthe structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board and make recormmendations to the Board
withregard toany changes;

« Consider succession planning for Directors, taking into account the challenges and opportunities facing the Company, and the skills and expertise needed
onthe Boardin the future;

« Keepunder review the leadership needs of the organisation, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the Company to compete effectively in the
marketplace;and

« |dentifying and nominating for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise.

Before any appointment is made by the Board, the Committee is required to evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board, and, in
the light of this evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment. Inidentifying suitable candidates the Committee shall:

o Useopenadvertising or the services of external advisers to facilitate the search;
o Consider candidates froma wide range of backgrounds; and

» Consider candidates onmeritand against objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, including gender, social and ethnic
backgrounds and cognitive and personal strengths, taking care that appointees have enough time available to devote to the position.

The Committee also makes recommendations to the Board concerning:
» Formulating plans for succession for the Non-Executive Directors;
» Suitable candidates for the role of Senior independent Director:

« Membership of the Audit and Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Management Engagement Committee, and any other Board Committees
as appropriate andformedin due course, in consultation with the chairs of those Committees;

* There-appointment of any Non-Executive Director at the conclusion of their specified term of office having given due regard to their performance and ability
to continue to contribute to the Boardin the light of knowledge, skills and experience required; and

o Theannualre-election by shareholders of Directors or the retirement by rotation provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association, having due regard to their
performance andabillity to continue to contribute to the Board in the light of the knowledge, skills and experience required and the need for progressive refreshing
of the Board.
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Policy on tenure and succession planning

The Committee considers the ongoing independence of each of the Non-Executive Directors, their respective skills and experience and whether each
Non-Executive Director is able to commit sufficient time to the Company, as wellas any other external appointments held. We consider that each Non-Executive
Director has contributed an appropriate amount of time during the year.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, at every AGM of the Company, one third of the Non-Executive Directors who are subject to the requirement
toretire by rotation (not including any Non-Executive Director who was appointed by the Board since the last AGM and is standing for election) will retire from office and
may offer themselves for re-election. However, notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, all the Non-Executive Directors will offer themselves for re-election at
each AGMinaccordance with the provisions of the AIC Code.

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for aninitial period of three years. Itis the Company's policy of tenure to review individual appointments after six years
of service to consider whether the Non-Executive Director is stillindependent and still fulfils the role. However, inaccordance with the principles of the AIC Code,
we do not consider it necessary to mandatorily replace a Director, including the Chair, after a predetermined period of tenure.

Reflecting the retirement of Barry Gilbertson during the year and the Company's succession policy, the Committee recommended the appointment of Elizabeth
McMeikan and ChrisIreland as additional Non-Executive Directors during the year. Granger Reis was engaged to assist with the recruitment.

Approval

Thisreport was approved by the Committee and signed onits behalf by:

David Hunter
Chair of the Nominations Committee
15June 2021

1202 SIUNCO0Y PUB LIoday fenuly 91d 1134 uelpoisn)

93



1202 SIUNCO0Y PUB LIoday fenully 91d 1134 uelpoisn)

94

Remuneration Committee report

Composition

The Remuneration Committee (‘the Committee”) comprises Matthew Thorne as Chair, David Hunter, Hazel Adam, Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland, all of whom
are independent Non-Executive Directors. On1January 2021 Barry Gilbertson retired as a Director of the Company and left the Committee, being replaced as Chair
by Matthew Thorne. On 1 April 2021 Elizabeth McMeikan and ChrisIreland became Directors of the Company and were appointed to the Committee.

Meetings
The Committee meetsatleast once a year and otherwise as required

Responsibilities
Thekey responsibilities of the Committee are:

« Tosetthe Remuneration Policy for allthe Directors, taking into account relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the provisions and recommendations of the
Codeandthe AIC Code;

« Toreview the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the Remuneration Policy;and

o Within the terms of the agreed policy, to determine the individual remuneration of each Director, taking into account information about remunerationin other
companies of comparable scale and complexity.

The Committee operates under written Terms of Reference which are available onthe Company's website.

Directors and officers
The Non-Executive Directors and Company Secretary are the only officers of the Company. The Company Secretary is engaged under the terms of the IMA with the
Investment Manager. The Company has noemployees.

Under the terms of their appointment, each Director is required to retire by rotation and seek re-election at least every three years. The Company's Articles require one
third of Directors to retire and seek re-election each year. However, notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, all the Non-Executive Directors will offer themselves
for re-election ateach AGMinaccordance with the provisions of the AIC Code.

Remuneration Policy

The Company’s objective is to have asimple and transparent remuneration structure, aligned with the Company's strategy and comparable with similar companies.
The Company offers Directors, including any new Directors, an annual fee with no pension contributions, allowances or variable elements. Directors are engaged
under Letters of Appointment (rather than service contracts with the Company), which do not allow for any payments on the termination of office. Each Director’s
appointment under their respective Letter of Appointment is terminable immediately by either party (the Company or the Director) giving written notice. Letters of
Appointment are kept available for inspection at the Company's registered office. Shareholders last approved the remuneration policy at the AGMin 2020. As such,
the Company is required to renew that approval at the AGM in 2023, from which date the new policy will apply.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Company's Remuneration Policy, which is designed to attract, retain and motivate Non-Executive Directors with the
skills and experience necessary to maximise shareholder value onalong-term basis, and determined that it remains fit for purpose. The Remuneration Policy was
approved at the AGM held on 1September 2020 with 99.95% of votes cast for the resolution, 0.05% of votes cast against the resolution with no votes withheld.

The Remuneration Policy has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Group's (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (‘the Regulations”) as amended in August 2013 and 2019, the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 and with the Code and the
AlC Code.

Any major decisions on Directors remuneration are taken by the Committee, as delegated by the Board in the Committee’s Terms of Reference, and subsequently
reportedto the Board. There have beenno major decisions, substantial changes or discretion applied relating to Directors remuneration during the year, other than
the fees payable to Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland whose appointments were approved during the year. The Remuneration Policy has operated as intended

The Committee takes into account any views inrespect of Directors' remuneration expressed by shareholders in the formulation of the Remuneration Policy.
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Directors’ remuneration (audited)
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2021 2020

Fees ErsNIC Total Fees ErsNIC Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

David Hunter 51,500 6,703 58,203 51,500 6,710 58,210
Matthew Thorne 41,200 5,281 46,481 41,200 5,289 46,489
Barry Gilbertson* 30,000 3,837 33,837 40,000 5123 45,123
lan Mattioli 34,500 4,357 38,857 34,500 4,364 38,864
Hazel Adam** 36,000 4,564 40,564 10,973 1,415 12,388
193,200 24,742 217,942 178,173 22,901 201,074

* Barry Gilbertsonretired from the Board on 1January 2021
** Hazel Adamwas appointed to the Board on 12 December 2019,

Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland joined the Board on 1 April 2021.

InMarch 2020 the Committee determined that there would be noincrease inlevel of Directors annual fees for the year ending 31March 2021 due to the uncertainty
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Committee agreed annual fees of £40,000 for both Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland on their appointment to the Board
on1April2021

InJune 2021the Committee reviewed Directors remuneration against comparable entities taking into account the performance of the Company, the nature of each
Director's duties, their responsibilities and the time spent discharging their duties during the year. The Board also recognises that anincreasingly onerous legislative
environmentis likely to continue to have a substantialimpact on the time commitment of the Directors, particularly for the Chair. As aresult the Board has approved the
following annual fees for existing Directors for the year ending 31 March 2022: David Hunter—£57500; Matthew Thorne — £42,650; Hazel Adam—£40,000; and lan
Mattioli—£37500

The Boardis mindful of the need to attract suitably experienced members and offer candidates competitive levels of remuneration when Board refreshmentis
requiredinline with the Company’'s succession and diversity planning, and expects to commission anexternal report during the year ending 31 March 2022 to
benchmark Directors' fee levels

No pension benefits accrued toany of the Directors during the year (2020: £nil)

The Directors and the key Investment Manager personnel are considered to be the Company's key management personnel defined by IAS 24 ‘Related Party
Disclosures’ The terms and conditions of the IMA and the amounts due to the Investment Manager are set out in Note 18

Directors’interests (audited)
The Directors had the following interests in the ordinary shares of the Company:

2021 2020

No.shares % holding No.shares % holding

DavidHunter 29,000 0.01% 29,000 0.01%
Matthew Thorne 29,000 0.01% 29,000 0.01%
lanMattioli2® 2,710,087 0.65% 2,650,587 0.58%
Hazel Adam - - - -
ElizabethMcMeikan = - _ _
Chrislreland - - - -
2,768,087 0.67% 2,708,587 0.60%

There have beenno changes in Directors'interests since the year end.

No Director has or has had any interest in any transactions which are or were unusual in their nature or conditions, or significant to the business of the Company and
whichwere affected by the Company or remainin any respect outstanding or unperformed. No loan or guarantee has been granted or provided by any member

of the Company for the benefit of any Director. There are norestrictions agreed by any Director on the disposal within a certain period of time of their holdingsinthe
Company's securities. Restrictions onother transfers of ordinary shares are set out in the Directors' report

There are norequirements or guidelines for the Directors to own shares in the Company.

28. Including his wife and a charitable trust under his control
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Remuneration Committee report continued

Total shareholder return

Thegraph below ilustrates the total shareholder return over the period from Admission on 26 March 2014 to 31March 2021in terms of the change in value of aninitial
investment of £100 invested on 26 March 2014 in a holding of the Company's shares against the corresponding total shareholder returns from a hypothetical basket
of sharesinsimilar (peer group) listed property investment companies?.

Total shareholder return
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Peers: FCPT,FCRE, PCTN, SREI, SLI, UKCM, EPIC Peer group —— Company

Benchmarking performance against the performance of the Company's peers is considered to be the most appropriate method of measuring the Company's
relative performance, as required by the Regulations. The performance of the Company relative to its peersis discussed in the Investment Manager's report.

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Auditor toreport to the shareholders on certain parts of the Remuneration Committee report and to state whether, in their
opinion, those parts of the report have been properly preparedin accordance with the Regulations. The parts of the Remuneration Committee report that are subject
toauditare showninthis report as (‘audited”).

Approval

Thisreport was approved by the Committee and signed on its behalf by:

Matthew Thorne
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
15June 2021

29. The Company'speer group comprises: BMO Commercial Property Trust Limited, BMO Real Estate Investments Limited, Picton Property Income Limited, Schroder Real Estate Investment Trust Limited,
Standard Life Investments Property Income Trust Limited, UK Commercial Property Trust Limited and Ediston Property Investment Company plc
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Directors’report

Report and financial statements

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Governance report forms
partof thisreport. For the purposes of this report, the Directors responsibilities statement and the Independent auditor's report, the expression Company means
Custodian REIT plc andthe expression ‘Group' means the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Company's principal activity is commercial property investment. The Strategic reportincludes further information about the Company's principal activity, financial
performance during the year andindications of likely future developments. The Company's subsidiaries were allnon-trading at the year end.

Details of significant events since the year end are contained in Note 20 to the financial statements

The Directorsbelieve they have discharged their responsibilities under section 414C of the Companies Act 2006 to provide a balanced and comprehensive review
of the development and performance of the business.

Results and dividends
The Group profitfor the year after taxationis set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Company paid a fourthinterim dividend of 1.25p per share for the quarter ended 31 March 20210n 28 May 2021 totalling £5.3m, and has approved afifthinterim
dividend per share of 0.5p totaling £2 Im resultingina total dividend relating to the year of 5.0p per share (2020: 6.65p), totaling £21.0m (2020: £27.5m)

The Company's dividend policy is set outin the Financial review section of the Strategic report.
Goingconcern

At 31March 2021the Company's forecastsindicate that over the next 12 months:

o The Company has surplus cashto continue in operation and mest its liabilities as they fall due;
« Borrowing covenants are complied with;and

o REIT testsare complied with.

Theforecastis subject to sensitivity analysis, which involves flexing a number of key assumptions and judgements included in the financial projections, over the
following areas:

Covenant compliance
The Company operates four loan facilities which are summarised in Note 15. At 31 March 2021the Company had significant headroom on lender covenants
ataportfoliolevel with

o Company net gearing of 24.9% comparedtoamaximum LTV covenant of 35% and £165.0m (30% of the property portfolio) unencumbered by the Company’s
pborrowings;and

o Covenantwaiversinplace onits fixed-rate debt facilities for the quarter ended 31 March 2021to mitigate risk on each individual security pool.

Reverse stress testing has been undertaken to understand what circumstances would result in potential breaches of financial covenants. While the assumptions
appliedin these scenarios are possible, they do not represent the Board's view of the likely outturn, but the results help inform the Directors' assessment of the viability
of the Company. The testing indicated that:

o Ataportfoliolevel following expiry of interest cover covenant waivers, the rate of loss or deferral of contractual rent would needto deteriorate by a further 38% from
thelevelsincludedinthe Company's prudent forecasts to breachinterest cover covenants; and

« Property valuations would have to decrease by 28% from the 31March 2021 position torisk breaching the overall 35% LTV covenant.

The Board notes that the May 2021 IPF Forecasts for UK Commercial Property Investment survey suggests an average 0.4% increase in rents during 2021 with capital
valueincreases of 1.8%. The Board believes that the valuation of the Company's property portfolio will prove resilient due to its higher weighting to industrial assets and
overalldiverse and high-quality asset and tenant base comprising 159 assets and over 201typically ‘institutional grade’ tenants across all commercial sectors.

Liquidity
At 31March 2021the Company has:

o £39m of cash-in-hand and undrawn RCF with gross borrowings of £140m resultinginlow net gearing, with no short-term refinancing risk and a weighted average
debt facility maturity of seven years;

o Anannual contractual rent roll of £38.7m, with interest costs on drawn loan facilities of only ¢. £4.7m per annum; and

o Received 90% of rents due relating to the April—June 2021 quarter.

The Directors consider preparing the financial staterments on a going concern basis to be appropriate because the sensitivity headroom set out above indicates
that the Company can continue in operation for at least the next 12 months.
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Directors’ report continued

Taxation
The Group operates asaREIT and hence profits and gains from the property rental business are normally expected to be exempt from corporation tax.

Directors and officers
Alist of the directors and their short biographies are shown in the Board of Directors and key Investment Manager personnel section of the Governance report.

The appointment and replacement of Directors is governed by the Articles, the Code, the Companies Act and related legislation. The Articles themselves may be
amended by special resolution of the shareholders.

Directors' fees and beneficialinterestsin the shares of the Company are disclosed in the Remuneration Committee report. During the year, no Director had a material
interest in acontract to which the Company or its subsidiary was a party (other than their own letter of appointment), requiring disclosure under the Companies Act
2006 other thaninrespect of Custodian Capital Limited and the IMA as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements.

On17 June 2020 Nathan Imlach resigned as Company Secretary and Ed Moore was appointed as Company Secretary. On1January 2021Barry Gilbertson retired
asaDirector. On1April 2021 Elizabeth McMeikan and Chris Ireland were appointed as Directors.

Directors’indemnity

Alldirectors and officers of the Company have the benefit of a qualifying third party indemnity provision contained in the Articles, which was in force throughout the
year andis currently stillin force. The Company also purchased and maintained directors’and officers' liability insurance in respect of itsellf, its Directors and officers
and the directors and officers of its subsidiaries as permitted by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006, althoughno cover exists in the event directors or officers are
foundto have acted fraudulently or dishonestly.

Conflicts of interest
Thereare proceduresin place to dealwithany Directors’ conflicts of interest arising under section 175 of the Companies Act 2006 and such procedures have
operated effectively.

Donations
No political or charitable donations were made during the year.

Capital structure
The Company's authorised andissued share capitalis shown in Note 16 to the financial statements.

Theordinary shares rank paripassuin allrespects. Save as may be agreed at each AGM, the ordinary shares have pre-emption rights in respect of any future issues
of ordinary shares to the extent conferred by section 561 of the Companies Act 2006.

There are norestrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the Company, other than certain restrictions that may be imposed from time to time by laws and
regulations and pursuant to the Listing Rules of the FCA and the Company's share dealing code, whereby certain Directors and officers require approval to deal in
ordinary shares of the Company.

The Directors are notaware of any other agreements between holders of securities that may result in restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general provisions of the Articles and prevailing
legislation. No person has any special rights of control over the Company's share capital and allissued shares are fully paid.

CREST

Custodian REIT plc share dealings are settled in CREST, the computerised system for the settlement of share dealings on the LLondon Stock Exchange. CREST
reduces the amount of documentation required and makes the trading of shares faster and more secure. CREST enables shares to be held inan electronic form
instead of traditional share certificates. CREST is voluntary and shareholders can keep their share certificates if they wish. This may be preferable for shareholders
whodonot tradeinshares on a frequent basis.

Substantial shareholdings
At 29 April 2021 the Directors were aware that the following shareholders each owned®*® 3% or more of the issued share capital

Number of Percentage

Shareholder ordinary shares holding®
Mattioli Woods 24,395,822 5.8%
BlackRock 23,497,066 5.6%

On 26 May 2021 the Company was notified that BlackRock's holding had fallen below the 5% threshold.

No other changesin substantial shareholding were disclosed between 29 April 2021and 15 June 2021.

Close company provisions
The Company is not a close company withinthe provisions of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988.

30. Ownershipincorporatesthe controlof voting rights through acting as discretionary investment manager on behalf of retailinvestors holding the beneficial interest
31. Basedontheissuedshare capital on31March 2021
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Change of control
The Company has borrowing facilities provided by its bankers which include provisions which may require any outstanding borrowings to be repaid, altered
or terminated upon the occurrence of a change of controlin the Company.

Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions are givenin Note 18 to the financial statements.

Environmental performance and strategy

Custodian REIT is committed to monitoring the performance of its assets, and using this information to develop robust strategies to minimise its environmental
impact. This year, we have continued to collect data to monitor the performance of our property portfolio andimplemented a centralised data management platform,
hosted by the Company’s environment consultants, to automate data collection and improve our understanding of building performance. This data is fundamental
for theindustry reporting frameworks we adhere to each year which are European Public Real Estate (‘EPRA") and GRESB. Further to this, the Company supports
the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD’) and strives to improve our reporting against climate risk. This year we
examined the Company’s material climate risks and opportunities, and will use thisinformation to shape our strategies. The Company expects to seek to set Science
Based Targets™ (‘SBTs") and create a Net Zero® pathway.

The following information summarises our actual environmental performance over the year. Our environmentalimpactsinclude the consumption of fuels, electricity
and water, and the production of waste. Our environmental impacts have been derived from both landlord obtained and tenant obtained consumption data.

GHG emissions

This sectionhas been prepared in accordance with our regulatory obligation to report greenhouse gas (‘GHG") emissions pursuant to The Companies (Directors'
Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018 whichimplement the government's policy on Streamlined Energy and
CarbonReporting.

Data collected relates to the calendar years 2020 and 2019 but has been disclosed as 2021and 2020 respectively due to the Company's March accounting
reference date.

Methodology

We quantify and report our organisational GHG emissions according to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol. Consumption data has been collated by our sustainability
consultant, Carbon Inteligence, and hasbeen converted into carbon dioxide equivalent ((CO ") using the UK Government 2020 Conversion Factors for Company
Reportinginorder to calculate emissions from corresponding activity data. The EPRA guidance onthe approach to floor areas was also used in calculating emissions
intensity. We have also used GRESB guidance on estimating the common parts areas of assets where there are landlord-controlled premises. We reported

to GRESB for the first time last year and as a result now have more accurate common parts floor areas. We have therefore restated comparative figures where
necessary toreflect these floor areas in the below table

Thisreport has been preparedin accordance with the GHG Protocol's Scope 2 Guidance; we have therefore reported both alocation-based and market-based
Scope 2 emissions figure. The Scope 2 market-based figure reflects emissions from electricity purchasing decisions that the Company has made (landlord obtained).
When quantifying emissions using the market-based approach we have used a supplier specific emissions factor where possible. If these factors were unavailable,
aresidual mix emissions factor was then used, and as a final alternative the location-based grid emissions factor was used.

To collect consumption data, the Investment Manager contacted the Company’'s tenants and managing agents to request the provision of data for their property.
Creating strong tenant relationships is key for generating good data flows. The Investment Manager actively provides tenant benchmarking reports toillustrate how
tenants are performing interms of kWhand tCO,e.

We have calculated both absolute performance andlike-for-like performance to allow for more accurate comparison between the datasets. Like-for-like information
includes assets which the Company has owned for at least two years and assets where datais available for both reporting years, but does not adjust for properties
being vacant or let which impacts the proportion of emissions which are landlord controlled.

As part of our data collection, the Company undertook a materiality assessment in line with EPRA guidelines in order to determine which EPRA indicators
were relevant to our organisation. Based onour professional judgement, we assessed eachindicator in terms of itsimpact on the business anditsimportance
to stakeholders. Allenvironmental sustainability performance measures were considered material which includes disclosing electricity, fuel, water and waste
consumptionas wellas GHG emissions.

32. Asdefined by the Science Based Targetsinitiative.
33. Asdefined by the Committee on Climate Change.
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Directors’ report continued

Performance

During the year the Company has put in place environmental KPI targets that will be used to assess and improve our performance across ESGissues and cover
arange of initiatives including energy efficiency, greenenergy procurement, tenant engagement and ESG due diligence. On 1 April2021an ESG Committee was
constituted to create arobust environmental governance structure, monitoring overall progress towards these KPI targets and ensuring the Investment Manager
seeks toidentify new opportunities to further embed sustainability across the portfolio and in our operations. The key responsibilities of the ESG Committee are set
outinthe ESG Committee report.

The Companyis also currently undertaking a Scope 3 screening exercise for the first time, calculating emissions for relevant Scope 3 categories including capital
goods and upstream transportation and distribution. This work will establish an emissions baseline footprint whichis key for setting SBTs, a Net Zero pathway as well
asmonitoring emission reductions

Some properties within the Company's property portfolio source energy from renewable sources. Out of total absolute energy consumptionin 2021, 74% of total
electricity consumption is from renewables, up from 12% in 2020

The table below shows absolute energy consumption for the past two years as well as year-on-year change. Overall, we have observed a 5% increase and 18%
increase in absolute electricity and gas consumption respectively from 2020 to 2021

Year-on-year %

Absolute energy consumption (MWh) 2021 2020 change
Fuels Landlord obtained 89 97 (8%)
Tenantobtained 16,052 13,590 18%

16,141 13,687 18%

Electricity Landlord obtained 758 887 (15%)
Tenantobtained 9,287 8,723 6%

10,045 9,610 5%

26,186 23,297 12%

Overal, our absolute emissionsintensity for Scope 1and 2 emissions (location-based) has decreased by 5% from 2020 to 2021, and our absolute emissions intensity
for Scope 3 emissions has decreased by 24%. We have also chosen to voluntarily disclose a selection of our Scope 3 emissions whichincludes water and waste
emissions, as wellas our tenant consumption emissions.

Reporting boundaries and limitations
The GHG sources that constitute our operational boundary for the reporting period are:

o Scope 1:Natural gas combustion within boilers, gas oil combustion within generators, road fuel combustion withinowned andleased vehicles, and fugitive
emissions fromrefrigerantsinair-conditioning equipment

o Scope 2: Purchased electricity consumption for our own use

» Scope 3: Water and waste consumption, and any natural gas and electricity consumption from tenants
Thisyear hasbeen the second time tenants' consumption data hasbeen collected. Of the Company’'s entire property portfolio, our environmental data covers
29% of the total floor area (combined landlord and tenant data), compared to last year's total coverage of 32%* . Theimpact of the COVID-19 pandemic has affected

anumber of our tenants, particularly those from the retail sector, and it was not unexpected that a lower coverage was obtained with some tenants' priorities lying
elsewhere this year.

Oneof our targetsis to engage with our tenants on a quarterly basis on ESG issues, which will be fundamental to improving the data coverage of our portfolio, helping
us toidentify key opportunities to minimise our environmentalimpact and work collaboratively with tenants to improve the performance of assets

34. 2020 floor area coverage figure has been restated using our latest common parts floor area calculations using GRESB guidance
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Assumptions and estimations

Insome instances where data is missing estimations have been applied tofill the gaps, calculated either through extrapolation of available data from the reporting
period or through data from previous years as a proxy. We have maintained detailed records of allinstances of estimation which are stored within our reporting
evidence pack.

The table below shows absolute performance and like-for-like performance of our Scope 1, 2 and 3emissions:

Absolute performance Like-for-like performance?®®
GHG emissions (tCO,e) 2021 2020 %change 2021 2020 %change
Scopel Landlordfuel consumption (MWh) 89 97 (8%) 89 54 65%
GHGemissions 16 16 - 16 15 -
Scope?2
(market-  Landlordelectricity consumption (MWh) 718 721 0.5% 718 443 62%
based) GHG emissions 177 197 (10%) 177 126 40%
Scope?2
(location-  Landlordelectricity consumption (MWh) 758 887 (15%) 758 492 54%
based) GHGemissions 177 197 (10%) 177 126 40%
Total Scope 1&2emissions (market-based) 183 200 (9%) 183 142 29%
Total Scope 1&2emissions (location-based) 193 213 (9%) 193 142 36%
Scope1&2 (market-based) emissions
intensity (tCO,e/m?/yr) 0.04 0.04 - 0.04 0.03 36%
Scope1&2 (location-based) emissions
intensity (tCO,e/m?/yr) 0.04 0.05 (9%) 0.04 0.03 36%
Scope3  Tenantfuelconsumption (MWh) 16,052 13,590 18% 13,353 10,440 28%
Tenantelectricity consumption (MWh) 9,287 8,723 6% 4,679 4,438 2%
Water consumption (dam?) 51 35 47% 14 1 21%
Total waste sent to landfill (ftonnes) 162 371 (56%) 25 158 (84%)
Totalwaste diverted from landfill (tonnes) 2,591 1,266 105% 416 176 136%
Total Scope 3emissions 5,426 4,698 16% 3,667 3,102 18%
Scope 3emissionsintensity
(tCO, e/m?/yr) 0.02 0.03 (24%) 0.05 0.04 18%
Gross Scope1,2and 3emissions
(market-based) 5,600 4,898 14% 3,841 3,231 19%
Gross Scope1,2and 3emissions
(location-based) 5,619 4,91 14% 3,860 3,244 19%

Theemissionsintensity calculationis based upon the floor area metrics available relative to the Scope 1,2 and 3 emissions

Financial risk management

The Company'sfinancial risk managementis based upon sound economic objectives and good corporate practice. The Board has overall responsibility for risk
management and internal control, with the assistance of the Audit and Risk Committee. The Board's process for identifying and managing risks is set outinmore detail
inthe Governance report.

Since Admission, the Company has sought to manage financial risk to ensure sufficient liquidity is available to meet itsidentifiable needs and toinvest cash assets
safely and profitably. Short-term flexibility is achieved through the use of bank facilities. The Company does not undertake any trading activity in financialinstruments.
Allactivities are transactedin pounds sterling. The Company does not engage in any hedging activities

The Company reviews the credit quality of potential tenants andlimits credit exposures accordingly. Alltrade receivables are subject to credit risk exposure
However, there is no specific concentration of credit risk as the amounts recognised represent income froma wide range of the Company's tenants

The Company'sfinancial risk management policy is further detailed in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Auditor

Deloitte, which has been the Company's auditor since 20 May 2014, has confirmedits wilingness to continue in office as auditor inaccordance with Section 489 of
the Companies Act 2006. The Groupis satisfied that Deloitte isindependent and there are adequate safeguardsin place to safeguard its objectivity. A resolution to
reappoint Deloitte as the Group's auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

35. Like-for-likeinformationincludes assets which the Company has owned for at least two years and assets where datais available for bothreporting years, but does not adjust for properties being vacant or let
whichimpacts the proportion of emissions which are landlord controlled
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Directors’ report continued

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to the auditor
The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors report are listed in the Governance report. Having made enquiries of fellow
Directorsand of the Company's auditor, each of these Directors confirms that

« Tothebestof each Director's knowledge and belief, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

o EachDirector has taken all steps they might reasonably be expected to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmationis given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Annual General Meeting
The AGM of the Company willbe held on 25 August 2021at 10:00am. The results of the meeting willbe published onthe Company’s website following the meeting.

Atthe AGM the votes willbe dealt with on a poll, using the proxy votes submitted prior to the meeting. Every member entitled to vote shallhave one vote for every
ordinary share held. None of the ordinary shares carry any special voting rights with regard to control of the Company. The Notice of AGM specifies deadlines for
exercising voting rights and appointing a proxy or proxies to vote inrelation to resolutions to be passed at the AGM. The relevant proxy votes are counted and the
number for, against or withheld inrelation to each resolution will be published on our website following the AGM.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others
The Company's approach to engagement with suppliers, customers and other stakeholdersis set out in the s172 statement and stakeholder relationships section
of the Strategic report

Events since 31March 2021

Details of significant events occurring after the end of the reporting year are givenin Note 20 to the financial statements.

Approval

This Directors'report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed onits behalf by:

David Hunter
Chairman
15June 2021
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors are required to prepare the Group financial
statementsinaccordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial
Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies inthe European Union. The financial statements also comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the IASB. Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give
atrueandfair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1requires that directors:

o Properly selectand apply accounting policies;
« Presentinformation, including accounting policies,inamanner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

« Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

o Makeanassessment of the Company's ability to continue as agoing concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial staterments comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website. Legislationin the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

« Thefinancial statements, preparedin accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
orloss of the Company and the undertakingsincluded in the consolidation takenas a whole;

o TheStrategic reportincludes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included
in the consolidation takenas awhole, together with adescription of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face; and

* The AnnualReport andfinancial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders
toassess the Company's position and performance, business model and strategy.

Approval

Thisresponsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors and s signed onits behalf by:

David Hunter
Chairman
15June 2021
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Custodian REIT plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1 Opinion

Inour opinion:

« thefinancial statements of Custodian REIT plc (the ‘parent company’) andits subsidiaries (the ‘group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the
parentcompany's affairs as at 31 March 2021and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) asissued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);

o the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance withinternational accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006;and

« thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

\We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

o theconsolidated statement of comprehensive income;

« the consolidated and parent company's statements of financial position;

» theconsolidated and parent company’s statements of cash flows;

» theconsolidated and parent company's statements of changes inequity; and

o therelatedNotes 1to 21

The financial reporting framework that has been appliedin the preparation of the group financial statementsis applicable law, and international accounting standards
inconformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and IFRSs asissued by the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has been appliedin

the preparation of the parent company financial statementsis applicable law and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

2 Basisforopinion
We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin

the UK including the Financial Reporting Council's (the ‘FRC's) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services provided to the group and parent company for the year are disclosed inNote 5 to the
financial statements. We confirmthat the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company.

\We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3  Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters Thekey audit matter that we identified inthe current year was:
o Valuation of investment property.
Withinthis report, key audit matters are identified as follows:
I Newlyidentified
/N Increasedlevel of risk

<> Simiarlevelof risk

X/ Decreased level of risk

Materiality The materiality that we usedfor the group financial staterments was £8.4m, which was determined on the basis of 1.5%
of gross assets

Scoping The group audit team performed full scope audit procedures giving a coverage of 100% of the group's net assets value

andnet profit for the year.

Significantchangesinour Inthe current year the financial performance of the group demonstrated higher than forecast rent collection, strength

approach within the industrial portfolio valuationand compliance with allcovenants. Both management actions and the recovery
of the economy following vaccination rollout and reopening of businesses, resulted in stronger than forecast results for
the group. Inthe previous year,impact of COVID-19 ongoing concern was identified as a key audit matter basedona
combined assessment of forecast covenant and REIT regime compliance, liquidity and ability to pay dividends. Since
the group continued to perform strongly and met all bank covenants and REIT regime compliance and itsreverse stress
testing represents a highly unlikely scenario, we no longer consider the impact of COVID-19 ongoing concernas akey
audit matterinthe current year.
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4  Conclusionsrelating to going concern

Inauditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
isappropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors' assessment of the group's and parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

« Obtaininganunderstanding, of the relevant controls relating to the going concern assumption;

o testing the clerical accuracy of the model used to prepare the going concern forecasts;

o assessing the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management and actual performanceinthe subsequent period;

« evaluatingmanagement's assessment of theimpact of COVID-19 and Brexit within the forecast;

» agreeing the available financing facllities to underlying agreements and assessed accuracy of covenant calculation forecasts performed by management;
o assessing the accuracy of the REIT regime calculation forecasts performed by management;

o assessing the reasonableness of management's reverse-stress testing; and

o assessing the adequacy of disclosures made in the financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the group's and parent company's abllity to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorisedforissue.

Inrelation to the reporting on how the group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add or draw attentiontoinrelation to the
directors' statementin the financial statements about whether the directors consideredit appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Ourresponsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

5 Keyauditmatters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and
include the most significant assessed risks of material misstaternent (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the
greatest effect on: the overallaudit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opiniononthese matters
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Custodian REIT plc continued

5 Keyaudit matters continued
5.1. Valuation ofinvestment property
Risk <>

Key audit matter description

The group's principal activity is toinvest in commercial properties and secure income from tenants of those properties.
AsdisclosedinNote 10 the group'sinvestment property portfoliois valued at £551.9mas at 3t March 2021(2020: £559.8m)

The group'saccounting policy inNote 2 states thatinvestment propertyis held at fair value and Note 2.4 describes key
judgements madein valuation of investment properties. In determining the fair value, the external valuers make anumber of
key estimates and significant assumptions, in particular assumptions in relation to market comparable vields and estimates
inrelationto future rentalincome increases or decreases. Certain of these estimates and assumptions require input from
management. Estimates and assumptions are subject to market forces and will change over time

Valuation of investment property is an area of judgement which could materially affect the financial statements. The
valuations were carried out by third party valuers. The valuers were engaged by those charged with governance and
performed their work in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation—Professional
Standards.

Theestimation of yields and estimated rental values (ERVs) inthe property valuationis a significant judgement area,
underpinned by anumber of assumptions relating to the size andlocation of the property as wellas certain attributes of the
lease. Given the high level of judgement involved, we determined that there was a potential for possible manipulation of these
key inputs to the valuation. The inherent subjectivity inrelation to estimation of yields and ERVs, coupled with the fact that only
asmallpercentage difference inindividual property valuations, when aggregated, couldresult in amaterial misstaterent on
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, warrants specific audit focusinthis area
andwehave considered itasa key audit matter.

The Auditand Risk Committee report on pages 88-90 discloses this as a primary area of judgement.

How the scope of our audit
responded to the key audit matter

We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the valuation process, including assessing management's
process and control for reviewing and challenging the work of the external valuers including management's experience
and knowledge to undertake this activity.

With the involvement of our real estate specialists who are Chartered Surveyors we identified items subject to testing and
met with the third party valuers appointed by those charged with governance with the aim of challenging the valuation
methodology adopted. We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external valuers and read

their terms of engagement with the group to determine whether there were any matters that might have affected their
objectivity or may have imposed scope limitations on their work.

We assessed and challenged the reasonableness of the significant judgements and assumptions appliedin the
valuation modelfor each property inour sample, focusing in particular on the yields and ERVs assumed and assessing
the sensitivity of the valuation to changes in assumptions. We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data
provided by the group to the valuers for the purposes of their valuation exercise.

With the assistance of members of our audit team who are Chartered Surveyors, we reviewed the significant
assumptions inthe valuation process, tested a sample of properties by benchmarking against external appropriate
property indices and understood the valuation methodology and the wider market analysis. We reviewed the information
provided by the valuers bothin the meetings and contained in the detailed valuation report; and we undertook our own
researchinto the relevant markets to evaluate the reasonableness of the valuation inputs and the resulting fair values.

We have also tested the integrity of the model whichis used by the external valuers.

We also considered the adequacy of the group's disclosures around the degree of the estimation and sensitivity to key
assumptions made when valuing these properties, including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Key observations

Theresults of our tests were satisfactory and we concluded that the key assumptions applied in determining the property
valuations were appropriate. The testing performed in relation to the final property valuations proved satisfactory.
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6  Ourapplication of materiality

6.1 Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatementin the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
person wouldbe changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work

Based onour professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Materiality £8.4m (2020:£8.7m) £8.39m (2020: £8.69m)
Basis for determining materiality 1.5% of gross assets (2020: 1.5% of gross assets) for the Statement of financial position testing.

This percentage takes into account our knowledge of the group and parent company, our assessment
of audit risks and the reporting requirements for the financial statements

Rationale for the benchmark applied We have usedthe gross assets value as at 31March 2021as the benchmark for determining materiality,
as thisbenchmark is deemed to be one of the key drivers of business value, and is a critical component of
the financial statements andis a focus for users of those financial statements for property companies. In
addition to gross assets, we consider EPRA earnings as a critical performance measure for the group that
isapplied tounderlying earnings. We have also benchmarked these percentages and our approach to
materiality to other listed REITs based on information publicly disclosedin the audit reports and found them
tobe consistent.

Alower materiality of £1.9m (2020: £2.9m) which was determined on the basis of 8% (2020:10%) EPRA earnings was used for amounts inthe statement of
comprehensive income. We consider EPRA earnings to be the most appropriate benchmark due to it being one of the key focus areas for bothinvestors and
management. Refer to Note 21for a reconciliation to IFRS earnings. We reduced the percentage applied to EPRA earnings for the purpose of determination of lower
focused materiality inresponse to uncertainties brought by COVID-19.

6.2. Performance materiality
We set performance materiality at alevel lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed the
materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Groupfinancial statements Parent company financial statements
Performance materiality 70% (2020: 70%) of group materiality and parent company materiality (respectively).
Basis and rationale for determining Indetermining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:
performance materiality a. our cumulative knowledge of the group and its environment, including industry wide pressure on

valuation of property portfolio;and
b. our pastexperience of the audit, which has indicated a low number of corrected and uncorrected
misstatements identified in prior periods.

6.3. Errorreporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences inexcess of £420,000 (2020:£435,000), as wellas
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit and Risk Committee on disclosure matters
that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Custodian REIT plc continued

7 Anoverview of the scope of our audit

71. ldentification and scoping of components

Our group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the group and its environment, including group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of material
misstatement at the group level. Allaudit work to respond to the risks of material misstaterent was performed directly by the group audit engagement team.

The group consists of the parent company and subsidiaries that were inactive by the year end. We carried out a full scope audit of the group

7.2. Ourconsideration of the control environment
We obtained anunderstanding of the relevant controls inrelation to key business processes as wellas [T systems that were relevant to the audit. We however did not
rely on controls due to nature of the group's business and processes

8 Otherinformation

The other information comprises the informationincludedin the annual report, other than the financial statements and We have nothing to report
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report inthisregard

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
statedin our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other
information and, indoing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtainedin the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Ifwe identify such materialinconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
this givesrise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that thereis amaterial misstaterent of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

9 Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully inthe directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give atrue and fair view, and for suchinternal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Inpreparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's ability to continue as agoing concern,
disclosing as applicable, mattersrelated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or
the parent company or to cease operations, or have norealistic alternative but to do so

10 Auditor’sresponsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
orerror,and toissue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
inaccordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or inthe aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsis located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor's report
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11 Extenttowhich the audit was considered capable of detectingirregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect material misstaterentsinrespect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud s
detailed below.

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related toirregularities
Inidentifying and assessing risks of material misstaterent in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we considered
the following:

o thenature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the group's remuneration policies, key drivers for
directors' remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

o thegroup'sownassessment of the risks that irregularities may occur either as a result of fraud or error that was approved by the board on 26 May 2021,

« results of ourenquiries of management, internal audit, investment manager and the Audit and Risk Committee about their ownidentification and assessment of the
risks of irregularities;

« any matters weidentified having obtained and reviewed the group’'s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:

— identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
— detectingandresponding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;
— theinternal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance withlaws and regulations;

o the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and relevant internal specialists, including real estate specialists, regarding how and where fraud might
occurinthe financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

Asaresult of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud andidentified the greatest potential
for fraudin the following areas: valuation of investrment property. In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to
respond to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the group operates in, focusing on provisions of those laws and regulations that had a
direct effect onthe determination of material amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context included
the UK Companies Act, Listing Rules,and REIT legislation.

Inaddition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be
fundamental to the group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included the environmental regulations

11.2. Auditresponse torisksidentified
Asaresult of performing the above, we identified the valuation of investment property as a key audit matter related to the potential risk of fraud. The key audit matters
sectionof our report explains the matter in more detailand also describes the specific procedures we performedin response to that key audit matter.

Inaddition to the above, our procedures to respond torisks identified included the following:

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations
described as having adirect effect on the financial statements;

o enquiring of management, the Audit and Risk Committee and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;
« performinganalytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;
o reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing internal audit reports; and

» inaddressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether
the judgements made inmaking accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are
unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members, including internal specialists, and remained
alertto anyindications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Custodian REIT plc continued

Reportonotherlegaland regulatory requirements
12 Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
Inour opinion the part of the directors remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared inaccordance with the Companies Act 2006

Inour opinion, based on the work undertakenin the course of the audit:

« theinformation givenin the Strategic report and the Directors'report for the financial year for which the financial statements are preparedis consistent with the
financial statements;and

» the Strategicreport and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance withapplicable legal requirements.

Inthelight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained inthe course of the audit, we have not identified
any material misstatementsinthe Strategic report or the Directors report.

13 Corporate Governance Statement
The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate Governance Statement
relating to the group’'s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate Governance Statement is materially
consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit:

o thedirectors'statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material uncertainties identified set out on
page 97,

« thedirectors explanationas toits assessment of the group’s prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period is appropriate set out onpage 73;
« thedirectors statement onfair, balanced and understandable set out on page 103;

o theboard's confirmationthat it has carried out arobust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on page 73;

o thesection of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems set out on page 70;and

» thesectiondescribing the work of the Audit and Risk Committee set out on pages 83-90

14 Matters on which we are required toreportby exception
14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: We have nothing toreportinrespect
of these matters.
« we have not received allthe information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
pbeen received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not inagreement with the accounting records andreturns.

14.2. Directors’remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors' We have nothing toreportinrespect
remunerationhave not beenmade or the part of the directors remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement with of these matters
the accounting records andreturns.
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15 Other matters which we arerequired to address

15.1 Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee, we were appointed as auditor by the directorsin 2014 to audit the financial statements for the period
ended 24 March 2014 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firmis
eight years, covering the periods ended 24 March 2014 to 31March 2021,

15.2 Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit and Risk Committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit and Risk Committee we are required to provide in accordance with ISAs (UK).

16 Useofourreport

Thisreportis made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work hasbeen
undertaken so that we might state to the company’'s members those matters we are required to state to themin an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as abody, for our audit
work, for thisreport, or for the opinions we have formed.

James Wright (Senior statutory auditor)
Forandonbehalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Crawley, United Kingdom

15June 2021
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Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
Note £000 £000
Revenue 4 39,578 40,903
Investment management (3,331) (3,517)
Operating expenses of rental property
—rechargeabletotenants (914) (880)
—directlyincurred (5,559) (1,883)
Professional fees (489) (445)
Directors'fees (218) (200)
Administrative expenses (551) (620)
Expenses (11,062) (7.545)
Operating profit before financing and revaluation of investment property 28,516 33,358
Unrealisedlosses onrevaluation of investment property:
—relating to property revaluations 10 (19,611) (25,850)
—relating to costs of acquisition 10 (707) (599)
Valuationdecrease (20,318) (26,449)
Profit/(loss) ondisposal ofinvestment property 393 (101)
Netloss oninvestment property (19,925) (26,550)
Operating profit before financing 8,591 6,808
Financeincome 6 61 36
Finance costs 7 (4,903) 4,721)
Netfinance costs (4,842) (4,685)
Profit before tax 3,749 2123
Income taxexpense 8 - _
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,749 2123
Attributable to:
Ownersofthe Company 3,749 2123
Earnings per ordinary share:
Basicanddiluted (p) 3 0.9 05
EPRA (p) 3 5.6 70

The profit for the year arises from the Company's continuing operations.
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Consolidated and Company statements of financial position

As at 31 March 202
Registered number: 08863271

Group Company
31March2021 31March2020 31March2021 31March2020
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-currentassets
Investment property 10 551,922 559,817 551,922 559,817
Investments 1 - - 3,405 3,405
Totalnon-currentassets 551,922 559,817 555,327 563,222
Currentassets
Trade and otherreceivables 12 6,001 5,297 6,001 5,297
Cashandcashequivalents 14 3,920 25,399 3,920 25,399
Totalcurrentassets 9,921 30,696 9,921 30,696
Total assets 561,843 590,513 565,248 593,918
Equity
Issued capital 16 4,201 4,201 4,201 4,201
Share premium 16 250,469 250,469 250,469 250,469
Retainedearnings 16 155,196 172,082 155,196 172,082
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 409,866 426,752 409,866 426,752
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 15 138,604 148,323 138,604 148,323
Otherpayables 572 576 572 576
Totalnon-currentliabilities 139,176 148,899 139,176 148,899
Currentliabilities
Trade and other payables 13 6,185 7794 9,590 11,199
Deferredincome 6,616 7068 6,616 7068
Totalcurrentliabilities 12,801 14,862 16,206 18,267
Total liabilities 151,977 163,761 155,382 167,166
Total equity and liabilities 561,843 590,513 565,248 593,918

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate profit and loss account is presented in respect of the parent company. The profit for the

financial year dealt with in the financial statements of the parent company was £3,749,000 (2020: £2,123,000).

These consolidated and Company financial statements of Custodian REIT plc were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2021

and are signedonits behalf by:

David Hunter
Chairman
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Financial Statements continued

Consolidated and Company statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2021
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Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020
Group and Company Note £000 £000
Operating activities
Profit for the year 3,749 2,123
Netfinance costs 4,842 4,685
Valuation decrease of investment property 10 20,318 26,449
Impact of rent free 10 (1,932) (1,402)
Amortisation of right-of-use asset 7 7
(Profit)/loss on disposal of investment property (393) 101
Cash flows from operating activities before
changesin working capital and provisions 26,591 31,963
Increaseintrade and other receivables (704) (1,623)
(Decrease)/Increaseintrade and other payables and deferredincome (2,065) 702
Cashgenerated from operations 23,822 31,042
Interestand other finance charges (4,556) (4,435)
Net cash flows from operating activities 19,266 26,607
Investing activities
Purchase ofinvestment property (11,443) (24,048)
Capitalexpenditure and development (2,308) (2,804)
Acquisitioncosts (707) (599)
Disposal of investment property 4,422 15,383
Costsof disposal of investment property (69) (159)
Interestand financeincome received 6 61 36
Net cashusedininvesting activities (10,044) (12.191)
Financing activities
Proceedsfromtheissue of share capital 16 - 25,300
Costsofshareissue - (292)
New borrowings net of origination costs 15 (10,066) 10,505
Dividends paid 9 (20,635) (27.002)
Net cash fromfinancingactivities (30,701) 8,511
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (21,479) 22,927
Cashandcashequivalents at start of the year 25,399 2472
Cashand cash equivalents at end of the year 3,920 25,399
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Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Issued Share Retained Total
capital premium earnings equity
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Asat1April2019 3,982 225,680 196,961 426,623
Profit for the year - - 2123 2123
Totalcomprehensive income for year - - 2123 2123
Transactions with owners of the Company,
recognised directly in equity
Dividends 9 - - (27,002) (27,002)
Issue of share capital 16 219 24,789 - 25,008
Asat31March2020 4,201 250,469 172,082 426,752
Profitfor the year - - 3,749 3,749
Totalcomprehensiveincome for year - - 3,749 3,749
Transactions with owners of the Company,
recognised directly in equity
Dividends 9 - - (20,635) (20,635)
Issue of share capital 16 — — — _
Asat31March2021 4,201 250,469 155,196 409,866

1202 SIUNCO0Y PUB LIoday fenuly 91d 1134 uelpoisn)

115



1202 SIUNCO0Y PUB LIoday fenully 91d 1134 uelpoisn)

116

Financial Statements continued

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

1. Corporateinformation

The Companyis a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales, whose shares are publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange
plc's main market for listed securities. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of investment
property,and are presented in pounds sterling with all values rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£000), except when otherwise indicated. The consolidated
financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 15 June 2021.

2. Basisof preparationand accounting policies

2.1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements of the parent company have been prepared in accordance withinternational accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 as it appliesin the European Union. The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issuedby the |ASB.

Certain statements in thisreport are forward looking statements. By their nature, forward looking statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties or assumptions
that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from those expressed or implied by those statements. Forward looking statements regarding past trends
or activities should not be taken as representation that such trends or activities willcontinue in the future. Accordingly, undue reliance should not be placed on forward
looking statements.

2.2. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements consolidate those of the parent company andits subsidiaries. The parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights,
tovariable returns from itsinvolvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns throughits power over the subsidiary. Custodian Real Estate
Limited has areporting datein line with the Company. Other subsidiaries have December accounting reference dates which have not been amended since their
acquisitionasthose companies are expected to be liquidated during the next financial year. Alltransactions and balances between group companies are eliminated
onconsolidation, including unrealised gains and losses on transactions between group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed
onconsolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a group perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of the subsidiary are
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

2.3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
During the year the Company adopted the following new standards with noimpact on reported financial performance or position:

o COVID-19-related rent concessions amendment to IFRS 16
o Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
o AmendmentstolAS 1andIAS 8 Definition of material

o Amendments to|AS 1Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Atthe date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new and revised IFRSs which have not been applied in these financial statements were inissue
but not yet effective:

¢ IFRS17-‘Insurance Contracts’
IFRS 17 was published in May 2017 and is effective for periods commencing on or after 1January 2021, IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts.

* Annuallmprovementsto IFRS Standards 2018-2020
The Company has not completed itsreview of the impact of these new standards but does not anticipate themhaving a significantimpact
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2.4. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and Company and applied to these financial staterments are set out below.

Goingconcern

The Directors believe the Company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on rent deferrals and
tenant default. The Company’s projections show that the Company should be able to operate within the level of its current financing arrangements for at least the next
12months, set outinmore detailin the Directors' report and Principal risks and uncertainties section of the Strategic report. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt
the going concernbasis for the preparation of the financial statements.

Income recognition
Contractualrevenues are allocated to each performance obligation of a contract and revenue is recognised on a basis consistent with the transfer of control of goods
orservices. Revenueis measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duties

Rentalincome from operating leases on properties owned by the Company is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Rentalincome excludes
service charges and other costs directly recoverable fromtenants

Leaseincentives are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Revenue and profits on the sale of properties are recognised on the completion of contracts. The amount of profit recognised s the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carryingamount.

Financeincomerelates to bank interest receivable and amounts receivable on ongoing development funding contracts.

Taxation

The Group operates asa REIT and hence profits and gains from the property rental business are normally expected to be exempt from corporation tax. The tax
expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax relating to the residual (non-property rental) business. The tax currently payable is based
ontaxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income and
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current taxis
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Investment property

Investment property is held to earnrentals and/or for capital appreciation and isinitially recognised at cost including direct transaction costs. Investment property
issubsequently valued externally ona market basis at the reporting date and recorded at valuation. Any surplus or deficit arising on revaluing investment property is
recognisedin profit orlossin the year in which it arises. Dilapidations receipts are held in the statement of financial position and offset against subsequent associated
expenditure. Any ultimate gains or shortfalls are measured by reference to previously published valuations and recognised in profit or loss, offset against any directly
corresponding movementin fair value of the investment properties to which they relate

Group undertakings
Investments are includedinthe Company only statement of financial position at cost less any provision forimpairment.

Non-listed equity investments
Non-listed equity investments are classified at fair value through profit and loss and are subsequently measured using level 3 inputs, meaning valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

Financial assets
The Company's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. Interest resulting from holding financial assets is recognisedin
profit orloss onanaccruals basis

LLoansandreceivables are measured subsequent to initial recognition at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is made when objective evidence is received that the Company willnot be able to collect allamounts due to it inaccordance
withthe original terms of the receivable. The amount of the impairment is determined as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value

of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective rate computed at initial recognition. Any change in value through impairment or reversal of impairment is
recognised inprofit or loss

Afinancialassetis de-recognised only where the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or the financial asset is transferred and that transfer
qualifies for de-recognition. A financial asset is transferredif the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the asset have been transferred or the Company retains
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. A financial asset that
is transferred qualifies for de-recognitionif the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
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Financial Statements continued

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2021

2. Basisof preparationand accounting policies continued

2.4. Significant accounting policies continued

Cashand cashequivalents

Cashand cash equivalents include cashinhand and on-demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into a known
amount of cash and are subject to aninsignificantrisk of changes in value

Financial liabilities and equity

Financialliabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences aresidualinterest in the assets of the Company after deducting allof its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceedsreceived, net of directissue costs.

Share capital represents the nominal value of equity shares issued. Share premium represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of the consideration
received for equity shares, net of directissue costs.

Retained earningsinclude all current and prior year results as disclosed in profit or loss. Retained earnings include realised and unrealised profits. Profits are
considered unrealised where they arise frommovements in the fair value of investment properties that are considered to be temporary rather than permanent.

Bankborrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums payable
onsettlements or redemptionand directissue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method and are added
tothe carryingamount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Leases

Where aninvestment property is held under aleasehold interest, the headlease is initially recognised as an asset at cost plus the present value of minimum ground
rent payments. The corresponding rentalliability to the head leaseholder isincluded in the balance sheet as aliability. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining lease liability.

Segmentalreporting

Anoperating segmentis a distinguishable component of the Company that engages in business activities fromwhich it may earn revenues andincur expenses,
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker (the Board) to make decisions about the allocation of resources and
assessment of performance and about which discrete financialinformationis available. As the chief operating decision maker reviews financial information for, and
makes decisions about the Company'sinvestment properties as a portfolio, the Directors have identified a single operating segment, that of investment in commercial
properties.

2.5. Key sources of judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets
andliabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. If in the future such estimates and assumptions, which are based on the Directors best judgement at the date
of preparation of the financial statements, deviate from actual circumstances, the original estimates and assumptions will be modified as appropriate in the periodin
whichthe circumstances change.

Judgements
The areas where ahigher degree of judgement or complexity arises are discussed below:

« Valuation of investment property —Investment property is valued at the reporting date at fair value. Where aninvestment property is being redeveloped the
property continues to be treated as aninvestment property. Surpluses and deficits attributable to the Company arising fromrevaluation are recognised in profit
orloss. Valuation surpluses reflected inretained earnings are not distributable until realised on sale. Inmaking its judgement over the valuation of properties, the
Company considers valuations performed by the independent valuersin determining the fair value of its investment properties. The valuers make reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. The valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental income, anticipated maintenance
costs andappropriate discount rates. Inresponse to the COVID-19 pandemic, 31March 2020 valuations were subject to a ‘material uncertainty’ clause inline with
RICS guidance. Valuation assumptions also include, for certain assets occupied by tenants currently not trading or with trade significantly curtailed at the year end,
athree-monthrental voidand ayield increase of 10-75bps.

Estimates
Areas where accounting estimates are significant to the financial statements are:

» Doubtful debt provisioning — the approach to providing for ‘expected credit losses'is detailed in Note 12 and uses estimates within a matrix of how much the credit
risk of trade receivables has increased since initial recognition based on the number of days overdue, taking into account qualitative and quantitative supportable
information. Due to theimpact of the COVID-19 pandemic on collectionrates, there has been a significant increase in assessed credit risk during the year. Each
individual property rental receivable is reviewed to assess whether there is a probability of default and expected credit loss given the Investment Manager's

knowledge of the specific tenant over and above the provision calculated from the matrix.
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Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary

sharesinto ordinary shares. There are no dilutive instrumentsinissue. Shares issued after the year end are disclosed in Note 20

The CompanyisaFTSE EPRA/NAREIT index series constituent and EPRA performance measures have been disclosed to facilitate comparability with the

Company's peers through consistent reporting of key performance measures. EPRA hasissued recommended bases for the calculation of EPS which the Directors

consider are better indicators of performance

Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020

Net profitand diluted net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (£000) 3,749 2,123

Netloss oninvestment property (£000) 19,925 26,550

EPRA net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (£000) 23,674 28,673
Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

Issued ordinary shares at start of the year (thousands) 420,053 398,203

Effect of sharesissued during the year (thousands) - 11,508

Basic and diluted weighted average number of shares (thousands) 420,053 409,711

Basicanddiluted EPS (p) 0.9 05

EPRAEPS (p) 5.6 70

4. Revenue

Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020

£000 £000

Grossrentalincome frominvestment property 38,664 40,022

Income fromrechargestotenants 914 881

39,578 40,903
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Financial Statements continued

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2021

5. Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging:

Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
£000 £000
(Profit)/loss on disposal of investment property (393) 101
Investment property valuationdecrease 20,318 26,449
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit
of the Company’s annual financial statements 106 96
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services 20 26
Administrative fee payable to the Investment Manager 416 434
Directlyincurred operating expenses of vacant rental property 822 910
Directlyincurred operating expenses of let rental property 1,142 600
Increase indoubtful debt provision, write offs due to tenant business failure and rent concessions 3,591 336
Amortisation of right-of-use asset 7 7
Fees payable to the Company's auditor, Deloitte LLP are further detailed in the Audit and Risk Committee report
6. Financeincome
Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
£000 £000
Bankinterest 28 36
Financeincome 33 -
61 36
7. Financecosts
Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
£000 £000
Amortisation of arrangement fees ondebt facilities 347 286
Otherfinance costs 287 200
Bankinterest 4,269 4,235
4,903 4721

8. Incometax

Thetaxcharge assessed for the year is lower than the standardrate of corporation tax in the UK during the year of 19.0%. The differences are explained below:

Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020

£000 £000

Profitbeforeincome tax 3,749 2123
Tax charge on profitat a standardrate of 19.0% (2020:19.0%) 712 403

Effectsof:

REIT tax exemptrental profitsand gains (712) (403)
Income taxexpense - -
Effectiveincometaxrate 0.0% 0.0%

The Company operates asa REIT and hence profits and gains from the property investment business are normally exempt from corporation tax
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9. Dividends
Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
Group and Company £000 £000
Interim dividends paid on ordinary sharesrelating to the quarter ended:
Prioryear
—31March 2020:1.6625p (2019:1.6375p) 6,983 6,521
Currentyear
—30June2020:0.95p (2019:1.6625p) 3,990 6,786
—30September2020:1.05p (2019:1.6625p) 4,411 6,828
—31December 2020:1.25p (2019:1.6625p) 5,251 6,867
20,635 27,002

The Company paid a fourth interim dividend relating to the quarter ended 31 March 2021 of 1.25p per ordinary share (totalling £5.3m) on 28 May 2021 to shareholders

ontheregister atthe close of business on 14 May 2021 The Company has approved a fifth interim dividend per share relating to the year of 0.5p totalling £2.1m payable

on30 June 2021to shareholders onthe register at the close of business on 21May 2021. These dividends have not beenincluded as liabilities in these financial

statements.

10. Investment property

Group and Company £000
At31March2019 572,745
Impact of leaseincentives 1,402
Additions 24,647
Amortisation of right-of-use asset (7)
Capitalexpenditure and development 2,804
Disposals (15,325)
Valuation decrease before acquisition costs (25,850)
Acquisitioncosts (599)
Valuation decreaseincludingacquisition costs (26,449)
At31March 2020 559,817
Impact ofleaseincentives 1,932
Additions 12,150
Amortisation of right-of-use asset @
Capitalexpenditure and development 2,308
Disposals (3,960)
Valuation decrease before acquisition costs (19,611)
Acquisitioncosts (707)
Valuation decrease including acquisition costs (20,318)
At31March 2021 551,922

£3919m (2020: £375.1m) of investment property has been charged as security against the Company's borrowings. £0.6m (2020: £0.6m) of investment property

comprises right-of-use assets.

The carrying value of investment property at 31 March 2021 comprises £444.1m freehold (2020: £4479m) and £107.8m leasehold property (2020: £111.9m)

Investment property is stated at the Directors'estimate of its 31 March 2021 fair value. LLambert Smith Hampton Group Limited and Knight Frank LLP, professionally

qualifiedindependent valuers, each valued approximately half of the property portfolio as at 31 March 2021in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards

published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (‘RICS”). LSH and KF have recent experience in the relevant locations and categories of the property being

valued. 31 March 2020 valuations were subject to a material uncertainty’ clause inline with RICS guidance.
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10. Investment property continued

Investment property has been valued using the investment method whichinvolves applying a yield torentalincome streams. Inputs include vield, current rent and
ERV.For the year end valuation, the equivalent yields used ranged from 4.3% to 12.3%. VValuationreports are based on both information provided by the Company
eg.current rentsandlease terms, which are derived from the Company's financial and property management systems and are subject to the Company's overall
controlenvironment, and assumptions applied by the valuers e g. ERVs andyields. These assumptions are based on market observation andthe valuers' professional
judgement. Inestimating the fair value of each property, the highest and best use of the properties s their current use. Inresponse to the COVID-19 pandemic, for all
assets occupied by tenants currently not trading or with trade significantly curtailed at the year end, the Company's valuers assumed a three-month rental void and

appliedayieldincrease of 25-75bps to valuations. It is not possible to estimate sensitivity to these assumptions.

Allother factors being equal, a higher equivalent yield would lead to a decrease in the valuation of investment property, and anincrease in the current or estimated
future rental stream would have the effect of increasing capital value, and vice versa. However, there are interrelationships between unobservable inputs which are

partially determined by market conditions, which could impact on these changes.

1. Investments
Sharesinsubsidiaries

Company Country of
registrationand Ordinary 31March2021 31March2020
Name Company number incorporation  Principalactivity — sharesheld £000 £000
Custodian Real Estate Limited 08882372  EnglandandWales Non-trading 100% = -
Custodian Real Estate BL Limited 09270501  EnglandandWales Non-trading—
inliquidation 100% - -
Custodian Real Estate (Beaumont Leys) Limited* 04364589  EnglandandWales Non-trading—
inliquidation 100% 4 4
Custodian Real Estate (Leicester) Limited* 04312180  EnglandandWales Non-trading—
inliquidation 100% 497 497
Custodian Real Estate (JMP4) Limited 11187952  EnglandandWales Non-trading— 100% 2,904 2,904
(formerly John Menzies Property 4 Limited) inliquidation
3,405 3,405
* Heldindirectly.

The Company's non-trading UK subsidiaries have claimed the audit exemption available under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. The Company'sregistered

officeis also the registered office of each UK subsidiary.

Non-listed equity investments

Group and Company Country of

registrationand Ordinary 31March2021  31March2020
Name Company number incorporation Principal activity sharesheld £000 £000
AGO Hotels Limited 12747566 EnglandandWales ~ Operator of hotels 45% - -

The Company was allotted 4.5% of the ordinary share capital of AGO Hotels Limited on 31 January 2021 as part of anew letting of its hotel asset in Portishead.

12. Tradeandotherreceivables

Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020

Group and Company £000 £000
Fallingdueinlessthanoneyear:

Tradereceivables 4,192 4,359

Otherreceivables 1,706 217

Prepaymentsandaccruedincome 103 721

6,001 5,297

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises themas

appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before amounts become past due.
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12. Tradeand otherreceivables continued

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that financial

assets that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:
« \Whenthereisabreach of financial covenants by the debtor, or

o Availableinformationindicates the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors.

Such balances are provided for in full. For remaining balances the Company has applied an expected creditloss (‘ECL") matrix based on its experience of collecting
rentarrears and deferred rents since the onset of COVID-19 disruption. The ECL matrix fully provides for receivable balances more than 90 days past due, partially
provides against receivable balances between one and 90 days past due and partially provides against receivable balances not yet due because of a contractual

deferral.

Themovementinthe expected credit loss provision, set out below, is recognised within directly incurred operating expenses of rental property of £5,559k

(2020:£1,883K) inthe income statement.

Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020

Group and Company £000 £000
Expected creditloss provision

Openingbalance 341 18

Increaseinprovisionrelating to trade receivables that are credit-impaired 2,689 323

Closing balance 3,030 341

Theincrease inprovision during the year is due to tenants not settling their contractual rental obligations on a timely basis, primarily due to a cessation or curtailment of

trade due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Tenant rent deposits of £0.9m (2020: £0.7m) are held as collateral against certain trade receivable balances

13. Trade and other payables

Group Company
31March2021 31March2020 31March2021 31March2020
£000 £000 £000 £000

Fallingdueinlessthanoneyear:
Trade and other payables 1,730 2,091 1,730 2,091
Socialsecurity and other taxes 882 2,462 882 2,462
Accruals 2,665 2,563 2,665 2,563
Rentaldeposits 908 678 908 678
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - - 3,405 3,405
6,185 7794 9,590 11,199

The Directors consider that the carryingamount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value. Trade payables and accruals principally comprise
amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. For most suppliers interest is charged if payment is not made within the required terms. Thereafter,
interestis chargeable on the outstanding balances at various rates. The Company has financial risk management policiesin place to ensure that all payables are paid

withinthe credittimescale.

Amounts payable to subsidiary undertakings are due on demand.

1202 SIUNCO0Y PUB LIoday fenuly 91d 1134 uelpoisn)

123



Financial Statements continued

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2021

14. Cashandcashequivalents
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Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020

Group and Company £000 £000
Cashandcashequivalents 3,920 25,399

Cashand cashequivalents at 31 March 2021include £2.6m (2020: £0.9m) of restricted cash comprising: £1.5m (2020: £nil) interest ‘prepayments'in connection
witharranginginterest cover covenant waivers, £0.9m (2020: £0.7m) rental deposits held on behalf of tenants and £0.2m (2020: £0.2m) retentions held in respect of
development fundings.

15. Borrowings

Costs
incurredinthe
arrangement
of bank
Bank borrowings borrowings Total
Group and Company £000 £000 £000
Fallingdueinmore thanoneyear:
At31March2020 150,000 (1,677) 148,323
Netrepayment of borrowings (10,000) (66) (10,066)
Amortisation of arrangement fees - 347 347
At31March2021 140,000 (1,396) 138,604

During the year the Company and Lloyds agreed to extend the term of the RCF by one year to expire in 2023, and an option remains to extend the term by a further
yearto2024.

The Company has the following facilities available:

o A£35mRCF with Lloyds Bank plc (‘Lloyds”) withinterest of between 1.5% and 1.8% above three-month LIBOR and repayable on 17 September 2023. The RCF limit
canbeincreased to £50m with Lioyds' consent;

o A£20m termloan with Scottish Widows plc withinterest fixed at 3.935% and repayable on 13 August 2025;
o Af45mtermloanwith Scottish Widows plc withinterest fixed at 2.987% and repayable on 5 June 2028; and
o A£50m termloan with Aviva comprising:

— £35m Tranche Trepayable on 6 April 2032 attracting fixed annual interest of 3.02%; and
— £15m Tranche 2 repayable on 3 November 2032 attracting fixed annualinterest of 3.26%

Each facility has a discrete security pool, comprising a number of the Company'sindividual properties, over which the relevant lender has security and covenants:

o Themaximum LTV of the discrete security poolis between 45% and 50%, with an overarching covenant on the Company's property portfolio of amaximum
35%LTV;and

« Historicalinterest cover, requiring net rental receipts from each discrete security pool, over the preceding three months, to exceed 250% of the facility's quarterly
interest liability.

The Company’s debt facilities contain market-standard cross-guarantees such that a default on anindividual facility will result in all facilities falling into default.
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16. Share capital

Group and Company Ordinary

shares
Issuedshare capital of1p £000
At1April2019 398,203,344 3,982
Issue of share capital 21,850,000 219
At31March 2020 420,053,344 4,201
Issue of share capital - -
At31March2021 420,053,344 4,201

During the prior year, the Company raised £25.3m (before costs and expenses) through the placing of 21,850,000 new ordinary shares.

Rights, preferences and restrictions on shares

Allordinary shares carry equalrights and no privileges are attached to any shares in the Company. All the shares are freely transferable, except as otherwise
provided by law. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. Allshares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Atthe AGM of the Company held on1September 2020, the Board was given authority to issue up to 140,017,781 shares, pursuant to section 551 of the Companies
Act 2006 (‘the Authority”). The Authorityisintended to satisfy market demand for the ordinary shares and raise further monies for investment inaccordance with the
Company'sinvestment policy. No ordinary shares have beenissued under the Authority since 1September 2020, leaving an unissued balance of 140,017,781at 31
March 2021. The Authority expires on the earlier of 15 months from 1September 2020 and the subsequent AGM, due to take place on 25 August 2021.

Inaddition, the Company was granted authority to make market purchases of up to 42,005,300 ordinary shares under section 7010of the Companies Act 2006
No market purchases of ordinary shares have been made

Share premium Retained
account earnings
Group and Company £000 £000
Otherreserves
At1April2019 225,680 196,961
Sharesissuedduring the year 25,081 -
Costsof shareissue (292) -
Profitforthe year - 2,123
Dividends paid - (27,002)
At31March 2020 250,469 172,082
Sharesissuedduring the year - -
Costsof shareissue - -
Profit for the year - 3,749
Dividends paid - (20,635)
At31March 2021 250,469 155,196

The nature and purpose of eachreserve withinequity are
« Share premium—Amounts subscribed for share capitalin excess of nominal value less any associated issue costs that have been capitalised.

o Retained earnings - Allother net gains andlosses and transactions with owners (e.g. dividends) not recognised elsewhere.
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17. Commitments and contingencies

Company as lessor

Operatingleases, inwhich the Company is the lessor, relate toinvestment property ownedby the Company with lease terms of between O to 15 years. The aggregated
future minimum rentals receivable under allnon-cancellable operating leases are:

Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
Group and Company £000 £000
Notlaterthanoneyear 36,191 37,519
Year2 31,771 34,941
Year3 27,987 29,335
Year4 23,875 25,810
Year5 19,300 22,403
Laterthanfiveyears 72,428 75,893
211,552 225,901

The following table presents amounts reportedinrevenue:
Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
Group and Company £000 £000
Leaseincome onoperating leases 38,621 39,833
Thereinleaseincomerelating to variable lease payments that donotdepend onanindexorrate 152 189
38,773 40,022

18. Related party transactions
Save for transactions described below, the Company is not a party to, nor had any interestin, any other related party transaction during the year.

Transactions with Directors

Eachof the Directorsis engaged under a letter of appointment with the Company and does not have a service contract with the Company. Under the terms of their
appointment, each Director isrequired to retire by rotation and seek re-election at least every three years. Each Director's appointment under their respective letter
of appointment is terminable immediately by either party (the Company or the Director) giving written notice and no compensation or benefits are payable upon
termination of office as a Director of the Company becoming effective

lanMattioliis Chief Executive of Mattioli\WWoods, the parent company of the Investment Manager, and is a director of the Investment Manager. As aresult, lan Mattioli
isnotindependent. The Company Secretary, EdMoore, is also a director of the Investment Manager.

Investment Management Agreement

The Investment Manager is engaged as AIFM under an IMA with responsibility for the management of the Company's assets, subject to the overall supervision
of the Directors. The Investment Manager manages the Company’'s investments in accordance with the policies laid down by the Board and the investment
restrictionsreferred toin the IMA. The Investment Manager also provides day-to-day administration of the Company and acts as secretary to the Company,
including maintenance of accounting records and preparing the annual and interim financial statements of the Company.

During the year annualmanagement fees payable to the Investment Manager under the IMA were calculated as follows

o 0.9%o0f the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichis less than or equal to £200mdivided by 4;

o 0.75%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisin excess of £200m but below £500m divided by 4; plus
o 065%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisin excess of £500mdivided by 4.

During the year administrative fees payable to the Investment Manager under the IMA were calculated as follows:

o 0125% of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisless thanor equal to £200m divided by 4;

o 0.08%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisin excess of £200m but below £500m divided by 4; plus
o 0.05%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisinexcess of £500mdivided by 4.
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On22June 2020 the terms of the IMA were varied to extend the appointment of the Investment Manager for a further three years, with a further year's notice,
and tointroduce further fee hurdles such that annual management fees payable to the Investment Manager under the IMA are now:

o 09%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day which s less than or equal to £200m divided by 4;

o 0.75%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisin excess of £200m but below £500m divided by 4;

o 0.65%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisinexcess of £500m but below £750m divided by 4; plus
o 0.55%0of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisin excess of £500m divided by 4.

Administrative fees payable to the Investment Manager under the IMA are now:

o 0125% of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisless than or equal to £200m divided by 4;

o 0.08%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisin excess of £200m but below £500m divided by 4;

o 0.05%of the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichis in excess of £500m but below £750m divided by 4; plus
o 0.03%o0f the NAV of the Company as at the relevant quarter day whichisinexcess of £750mdivided by 4.

ThelMAisterminable by either party by giving not less than 12 months' prior written notice to the other, which notice may only be given after the expiry of the three-year
term. TheIMA may also be terminated on the occurrence of aninsolvency eventinrelation to either party, if the Investment Manager is fraudulent, grossly negligent or
commits a material breach which, if capable of remedy, is not remedied within three months, or on a force majeure event continuing for more than 90 days.

TheInvestment Manager receives a marketing fee of 0.25% (2020: 0.25%) of the aggregate gross proceeds from any issue of new shares in consideration of the
marketing servicesit provides to the Company.

During the year the Investment Manager chargedthe Company £3.75m (2020: £4.01m) comprising £3.33m (2020: £3.52m) in respect of annual management fees,
£0.42m (2020:£0.43m) inrespect of administrative fees and £nil (2020: £0.06m) inrespect of marketing fees

19. Financial risk management

Capital risk management

The Company managesits capital to ensure it can continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debtand
equity balance withinthe parameters of its investment policy. The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed below,
cashand cashequivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued ordinary share capital, share premium and retained earnings.

Net gearingratio

The Boardreviews the capital structure of the Company onaregular basis. As part of this review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. The Company has a target net gearing ratio of 25% determined as the proportion of debt (net of unrestricted cash) to investment property.
The net gearing ratio at the year end was 24.9% (2020: 22.4%).

Externally imposed capital requirements
The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, although there are restrictions on the level of interest that can be paid due to conditions
imposedon REITs.

Financial risk management
The Company seeks to minimise the effects of interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk by using fixed and floating rate debtinstruments with varying
maturity profiles, at low levels of net gearing

Interest rate risk management
The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of increases ininterest rates, as it borrows funds at floating interest rates. The risk is managed
by maintaining:

* Anappropriate balance between fixed and floating rate borrowings;
« Alowlevelof netgearing;and

o The RCF whose flexibility allows the Company to manage the risk of changes ininterest rates

The Board periodically considers the availability and cost of hedging instruments to assess whether their use is appropriate and also considers the maturity profile
of the Company’s borrowings.
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19. Financial risk management continued

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk arises oninterest payable onthe RCF only, as interest on all other debt facilities is payable on a fixed rate basis. At 31 March 2021, the RCF was drawn
at £25m. Assuming this amount was outstanding for the whole year and based onthe exposure tointerest rates at the reporting date, if three-month LIBOR had been
0.5% higher/lower and all other variables were constant, the Company's profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 would decrease/increase by £0.1m duetoits variable
rate borrowings.

Market risk management
The Company manages its exposure to market risk by holding a portfolio of investment property diversified by sector, locationand tenant

Market risk sensitivity
Market risk arises on the valuation of the Company’s property portfolioin complying with its bank loan covenants (Note 15). The Company would breachits overall
borrowing covenant if the valuation of its property portfolio fell by 29% (2020: 35%).

Credit risk management

Creditrisk refersto therisk that a counterparty will default onits contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company. The Company's credit risk is
primarily attributable toits trade receivables and cash balances. The amounts includedin the statement of financial position are net of allowances for bad and doubtful
debts. Anallowance forimpairment is made where a debtor is in breach of its financial covenants, available information indicates adebtor can't pay or where balances
are significantly past due.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The maximum
creditrisk on financialassets at 31March 2021 was £4.2m (2020: £4.4m).

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over alarge number of tenants covering a wide variety of business types.
Further detail on the Company's credit risk management processis included within the Strategic report.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Company's short, medium andlong-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profile of financial
assetsandliabilities.

The following tables detail the Company's contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based onthe earliest date onwhich the Company can be required to pay. The table includes bothinterest and principal cash flows

Weightedaverage 31March2021  31March2021  31March2021  31March2021

effective 0-3months 3months—1year 1-5years Syears+
Group interestrate % £000 £000 £000 £000
Tradeandother payables N/a 6,185 - 151 421
Borrowings:
Variablerate 1.888 18 354 25,692 -
Fixedrate 3.935 197 590 2,656 -
Fixedrate 2.987 336 1,008 5377 47,939
Fixedrate 3.020 264 793 4,228 41,362
Fixedrate 3.260 122 367 1,956 18,227
7,222 3,112 40,060 107,949
Weightedaverage 31March2021  31March2021  31March2021  31March2021
effective 0-3months 3months—1year 1-5years Syears+
Company interestrate % £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade andother payables N/a 9,590 - 151 421
Borrowings:
Variablerate 1.888 18 354 25,692 -
Fixedrate 3.935 197 590 2,656 -
Fixedrate 2.987 336 1,008 5377 47,939
Fixedrate 3.020 264 793 4,228 41,362
Fixedrate 3.260 122 367 1,956 18,227
10,627 3,112 40,060 107,949
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Weightedaverage 31March2020 31March2020 31March2020 31March2020
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effective 0-3months 3months—1year 1-5years byears+
Group interestrate % £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables N/a 7,794 - 151 425
Borrowings:
Variablerate 1.988 174 522 37413 -
Fixedrate 3.935 197 590 3,148 20,295
Fixedrate 2987 336 1,008 5377 49,279
Fixedrate 3.020 264 793 4,228 42,419
Fixedrate 3.260 122 367 1,956 18,716
8,887 3,280 52,273 131,134
Weightedaverage 31March2020 31March2020 31March2020 31March2020
effective 0-3months 3months—1year 1-5years Syears+
Company interestrate % £000 £000 £000 £000
Tradeand other payables N/a 11,199 - 151 425
Borrowings:
Variablerate 1.988 174 522 37413 -
Fixedrate 3.935 197 590 3,148 20,295
Fixedrate 2987 336 1,008 5377 49,279
Fixedrate 3.020 264 793 4,228 42,419
Fixedrate 3.260 122 367 1,956 18,715
12,292 3,280 52,273 131133
Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values in the financial statements. The fair value hierarchy levels
areas follows:

o | evell—quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

o | evel2—inputs other than quoted prices included withinlevel 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived
from prices);and

o Level 3—inputsforthe assets orliabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

There have been no transfers between levels 1,2 and 3 during the year. The main methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments
andinvestment property are detailed below.

Investment property -level 3

Fair value is based on valuations provided by anindependent firm of chartered surveyors and registered appraisers, which uses the inputs set outinNote 10. These
values were determined after having takeninto consideration recent market transactions for similar propertiesin similar locations to the investment properties held by
the Company. The fair value hierarchy of investment propertyislevel 3. At 31 March 2021, the fair value of the Company'sinvestment properties was £551.9m (2020:
£559.8m)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings - level 3
Asat 31March 2021 the value of the Company's loans with Lloyds, SWIP and Aviva all held at amortised cost was £140.0m (2020: £150.0m). The difference between
the carrying value of Company'sloans and their fair value is detailed in Note 21.

Trade and other receivables/payables-level 3
The carryingamount of allreceivables and payables deemed to be due within one year are considered to reflect their fair value

Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
As set outinthe Principal risks and uncertainties section of the Strategic report, the Board believes it too early to understand fully the longer-termimpact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, but the Board believes the Company is well placed to weather any short-termimpact due to the reasons set outin the Strategic report.

The Board does therefore not consider it necessary or possible to carry out sensitivity analysis oniits valuation or cash flow assumptions.
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20. Eventsafter the reporting date

On7May 2021 the Company raised £0.6m (before costs and expenses) through theissue of 550,000 new ordinary shares of 1p each in the capital of the Company

ataprice of 101.5p per share

On 24 May 2021the Company sold a high street retail property at auctionin Nottingham for £0.7m, inline with the most recent valuation.

On8June 2021 the Company acquired anindustrial asset in Knowsley, Liverpool for £3.5m

21. Alternative performance measures
NAV per share total return

Ameasure of performance taking into account both capital returns and dividends by assuming dividends declared are reinvested at NAV at the time the shares are

quotedex-dividend, shown as a percentage change fromthe start of the year.

Year ended Yearended
Groupand Company 31March2021 31March2020
Netassets (£000) 409,866 426,752
Sharesinissueat 31 March (thousands) 420,053 420,053
NAV per share at the start of the year (p) 101.6 1071
Dividends per share paid during the year (p) 4.9125 6.625
NAV per share atthe end of the year (p) 97.6 1016
NAV per share totalreturn 0.9% 11%

Share price totalreturn

Ameasure of performance taking into account both share price returns and dividends by assuming dividends declared are reinvested at the ex-dividend share price,

shown as a percentage change fromthe start of the year.

Yearended Yearended
Groupand Company 31March2021 31March2020
Share price atthe start of the year (p) 99.0 1.2
Dividends per share paid during the year (p) 4.9125 6.625
Share price at the end of the year (p) 91.8 99.0
Share price totalreturn (2.3%) (5.0%)
Dividend cover
Theextent to which dividends relating to the year are supported by recurring netincome.
Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
Groupand Company £000 £000
Dividends paidrelatingtothe year 13,652 20,481
Dividends approvedrelatingto the year 7,354 6,983
21,006 27,464
Profitafter tax 3,749 2123
One-off costs - -
Netlossoninvestment property 19,925 26,550
23,674 28,673
Dividend cover 12.7% 104.4%
Premium of share price to NAV per share
Thedifference between the Company's share price and NAV, shown as a percentage at the end of the year.
Yearended Yearended
Groupand Company 31March2021 31March2020
NAV per share (p) 97.6 1016
Share price at the end of the year (p) 91.8 99.0
Discount (5.9%) (2.6%)
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Netgearing
Gross borrowings less cash (excluding rent deposits), divided by property portfolio value
Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
Groupand Company £000 £000
Grossborrowings 140,000 150,000
Cash (3,920) (25,399)
Cashheldonbehalf of tenants 1,179 o
Netborrowings 137,259 125,512
Investment property 551,922 559,817
Net gearing 24.9% 22.4%
Ongoing charges
Ameasure of the regular, recurring costs of running an investment company expressed as a percentage of average NAV.
Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
Groupand Company £000 £000
Average quarterly NAV during the year 408,703 428,979
Expenses 11,062 7545
Operating expenses of rental property rechargeable to tenants (914) (880)
10,148 6,665
Operating expenses of rental property directly incurred (5,559) (1,883)
One-off costs - -
4,589 4,782
OCR 2.48% 1.55%
OCR excluding direct property expenses 1.12% 112%

EPRA performance measures

EPRA promotes, develops andrepresents the European public real estate sector, providing leadership in matters of commoninterest by publishing research and
encouraging discussion of issues impacting the property industry, both within the membership and with a wide range of stakeholders, including the EU institutions,
governmentaland regulatory bodies and business partners. The Board supports EPRAs drive to bring parity to the comparability and quality of information provided
inthisreport toinvestors and other key stakeholders.

EPRA earnings per share
Ameasure of the Company's operating results excluding gains or losses oninvestment property, giving a better indication than basic EPS of the extent to which
dividends paidin the year are supported by recurring netincome;

Yearended Yearended

31March2021 31March2020

Groupand Company £000 £000
Profit for the year after taxation 3,749 2,123
Netlossoninvestment property 19,925 26,550
EPRAeamings 23,674 28,673
Weighted average number of sharesinissue (thousands) 420,053 409,711
EPRA earnings per share (p) 5.6 70
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Financial Statements continued

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2021

21. Alternative performance measures continued

EPRA NAV per share metrics

EPRANAV metrics make adjustments to the IFRS NAV to provide stakeholders with the most relevant information on the fair value of the assets and liabilities of areal
estate investment company, under different scenarios.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“NRV”)
NRV assumes the Company never sells its assets and aims to represent the value required to rebuild the entity.

31March2021 31March2020

Groupand Company £000 £000
IFRSNAV 409,865 426,751
Fair value of financialinstruments - _
Deferredtax - -
EPRANRV 409,865 426,751
Closingnumber of sharesinissue (thousands) 420,053 420,053
EPRANRYV per share (p) 97.6 101.6

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“NTA”)
Assumes that the Company buys and sells assets for short-term capital gains, thereby crystallising certain deferred tax balances.

31March2021 31March2020

Groupand Company £000 £000
IFRSNAV 409,865 426,751
Fair value of financialinstruments - -
Deferredtax - _
EPRANTA 409,865 426,751
Closing number of sharesinissue (thousands) 420,053 420,053
EPRANTA per share (p) 97.6 1016

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“NDV”)
Represents the shareholders'value under a disposal scenario, where deferred tax, financialinstruments and certain other adjustments are calculated to the fullextent
of their liability, net of any resulting tax.

31March2021
Groupand Company £000
IFRSNAV 409,865
Fair value of fixed rate debt (9,468)
Deferredtax -
EPRANDV 400,397
Closing number of sharesinissue (thousands) 420,053
EPRANDV per share (p) 95.3

Thefair value of the Company'sinterest-bearing loans included in the balance sheet at amortised cost has been calculated based on prevailing swap rates, and
excludes break’ costs chargeable should the Company settle loans ahead of their contractual expiry. Thisinformationis not retrospectively available for the year
ended 31March2021.
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EPRANIY and EPRA ‘topped-up’NIY

EPRANIY represents annualised rentalincome based on cashrents passing at the balance sheet date, less non-recoverable property operating expenses, divided
by the gross property valuation. The EPRA ‘topped-up NIY is calculated by making an adjustment to the EPRANIY in respect of the expiration of rent free periods

(orother unexpired lease incentives such as discounted rent periods and stepped rents)

31March2021 31March2020
Groupand Company £000 £000
Investmentproperty 551,922 559,817
Allowance for estimated purchasers’ costs®® 35,875 36,388
Gross up property portfolio valuation 587,797 596,205
Annualised cashpassing rentalincome 36,314 38,196
Property outgoings (1,004) (1,115)
Annualised netrents 35,310 37109
Impact of expiry of currentlease incentives 2,378 2,553
37,688 39,634
EPRANIY 6.0% 6.2%
EPRA ‘topped-up’NIY 6.4% 6.6%
EPRAvacancyrate
EPRAvacancy rateis the ERV of vacant space as a percentage of the ERV of the whole property portfolio.
31March2021 31March2020
Groupand Company £000 £000
Annualised potential rental value of vacant premises 3,562 1,745
Annualised potential rental value for the property portfolio 42,554 42,600
EPRAvacancyrate 8.4% 41%
EPRA costratios
EPRA costratiosreflect overheads and operating costs as a percentage of gross rentalincome
Yearended Yearended
31March2021 31March2020
Groupand Company £000 £000
Directlyincurred operating expenses and administrative fees 10,147 6,667
Groundrentcosts 37) (37)
EPRA costs (including direct vacancy costs) 10,110 6,630
Property void costs (888) (836)
EPRA costs (excluding direct vacancy costs) 9,222 5,794
Grossrentalincome 38,698 40,022
Groundrentcosts 37 (37)
Rentalincome net of groundrent costs 38,661 39,985
EPRA costratio (including direct vacancy costs) 26.1% 16.6%
EPRA costratio (excluding direct vacancy costs) 23.9% 14.5%

36. Assumed at 6.5% of investment property valuation
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Financial Statements continued

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 March 2021

21. Alternative performance measures continued

EPRA capital expenditure

Capital expenditure incurred on the Company's property portfolio during the year.

31March2021 31March2020
Groupand Company £000 £000
Acquisitions 12,150 24,647
Development 691 79
Like-for-like portfolio 1,617 2,725
Total capital expenditure 14,458 27451
EPRA like-for-like rental growth
Like-for-like rental growth of the property portfolio by sector.
31March 2021
Retail
Industrial warehouse Retail Other Office Total
Groupand Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Like-for-likerent 16,085 7,739 3,449 5,845 3,454 36,572
Acquired properties 38 - - 59 127 225
Soldproperties 18 - 144 - - 162
16,14 7739 3,593 5,904 3,581 36,958
31March2020
Retail

Industrial warehouse Retail Other Office Total
Groupand Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Like-for-likerent 15,128 8,928 4,689 6,656 3,601 39,002
Acquired properties 424 - - - - 424
Soldproperties 208 - - - 388 596
15,760 8,928 4,689 6,656 3,989 40,022
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Environmental disclosures (unaudited)

EPRA Sustainability Best Practice Recommendations (“sBPR”) Guidelines

Custodian REIT recognises the importance of disclosing its ESG information as it creates transparency to potential investors and sets a direction towards improving
theintegration of ESG into the management of the Company’'s property portfolio. The Company has chosen to reportinalignment with the European Public Real
Estate (EPRA) guidelines to achieve this which are considered best practice and are utiised across the real estate industry, enabling a comparison against our peers
and helping set clear benchmarks for the Company moving forwards.

Materiality

The scope of our EPRA sBPR data disclosure was influenced by our application of materiality. Custodian REIT undertook a materiality assessment to review
the applicability of the full set of EPRA indicators. Based on professional judgement, each indicator was assessed interms of its impact on the Company and its
importance to stakeholders.

This calculation resulted inan overall score which determined if an issue was material.

As part of our EPRA disclosures and associated materiality assessment, we have defined Custodian REIT's organisational boundary inline with the Greenhouse Gas
(GHG) Protocol. We have taken the operational controlapproach and this has played a fundamental role in the materiality assessment. Custodian REIT isan externally
managed real estate investment trust which has no direct employees. The Investment Manager is Custodian Capital Limited which has 17 employees and Custodian
REIT has operational control over neither Custodian Capital nor its employees. The Social Performance indicators determined immaterial are in relation toemployees,
thus they are not relevant for reporting at the Custodian REIT level

Using this organisational boundary, our materiality assessment determined the following Sustainability Performance measures immaterial for Custodian REIT:
o Employee gender and diversity

o Employee gender payratio

o Employee training and development

o Employee performance appraisals

o Newhiresandturnover

Employee healthand safety

However, as Custodian REIT does have its own board, which consists of six Non—Executive Directors, we have chosen toreport on gender, diversity and the gender
pay ratio of Custodian REIT'sboard members, to be as transparent as possible with our stakeholders.
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Financial Statements continued

Environmental disclosures (unaudited) continued

Assetlevel reporting
Absolute Portfolio - Energy

ImpactArea EPRA Sustainability Performance Measures (Environment)

Total Portfolio

Units of
EPRACode measure Indicator Metric 2021 2020 % Change
Total Electricity Consumption—
landlord obtained 758 887 (15%)
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 95% 100% (5%)
Total Electricity Consumption—
tenantobtained 9,287 8,723 6%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 31% 31% -
Elec-Abs mWh Electricity Proportion of landlord obtained
electricity fromrenewable sources 5% 6% (1%)
Proportion of tenant obtained electricity
fromrenewable sources 54% 12% 42%
Total electricity consumption 10,045 9,610 5%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 32% 32% 0%
Proportion of electricity estimated (%) 1% 12% (11%)
TotalHeating & Cooling—
landlord obtained N/A N/A N/A
o TotalHeating & Cooling—
Energy District tenantobtained N/A N/A N/A
DH&C-Abs  mWh Heatingand
Cooling Proportion oflandlord obtained Heating
& Cooling fromrenewable sources N/A N/A N/A
Proportion of tenant obtained Heating &
Cooling fromrenewable sources N/A N/A N/A
Total fuels—landlord obtained 89 97 (8%)
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 95% 100% (5%)
Total fuels—tenant obtained 16,052 13,590 18%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 31% 31% -
Proportion of landlord obtained fuels
Fuels-Abs mWh Fuels fromrenewable sources - - -
Proportion oftenant obtained fuels from
renewable sources - - -
Total fuel consumption 16,141 13,687 18%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 32% 32% 0%
Proportion of fuel estimated (%) 0% 13% (13%)
Energy-Int mwWh/m?/ Energy
year intensity Energy intensity per m? 0.18 016 12%
2020 floor area coverage figures andintensity figures have been restated using our latest common parts floor area calculations using GRESB guidance.
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Industrial Retail
2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
No dataavailable 279 N/A 150 107 40%
- 100% (100%) 100% 100% -
6,690 B 16% 2,017 1,503 34%
42% 36% 6% 28% 37% (9%)
No dataavailable - N/A - - -
56% 9% 47% 49% 36% 13%
6,690 6,034 11% 2,167 1,610 35%
42% 37% 5% 30% 39% (9%)
1% 8% (7%) 1% 13% (12%)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
No dataavailable - N/A - - -
- 100% (100%) 100% 100% -
13,970 9,946 40% 1,700 2192 (22%)
42% 36% 6% 28% 37% (9%)
No dataavailable - N/A - - -
13,970 9,946 40% 1,700 2192 (22%)
42% 37% 5% 30% 39% (9%)
0% 10% (10%) - 25% (25%)
0.18 0.16 12% 0.18 0.16 12%
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Environmental disclosures (unaudited) continued

Asset level reporting continued
Like-for-Like Portfolio - Energy

ImpactArea EPRA Sustainability Performance Measures (Environment)

Total Portfolio

Units of
EPRACode measure Indicator Metric 2021 2020 % Change
Total Electricity Consumption—
landlord obtained 758 492 54%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 95% 95% -
Total Electricity Consumption—
tenantobtained 4,679 4,584 2%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 19% 19% -
Elec-Lfl mWh Electricity Proportion of landlord obtained
electricity fromrenewable sources 5% 10% (5%)
Proportion of tenant obtained electricity
fromrenewable sources 67% 12% 55%
Total electricity consumption 5,437 5,076 %
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 19% 19% -
Proportion of electricity estimated (%) 0% 10% (10%)
TotalHeating & Cooling—
landlord obtained N/A N/A N/A
o TotalHeating & Cooling—
Energy District tenantobtained N/A N/A N/A
DH&C-LA mWh Heatingand
Cooling Proportion oflandlord obtained Heating
& Cooling fromrenewable sources N/A N/A N/A
Proportion of tenant obtained Heating &
Cooling fromrenewable sources N/A N/A N/A
Total fuels—landlord obtained 89 97 (8%)
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 95% 95% -
Total fuels—tenant obtained 13,353 10,440 28%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 19% 19% -
Proportion of landlord obtained fuels
Fuels-Lfl mWh Fuels fromrenewable sources - - -
Proportion oftenant obtained fuels from
renewable sources - - -
Total fuel consumption 13,443 10,536 28%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 19% 19% -
Proportion of fuel estimated (%) - 12% (12%)
Energy-Int mwWh/m?/ Energy
year intensity Energy intensity per m? 0.23 019 21%
2020 floor area coverage figures andintensity figures have been restated using our latest common parts floor area calculations using GRESB guidance.
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Industrial Retail

2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A 150 107 40%
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A 100% 100% -
3,066 3,248 (6%) 1,613 1,083 49%

24% 24% - 25% 25% -
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A - - -
81% 10% 1% 41% 31% 10%

3,066 3,248 (6%) 1,763 1190 48%

24% 24% - 26% 26% -

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A - - -
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A 100% 100% -
11,671 8,184 43% 1,683 2192 (23%)

24% 24% - 25% 25% -
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A - - -
11,671 8,184 43% 1,683 2192 (23%)

24% 24% - 26% 26% -

- 6% (6%) - 19% (19%)

0.24 0.19 26% 0.18 0.18 -
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Financial Statements continued

Environmental disclosures (unaudited) continued

Asset level reporting continued
Absolute Portfolio - Greenhouse Gas Emissions

ImpactArea EPRA Sustainability Performance Measures (Environment)

Total Portfolio

Units of
EPRACode measure Indicator Metric 2021 2020 % Change
tonnesCO.e Scopet 16 16 0%
GHG-Dir-Abs Direct
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 95% 100% (5%)
0,
Greenhouse tonnesCO,e ndirect Scope?2 177 197 (10%)
GasEmissions gHG- Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 95% 100% (5%)
Indir-Abs Scope3 5,426 4698 (16%)
Indirect
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 29% 34% (5%)
isgi Scopetland?2 0.04 0.04 0%
GHG-Int tCO,e/ m?/yr .GHG?mISS'OnS
intensity Scope3 0.02 0.03 (33%)
Like-for-Like Portfolio - Greenhouse Gas Emissions
ImpactArea EPRA Sustainability Performance Measures (Environment) Total Portfolio
Units of
EPRACode measure Indicator Metric 2021 2020 % Change
tonnesCO,¢ Scope 16 16 0%
GHG-Dir-Abs Direct
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 95% 95% -
tonnesCO.e Scope?2 177 126 40%
Greenhouse 2" ndirect
GasEmissions GHG- Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 95% 95% -
Indir-Abs Scope3 3,667 3102 18%
Indirect
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 16% 16% -
] Scopeland?2 0.04 0.03 33%
GHG-Int tCO,e/ m?/yr QHGleSS|ons
intensity Scope3 0.05 0.04 25%

2020 floor area coverage figures andintensity figures have been restated using our latest common parts floor area calculations using GRESB guidance.



Strategic Report

/ Governance

/  Financial Statements

Industrial Retail

2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
Nodataavailable - N/A - - -
- 100% (100%) 100% 100% -
Nodataavailable 7 N/A 35 20 75%
- 100% (100%) 100% 100% -

4,332 3,386 28% 804 691 16%

38% 36% 2% 30% 37% (7%)
Nodataavailable 0.33 N/A 0.02 0.01 100%
0.04 0.03 33% 0.04 0.03 33%

Industrial Retail

2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A - - -
- = = 100% 100% -
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A 35 20 75%
- - - 100% 100% -

2,941 2,513 170% 706 547 29%

36% 36% - 30% 30% -
Nodataavailable Nodataavailable N/A - - -
0.05 0.04 25% 0.04 0.03 33%
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Financial Statements continued

Environmental disclosures (unaudited) continued

Asset level reporting continued
Absolute Portfolio - Water and Waste

ImpactArea EPRA Sustainability Performance Measures (Environment)

Total Portfolio

Units of
EPRACode measure Indicator Metric 2021 2020 % Change
Total water consumption 50.9 347 47%
bitss Water-Abs ~ dam® Water Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 20% 27% (7%)
Proportion of water estimated (%) 1% 10% (9%)
Water-Int L/m?/yr Waterintensity Building water intensity 561 290 94%
Total waste sent to landfill 162 371 (56%)
Waste-Abs  tonnes Waste Total waste diverted from landfill 2,591 1,266 105%
Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 21% 15% 6%
ez Proportion of waste sent to landfill
estimated (%) - 28% (28%)
Waste-Abs % Waste
Proportion of waste diverted from
landfill estimated (%) - 1% (11%)
Like-for-Like Portfolio— Water and Waste
ImpactArea EPRA Sustainability Performance Measures (Environment) Total Portfolio
Units of
EPRACode measure Indicator Metric 2021 2020 % Change
Total water consumption 13.8 1.4 21%
WElET Water-Lfl dam?® Water Percentage (%) of floor area coverage 10% 10% -
Proportion of water estimated (%) - - -
Water-Int L/m?/yr Waterintensity Building water intensity 312 257 21%
Total waste sent to landfill 25 158 (84%)
Waste-Lfl tonnes Waste Total waste diverted from landfill 416 176 136%
Percentage (%) of floor areacoverage 19% 19% -
Waste Proportion of waste sent to landfill
estimated (%) - - -
Waste-Lfl % Waste
Proportion of waste diverted from
landfill estimated (%) - 3% (3%)

2020 floor area coverage figures andintensity figures have been restated using our latest common parts floor area calculations using GRESB guidance.
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Industrial Retail
2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
16.7 19.7 (15%) 131 58 126%
27% 18% 9% 15% 4% 11%
2% - 2% - 54% (54%)
220 238 (8%) 1,254 287 337%
161 341 (53%) 1 3 67%
2,301 1,059 17% 60 24 150%
29% 32% (8%) 14% 1% 3%
- 32% (832%) - - -
- 10% (10%) - 100% (100%)
Industrial Retail
2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
8.7 54 61% 2.8 3.8 (26%)
13% 13% - 13% 13% -
259 162 60% 298 403 (26%)
25 154 (84%) - 3 (100%)
327 176 86% 49 - N/a
28% 28% - 10% 10% -
- - - - 100% (100%)
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Environmental disclosures (unaudited) continued

Asset level reporting continued
Absolute Portfolio - Certifications
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ImpactArea EPRA Sustainability Performance Measures Total Portfolio
Units of
EPRACode measure Indicator Metric 2021 2020 % Change

Number of buildings which are
BREEAMrated 1% 1% -

%ofportfolio  Outstanding - - -

BREEAM certified by

Excellent - - -
floorarea
Very Good 1% 1% -
Good/Pass - - -
Certifications Number of buildings with an EPC Rating 99% 97% 2%
Cert-Tot A 4% 5% (1%)
B 15% 1% 4%
% of pOI’thliO @ 48% 46% 20
EPC certifiedby N )
floorarea D 23% 25% (2%)
B 8% 9% (1%)
F — —_ —_
G 1% 1% -
Like-for-Like Portfolio - Certifications
ImpactArea EPRA Sustainability Performance Measures Total Portfolio
Units of
EPRACode measure Indicator Metric 2021 2020 % Change

Number of buildings which are
BREEAMrated 1% 1% -

%ofportfolio  Outstanding - - -

BREEAM certified by

Excellent - B -
floorarea
Very Good 1% 1% -
Good/Pass - - -
Certifications Number of buildings withan EPC Rating 99% 96% 3%
Cert-Tot A 4% 5% (1%)
B 15% 1% 4%
%ofportfolio ¢ 49% 47% 2%
EPC certified by 0
floorarea D 22% 22% -
E 8% 9% (1%)
F — — —_
@ 1% 1% -

2020 floor area coverage figures andintensity figures have been restated using our latest common parts floor area calculations using GRESB guidance.
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Industrial Retail
2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
1% 1% = - _ _
1% 1% - - - -
100% 99% 1% 99% 99% -
5% 6% (1%) - - -
11% 9% 2% 6% 2% 4%
54% 54% - 59% 33% 26%
21% 21% - 23% 38% (15%)
9% 9% - 10% 19% (9%)
- - - 1% 1% -
Industrial Retail
2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
1% 1% - - — _
1% 1% = - _ _
100% 99% 1% 99% 99% -
6% 7% (1%) - - -
12% 10% 2% 6% - 6%
57% 56% 1% 59% 32% 27%
17% 19% (2%) 23% 40% (17%)
9% 7% 2% 10% 20% (10%)
- - - 1% 1% -
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Financial Statements continued

Environmental disclosures (unaudited) continued

Asset level reporting continued
Social Performance Measures

Absolute performance

ImpactArea EPRACode Indicator Unit 2021 2020
% male 80 94
Diversity-Emp Gjover.nance body gender
diversity % female 20 6
Diversity Mal 82 93
ale
Diversity-Pay Goverr.1ance body gender
payratio Female 18 7
Percentage of assets of which Landlord-controlled 100% 100%
H&S-Asset Assethealth and safety H&S i d
T sse assessments . impacts are assessed or Tenant-controlled 7% B
reviewed
& Safety —
Assethealthand Number of incidents of non-
H&S-Comp ) )
safety compliance compliance - -
Percentage of assets that
. Community engagement, haveimplementedlocal
Community : .
Comty-Eng  impactassessmentsand community engagement,
Engagement )
development programmes impact assessments and/or
development programmes 2% -
Governance Performance Measures
ImpactArea EPRACode Indicator Narrative
Governance Number of executive board members -
- i Number ofindependent/non-executive board members
Composition of the highest
Gov-Board governance body Average tenure on the governance body (years) 6
Number of independent/non-executive board members
with competencies relating to environmental and social topics 1
Nominatingand selecting the Custodian REIT has aNominations Committee with published terms of reference
Gov-Select )
highest governance body
Gov-Col Process for managing conflicts CREIT has no employees. Its operations are outsourced to the Investment Manager whose

ofinterest

staff operate underits conflict of interest policy.

2020 floor area coverage figures andintensity figures have been restated using our latest common parts floor area calculations using GRESB guidance.
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Historical performance summary (unaudited)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Income statement £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 39,578 40,903 39,974 34,813 27,610
Expensesandnetfinance costs (15,904) (12,230) (11,688) (9,6406) (7.917)
EPRA earnings 23,674 28,673 28,286 25167 19,693
Property valuation movements (19,611) (25,850) (5,499) 11,859 9,016
Acquisitioncosts (707) (599) (3,391 (6,212) (6,103)
Profit/(loss) ondisposal 393 (101) 4,250 1,606 1,599
Property (losses)/gains (19,925) (26,550) (4,640) 7,253 4512
Profit after tax 3,749 2,123 23,646 32,420 24,205
Dividendsrelatingtothe year 21,006 27464 25,767 23,847 19,664
Statement of financial position
Investment property 551,922 559,817 572,745 528,943 418,548
Netborrowings (137,259) (125,512) (137,897) (111,282) (60,500)
Otherassetsandliabilities (4,797) (7,553) (8,225) (2,459) (6,171)
NAV 409,866 426,752 426,623 415,202 351,877
Financial highlights
NAV per share totalreturn 0.9% 11% 5.9% 9.6% 8.6%
NAV per share (p) 97.6 101.6 1071 107.3 103.8
EPRA earnings per share (p) 5.6 70 7.3 6.9 6.6
Dividends per share (p) 5.0 6.65 6.55 6.45 6.35
Dividend cover 117.2% 104.4% 110.4% 105.5% 101.0%
Share price total return (2.3%) (5.0%) 4.2% 6.7% 10.3%
New equity raised - 253 134 54.7 924
Netgearing 24.9% 22.4% 24.1% 21.0% 14.5%
OCRexcludingdirect property expenses 112 112 112 115 1.20

Financial calendar

13May 2021 Ex-dividend date for fourthinterim dividend

14 May 2021 Recorddate for fourthinterimdividend

20 May 2021 Ex-dividend date for fifthinterim dividend

21May 2021 Recorddate for fifthinterim dividend

28 May 2021 Payment of fourthinterimdividend

16 June 2021 Announcement of results for the year ended 31March 2021
30June 2021 Paymentoffifthinterim dividend

25 August 2021 AGM
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Financial Statements continued

Company information

Directors
David Hunter
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Elizabeth McMeikan
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Matthew Thorne
Independent Non-Executive Director

Hazel Adam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Chrislreland
Independent Non-Executive Director

lan Mattioli MBE
Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary
Ed Moore

Registered office
1New Walk Place
Leicester

LE16RU

Registered number
08863271

Investment Manager
Custodian Capital Limited
1New Walk Place

Leicester

LE16RU

Broker

Numis Securities Limited

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

LL.ondon

ECAMTLT

Solicitors
Walker Morris LLP
Kings Court

12King Street
Leeds

LS12HL

DWFLLP

No.2 Lochrin Square
96 Fountainbridge
Edinburgh
EH39QA

Valuers

Lambert Smith Hampton Group Limited
UKHouse

180 Oxford Street

London

WIDINN

Knight Frank LLP
1Colmore Row
Birmingham
B32BJ

Statutory Auditor
Deloitte LLP

Park House

Crawley Business Quarter
Manor Royal

Crawley

RH109AD

Registrar

Link Group

Unit10

Central Square

29 Wellington Street
Leeds

LS14DL

Depositary
LanghamHallUK
Depositary LLP
1FleetPlace
London
ECAM7RA

Banker

Lloyds Bank plc
114-116 Colmore Row
Birmingham

B33BD

Taxadviser
KPMGLLP
1Snow Hil
Queensway
Birmingham
B46GH
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